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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of ABP REALTY ADVISORS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial
statement”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a truc and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevantrules issued there under.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made therc under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are
free from material misstatement.



An audit involves pertorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whetlicr due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonubivness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS tinancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the cxplanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ine AS fitancial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in Indiz including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 31st March
2018, and its loss for the year (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the vear ended on that date.

Other Matcer

The audited Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2017, was carried out and
reported by Dalul Doshi & Associates, vide their unmodified audit report dated 26th May 2017,
whose report has been turnished to us by the management and which has been relied upon by us for
the purpose of cur audit of the financial statements. Our audit report is not qualified in respect of
this mattet,

Emphasis of Mutiers

We draw attention to Note No. 14 in the Ind AS financial statements which indicates that the
Company has accumulated losses and its net worth has been completely eroded, the Company has
incurred a net cash loss during the current year and, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets as at the balance sheer date. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. However, the ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going
concern basis for the reasons stated in the said Note.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report ou Othe. Legal iand Regulatory Requirements
. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Gon crnment of India in terms section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A"
statemer:: i the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order;

L. As required oy Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that

(a) We have scught and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;



(b} I our opinion, proper bueoks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report
arc inagrecnent with the hooks of account;

(d) In our upinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standarus specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder;

(e) The going concern matter described under the Emphasis of Matters paragraph above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

(f} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
Marcl, 2014 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating ettectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
"Annex.oe 87 oand

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 uf the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us :

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements, if any;

il.  The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foresceable losses; and

i There were nooamounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Eduentlon aad Protection Fund by the Company.

FORL.). KO1:. Bl & CO
Firm Registration No. 105313W
Chartered Accawntants

LALIT KOt .. f
Partner
Membership No.: 30917

Place : Mumba’
Date :20% June, 20104



ANNEXURE “A™ RiLGHED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ABP REALTY ADVISORS
PRIVATE LIMI'TEL N THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH,
2018;

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
ot the records of the Company, the Company does not have any fixed assets during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i) of the Order is not applicable.

(ii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any inventory during the
year. Accurdingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

(i) The Company has not granted any loans, sccured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited Hability partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv)  The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any
guaranice. or any sccurity to the parties covered under section 185 and 186.
According.y, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v} The Company has not accepted anv deposits from the public during the year within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notitied. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi)  The Centrat Covernment of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Act, for any ol the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) a) sccording to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income-tax,
vul . & service tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess
alt other material statutory dues, wherever applicable, with the appropriate

vivrities. There were no arrears as at 315 March, 2018 for a period of more
. i months from the date they become payable.

b} On the basis of our examination of ducuments and records of the Company, and
explanation provided to us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax,
Value Added Tax and Cess as at the Balance Sheet date.

(viii}  The Comgany does not have any loans or borrowings tfrom any financial institution,
banks ¢ Jovernment nor has ic issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date.
According. ., paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix) ~ The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (iLaciuding debe instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragrapl. $(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x}  Bascad aedlit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the niw e+ a0 .G we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers v, 1ipluyees has been noticed or reported during the year.



(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

The Company has not paid / provided for managerial remuneration during the year and
henee, the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company .. not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applical.le.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties are in compliance with
the Section 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have
been disclesed in the Financiai Statements as required under AS24, Related Party
Disclosur -~ specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accountis; Kodes, 2015.

The compuny has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares or
tully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of
the Order i notapplicable to the Company.

Based e audic procedures nerformed and the information and explanations given
by the mi wpement, the Cowmpany has not entered into non-cash transactions with

directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is
not applicahle,

The company is not required to be registered under section 45 [A of the Reserve Bank of
Indiz Act, 1934, Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

FORL. J. Kot..u..
Firm Registration No: 105313W
Chartered Accountants

LALTY KU'T.. ...

Partner

Memburshiy. . %17
Place : Mumbiu

Date : 20 June, 2018



“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ABP REALTY ADVISORS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™) as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by 1CAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risks. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that;

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FORL.]. KOTHARI & CO
Firm Registration No. 105313W

Chartered Accountants

LALIT KOTHARI
Partner
Membership No.: 30917

Place : Mumbai
Date : 20t June, 2018



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°" MARCH, 2018

Particulars Note As at Asat
No. 31% March, 2018 31" March, 2017
T T

ASSETS
Current assets
(a) Financial assets

(1) Cash and cash equivalents 3 57,273 57,333

(ii} Loans 4 108,367 108,367
TOTAL ASSETS 165,640 165,700
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a)  Equity share capital 5 500,000 500,000
{(b) Other equity 6 (18,221,008) (18,206,427)
Total Equity (17,721,008) (17,706,427)
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 7 224,597 224,597

(i1} Other financial liabilities 8 17,662,051 17,647,530
Total Liabilities 17,886,648 17,872,127
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 165,640 165,700

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

FOR L. }. KOTHARI & CO.
Firm Registration No. 105313W
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

LALIT KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No. 30917

Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RATHOD
JRECTOR
13147669

L SHINDE
URECTOR
vin: 03140671

Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2018




ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended

No. 31" March, 2018 31° March, 2017

T T

INCOME
Revenue From Operations 9 - 32,933
TOTAL INCOME (M . 32,933
EXPENSES
Other Expenses 10 14,581 39,594
TOTAL EXPENSE (1) 14,581 39,594
Profit before exceptional items and Tax (1 - 1I) (14,581) (6,661)
Exceptional Items - -
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (14,581) (6,661)
Tax Expense
Excess/(Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years -

Profit/(Loss) for the Period from Continuing Operations (14,581) (6,661)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (14,581) (6,661)
Other Comprehensive Income -
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (14,581) (6,661)
Earning per equity share of nominal value of ¥ 10/- each

Basic and Diluted 11 (0.29) (0.13)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

FORL.]. KOTHARI & CO.
Firm Registration No. 105313W
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

LALIT KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No. 30917

Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

I RATHOD
DIRECTOR
03147669

§. SHINDE
DIRECTOR
v 03140671

Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2018




ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018

Particulars 31" March, 2018 317 March, 2017
T 2
1 CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit/(Joss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss (14,581) (6,661)
Add/(Less):
Provision no longer required - {32,933)
Operating profit before working capital changes (14,581) (39,594)
Add/(Less):
{Increase) / Decrease in loans and advances - 4,550
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables 14,521 20,690
Direct taxes paid /(received) - -
14,521 25,240
Net cash flow from operating activities {(60) {14,354)
I CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash flow from investing activities - B
11l CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -
Net cash flow from financing activities - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ([ + (1 +11I) (60} {14,354)
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 57,333 71,687
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 57,273 57,333
Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 3)
Cash on hand 8,270 8,270
Balances with banks
- On Current accounts 49,003 49,063
57,273 57,333 |
Footnote :
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS- 7) statement of cash
flows.

F
C

L
P

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

an 1 f ESAATIRANE O S

Membership No. 30917

Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

JA ATHOD
wiRECTOR
DIN: 03147669

&UL SHINDE
DIRECTOR
DIN: 03 1

Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2018




ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018 in (%)

Amount

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Asat 1™ April, 2016 5,00,000.00
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31" March, 2017 5,00,000.00
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31" March, 2018 5,60,000.00
B. OTHER EQUITY AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS
Retained Earnings Total

Balance at 1* April, 2016 (1.81,99,766) (1,81,99,766)
Other Comprehensive Income for the yvear - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (6,661) (6,661)
Balance at 31* March, 2017 (1,82,06,427) {1,82,06,427)
Balance at 1" April, 2017 (1,82,06,427) (1,82,06,427)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total Comprehensive income for the year (14,581) (14,581)
Balance at 31* March, 2018 (1,82,21,008) (1,82,21,008)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per attached report of even date

FORL.]. KOTHAR! & CO.
Firm Registration No. 105313wW
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

LALIT KOTHARI
Proprietor
Mcembership No. 30917

Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

[RATHOD
DIRECTOR
DIN, 03147669

APH HINDE
— DIRECTOR
DIN: 03140671

Mumbai
Date; 20th June 2018




ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 317" MARCH, 2018

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies.

1.1 Company Overview
ABP Realty Advisors Private Limited is a subsidiary of Public Limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the business of investment advisors, consultants for real estate and infrastructure funds including
but not limited to advise on investment by the aforesaid funds in all kind of real estate and infrastructure projects.

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 20th june 2018.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company

I. Basis of preparation of financial Statements

(i) Compliance with ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS") as notified
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

2) assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell;

3) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

(iii) Current non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the
guidance set out in Schedule 111 to the Act Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract
including the defect liability peried, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the
credit period normally applicable to the respective project

1. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these agssumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

a) Judgements
Classification of property

The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property comprises land
and buildings that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of
business, but are held primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not
intended to be sold in the ordinary course of business. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Principally, these are properties that the company develops and intends to sell before or on completion of construction.

b) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumpticns about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

HL Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured and also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyers' commitment to make the
complete payment.
A, Revenue from Consultancy & Advisory Services
Revenue from consultancy & advisory services are accrued and accounted for as and when the services are provided and the revenue for
the same is certain. Where the income / revenue is contingent or uncertain, recognition for the same is postponed to the extent of
significant uncertainty.
B. Interestand dividend:
Interest income including income arising on other instruments recognised on time proportion basis using the effective interest rate
method.
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.
C.  Others:
Other revenues / incomes and costs / expenditt 1al, as they are earned or incurred,



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018
Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

v.

A

a

b

lii.

—

Qi)

Financial Assets

. Initial recognition

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective
to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate (“EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCl if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold
these assets in order to coliect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an
irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes
in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCl is carried at FVTPL.

De-recognition of Financial Assets:

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its
retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

[f the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

. Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which
are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.

. Financial Liabilities

1. Initial Recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

2. Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

- Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the hotder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the erm
of the borrowings in the Statement of Profit and Loss. A—~—-~~ ~~=* ‘- ~~'=-'-ad by taking into account any Airrnrme am nesmivm 2
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part ol idsation is included as finance f

Profit and Loss.
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3, De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

C.  Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the
finacial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109. A financial liability {or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized
from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Impairment

. Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through
profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL.
For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an
impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss.

. Non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s [CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of these from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangibie assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpese of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets, In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

ii. Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legai or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.

Taxation

. Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financiaj
statement of profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductibie in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115/B of Income Tax Act, 1961 [(i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal
income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the
specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
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ii. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for ail taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realized, based on tax rates {and tax lJaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as resuit of past event and it is probable that an
outflow of embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined
based on best estimate required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage ol time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also
arises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(""MCA") has notified the Companies {Indian Accounting 5tandards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21,
Foreigncurrency transactions and advance considerauon which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration
in a foreign currency.

The amendment will come into force from 1 April 201B. The Company exposure towards foreign currency transation is minimal, hence the
impact on the financial statements and effect on adoption of Ind AS 21 is expected to be insignificant.

Ind AS 115

In March 201B, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 201B {"amended
rules”). As per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and
Ind AS 18, “Revenue” and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step mode) for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should
be recognised when (or as} an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be
entitled. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from the entity’s contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application {Cumulative catch -
up approach)
The Company is evaluating the requirement ofthe amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of IND AS
115 is expected to be insignificent.



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018

3. Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
- in current accounts
Cash on hand

Total

4. l.oan
a) Loansto related parties
- Unsecured, considered good
Total

As at Asat
31°'March, 2018 31° March, 2017
4 4
49,003 49,063
8,270 8,270
57,273 57,333
108,367 108,367
108,367 108,367
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5. Equity share capital

Authgrised Share Capital:
2,50,000 (P.Y. 31st March, 2017: 2,50,000) Ordinary Equity Shares of ¥ 10/-each

Total

Issued and subscribed capital comprises :
50,000 (P.Y. 31st March, 2017: 50, 000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up
Total

a) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Fully paid equity shares

Balance at 1st April, 2016

Add: Issued during the year

Less : Bought back during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2017

Balance at 1st April, 2017

Add : Jssued during the year

Less : Bought back during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2018

ultimate holding company

As at As at
317 March, 2018  31*' March, 2017
4 L 4
2,500,000 2,500,000
2,500,000 2,500,000
500,000 500,000
500,000 500,000
Share Capital
Number of shares i
50,000 500,000
50,000 500,000
50,000 500,000
50,000 500,000

b) Equity Shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the

¢) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares

As at 31st March, 2018

As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017
No of shares % holding No of shares held % holding
held
Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners 50,000 100% 50,000 100%
Total 50,000 100% 50,000 100%

As at 31st March, 2017

d) Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares:

ensuing annual general meeting.

No of shares % holding No of shares held % holding
held
Fully paid equity shares
Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners 50,000 100% 50,000 100%
Total 50,000 100% 50,000 100%

The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The
company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the
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Asat Asat
31" March, 2018 31* March, 2017
T T

6. Other Equity
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (18,206,427) (18,199,766)
Profit attributable to the owners of the company (14,581) (6,661)

Total (18,221,008) (18,206,427)
7. Borrowings
Current
Unsecured
(i) Loans repayable on demand:

- From Related Party 224,597 224,597

Total 224,597 224,597

Footnote :

The Company has received interest free loans from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of
business in which the Company operates, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call
/ demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received is not measureable precisely.

8. Other financial liabilities

Current

Business Advance 17,600,000 17,600,000

Other payables 62,051 47,530
Total 17,662,051 17,647,530

9, Revenue from operations

Other operating revenue :
Provision no Longer required - 32,933

Total - 32,933

10. Other Expenses

Legal and professional fees 180 14,132
Other expenses 14,401 25,462
Total 14,581 39,594
Footnote :
Auditor's Remuneration (included in other expenses) :
Statutory Audit Fees 10,000 6,000

GST /Service Tax on above 200

Total 10,000 6,900
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Year Ended Year Ended
31° March, 2018 31" March, 2017
i$ L4
11. Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (0.29) {0.13)

11.1 Basic and Diluted EPS
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
are as follows

Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
(14,581) (6.661)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and 50,000 50,000
diluted earnings per share

12. Contingent Liabilities (Not Provided For) :
The company does not have any contingent liabilities as on the balance sheet date as certified by the management and
relied upon by the auditors.

13. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all the items of current assets, current libifities & loans and
advances continue to have a realisable value of at least the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet.

14. The accumulated losses of the Company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The
Company's management is, however, of the view that the said erosion is temporary in nature as the Company is in the
process of procuring new business, the proceeds of which when fructified, would result in turnaround of the Company.
The Company to that extent does not consider the erosion of the net worth as an impediment to its status as a going
concern.
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15. Related Party Disclosures
A. Names of related parties and description of relationship

Holding Company
Hubtown Limited

KMP of Holding Company
Chetan S. Mody

India Development And Construction Venture Capital Private Limited

8. Transactions with Related Parties

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018

Feliow Subsidiaries, with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Related Party relationships are identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors

Sr. Nature of transaction Holding Fellow Subsidiary KMP of Holding
No. Company companies Company
L 3 e
i. Loans and Advances given/ repaid/adjusted
India Development and Construction Venture Capital - - -
Private Limited () -) ()
ii. On behalf payments made (including reimbursement of
expenses}
Chetan 5. Mody - - B
(-) () - (10,952)
iii. On behalf payments received/ adjusted
Chetan S. Mody . - -
() ) (614)
Previous Year figures are given in brackets
C. Balance outstanding payables/receivables:
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
3 T
Hubtown Limited(Payable) 224,597 224,597
India Development and Construction Venture Capital Private 108,367 108,367
Limited (Receivable)
Chetan S. Medy (Payable) 10,338 10,338
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16. Capital Management

The primary objective of company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders value. The company’s board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis.

17. Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is
to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

1) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market
prices.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company’s debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk.

2) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to
a financial loss. The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities ot trade receivables since the agreement of
sale of land is executed only on receipt of full consideration.

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company’s treasury department in accordance
with the company’s policy.

3) Liguidity risk

The operating cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from shareholders.

18. Fair Value measurement of Financial Instruments

31% March, 2018 31™ March, 2017

FVPL | FYOCl| Amortised Cost | FVPL | FVOCI | Amortised Cost
i LA
Cash and cash equivalent - - 57,273 - - 57,333
Loans - - 108,367 - - 108,367
Total of Financial Assets - - 165,640 - - 165,700
B ial Liabiliti
Borrowings - - 224,597 - 224,597
Other Financial liabilities - - 17,662,051 - - 17,647,530
Total of Financial Liabilities - - 17,886,648 - - 17,872,127

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FOR L. ). KOTHARI & CO.

Firm Registration No. 105313W RATHOD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS R

47669
LALIT KOTHARI IL SHINDE
Proprietor R
Membership No. 30917 e v 40671
Mumbai Mumbai

Date: 20th june 2018 Date: 20th June 2018










(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any material pending litigations other than as disclosed
in note no 20 to the Ind AS financial Statements, which would impact its financial

position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

jii. =~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION -

MUKESH K. GOHEL
PROPRIETOR
Membership No. 0388%s
Place : Mumbai

Date : 25/06/2018



“ANNEXURE-A" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH I OF OUR REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OUR AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2018 OF DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH
LIMITED

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets;

b) The company has physically verified its fixed assets at reasonable interval and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company does not have any immovable

property.
(ii) The company does not have any Inventories during the year and as at the balance sheet date.

(iif)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any secured or unsecured loans to Companies, firms or other parties covered
in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(iv)  Asper the information received there are no loan, investment, guarantees and security to director
by the company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India under the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records
and hence such the provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the company;

{vii) a. According to the records of the Company. There were Service Tax ¥10,47,513/-,
Interest on TDS Interest ¥8,66,454/- and WCT 34,84,287 /- outstanding at the
last day of the financial year for a period exceeding six months from the date
they became payable. There were no dues during the year towards Employees
State Insurance and Excise Duty;

b. On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and
explanation provided to us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess other than
mentioned below:

| Statute and . . . Forum where
Financial Disputed . .
nature of Section dispute is
Year Dues .
) dues pending
Income Tax Commissioner of
143(3) 2011-12 199,06,143  Income tax
(appeals)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions or banks. The
Company did not have any loans or t -~ - ¢ * “vernment or dues to debenture
holder.

(viif)






“ANNEXURE-B” REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH II OF OUR REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 (“THE ACT”) OUR AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31« MARCH, 2318 OF DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note) issued by the [nstitute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate interna) financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
asrequired under the Companies Act, 2013.

Anditors’ Responsibllity

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both appiicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financlal controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial contro! over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1] pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnclples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in /="~ - - -~ -rizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasor ling prevention or timely



detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements,

Inberent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the poelicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
ICAl

FOR M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 103256W

PROPRIETOR
Membership No. 03882:

Place : Mumbal
Date: 25/06/2018






DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED

STATEMENT GF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2018

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31st March, 2018  31st March, 2017
L 4 4
I INCOME
Other Income 16 - 492590
Total Income - 4,92,590

1T EXPENSES

Finance Costs 17 52,972 4,62,146
Depreciation 1B 7,422 B,621
Other Expenses 19 5,20,974 42,259
Total Expenses 581,368 5,13,026
Profit before exceptional items and Tax (1- 11) (5,81,368) (20,436)

Exceptional ltems - -

Profit / (Loss) before Tax (5,31,368) {(20,436)

Profit for the Period from Continuing Operations (5,81,369) (20,436)

Profit from Discontinued Operattons before Tax
Tax Expense of Discontinued Operations - -
Profit from Discontinued Operations {after tax)

Profit / {Loss) for the Period (5,81,368) (20,436)
Earning per equity share of nominal value of ¥ 20
10/- each (in Rupees)
Basic and Diluted {11.63} (0.41)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements.
As per gur report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For M. I{, GOHEL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS RAJCSH DOSEH!
FIRM REG. NU,:103256W DIRECTOR
. DIN:03626H61

MUKESH K GOHEL | [ /%/!'/Z//:

PROPRIETOR KUSHEL SHAH
Membership No. D3KR DIRECTOR
DIN ;: 06843982
Mumbai

Date: 2Z5th June 2018










DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED

NOTES T0O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2018

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

LOMPANY OVERVIEW

Devkrupa Build Tech Public Limited is a Limited Company domiciled in India, mcorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 The
company is engaged in real estate business of construction and develnpment of Residential and Commerclal Premuses and Other Real
Eslale Projects including consultancy and sole selling of real estate.

The finanoal statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directars on 25th June, 2018.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

BAS1S OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the
Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Compantes (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The Company has adepted all the IndAS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with TndAS 101 First time
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out frem Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in
India as preseribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rujes, 2014 (IGAAP], which was the
previcus GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been suymmarized in note 28.

Accounting policics have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision
to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting palicy hitherto in use.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liahilities in the balance sheet based on current/non current classification. An asset is
classified as current when it is:

*  Expected to be realised or intended to sald or consumed in normal nperating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpese of trading

* Expected to be reatiscd within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cashor cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at l-ast twelve months afier the

Al ather assets are classified as non-corrent

A liahility is classified as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is beld primarily for the purpose of trading

It is duc to be settied within twelve monrhs after the reporting peried, or

There is ne uncnnditional right to defer the setilement of the liability for at least nwelve months after the repnruing perion
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the tme between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash eguivalents,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
A. Revenue from Construction Activity

i\ The company has adopted the principles of revenue recognition on the basis of " Guidance note om Aceounting for Reai Estare
Transactions " issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. for the entities to whom IndAS is applicable.

h. Revenue from sale of ‘finished properties / buildings / rights' is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of
ownetship of such propetties / building / rights, as per the terms nf the contracts entered into with buyer/{s], which genesally
coincides with the fimning of the sales contracts/ agreements, cxcept for contracts where the Company still has obligations to

pertnrm substantial acts even alter the transfer of all significant risks and rewards,

¢ Losses expected to be incurred on projects under cotstruction, are charged in the stalement of profit and loss in the period in
which Lhe losses are known,

B. Interest and Dividend Income

Revenue is recognised on a time proportien hasic talina inta accaunt tha gmount cutstanding and the rate applicable.

Vil



























DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 311st MARCH, 2018

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2018 Jist March, 2017
r ?
20. EARNINGS PER SHARE [EPS)
Basic and Diuted Earning Per Share {11.63) [0.41)

{i) Basic and Diluted EPS
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as

follows:
Year Ended Year Ended

J1st March, 2018 J1st March, 2017

Profit for the year attributahle to the owmers of the Company {5.81,368) (20.436)
Earnings used in the calenlatlon of basic and diluted earnings per share (5.81,36R] [20.436)
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 \

{iiYWeighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per

share 50,000 50,000

' fad
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and the statement
of changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statement”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Beard of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance {(including other comprehensive
income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements The procedures selected depend on the audltors
iudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its
profit for the year (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

The audited standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017, was carried out and
reported by Dalal Doshi & Associates, vide their unmodified audit report dated 26th May 2017, whose
report has been furnished to us by the management and which has been relied upon by us for the
purpose of our audit of the financial statements. Our audit report is not qualified in respect of this
matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order;

IIl.  Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c} The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss {including other comprehensive income), the
statement of cash [lows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder;



€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2] of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us ;

i,  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements, if any;

il. =~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required te be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

FORL.]. KOTHARI & CO
Firm Registration No. 105313wW
Chartered Accountants

LALIT KOTHARI
Partner
Membership No.: 30917

Place: Mumbai
Date : 21st June, 2018
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LIMITED ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31St MARCH 2018

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any fixed assets
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i) of the Order is not applicable.

(ii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any inventory
during the year, Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ili) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv)} The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

V) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the
extent notified. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing, undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income-tax, sales
tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory
dues, wherever applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There was an amount of
tax deducted at source of ¥ 74,219 and interest on late payment of taxes of I
1,23,412 outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period exceeding six
months from the date they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax,
Value Added Tax and Cess as at the Balance Sheet date.

{viii) On the basis of records examined by us and the information and explanation given to us,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution, bank
or debenture holders.

(ix)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.



(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xvi)

by the management, we report that no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.

The Company has not paid / provided managerial remuneration during the year and
hence, the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties are in compliance with
the Section 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required under AS24, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2015.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debenture during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO
Firm Registration No, 105313W
Chartered Accountants

LALIT KOTHARI
Partner
Membership No.: 30917

Place: Mumbai
Date : 21st June, 2018



“ANNEXURE B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DIVINITI PROJECTS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAD). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policics, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the [CAl Those Standards and the Guidance Note rcquire that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated cffectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risks. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalonce Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that;



(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements,
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2018, based on the internal contral over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FORL.]. KOTHARI & CO
Firm Registration No, 105313W

FThartarad Arcniintnnte

LALIT KOTHARI
Partner

Membership No.: 30917
Place: Mumbai

Date : 21st June, 2018



DIVINIT] PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2018

Particulars As at Asat
Note 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
No. ¥ ¥
ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
(a} Financial assets

{i) Investments 3 16,600,982 14,08,229
{b)  Other non-current assets 4 51,46,89,797
{c)  Current tax assets [Net) 5 8,72,896 44,315
Total Non-Current assets 24,73,878 51,61,42,341
Current assets
Financial assets
{i) Cash and cash equivalents 6 234,672 71,389
{ii) Other financial assets 7 585,18,602 568,11,616
Tomal Current Assets 5,87,53,274 5,68,83,005
TOTAL ASSETS 6,12,27,152 57.30,25,34¢6
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a)  Equity share capital 8 5,00,000 5,00,000
(b}  Other equity 9 4,54,04,736 4,91,21,886
Total Equity 4,99,04,736 4,96,21,886
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
{a)  Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 10 51,15,00,000
(b} Deferred Tax Liabilities [Net) 11 2,11,895 1,08,938
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,11,895 51,16,08,938
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilites
(i} Borrowings 10 97,60,998 97,60,998
{iii) Other Ananciat liabilities 12 243,920 1,74,210
(b)  Other currentliabilities 13 11,05,603 18,59,314
Total Current Liabiflities 1,11,10,521 1,17,94,522
Total Liabilities 1,13,22,416 52,34.03,460
TOTAL EQUNTY AND LIABILITIES 6,12,27,152 57.30,25.346
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date For: il
FOR L. ]. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No.105313W
H
Director

DIN:07 129100

PARTNER HAJEEVAN FakamBAN

Membership No. 30917 Director
DIN:03141200

Mumban Mumbai
iYate: 21st june, 2018 Date: 21st fune, 2018




DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND L0SS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2018

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
? L4
INCOME
Other Income 14 96,79,488
Share of Profit / (Loss) of Joint Ventures {1,947) -
TOTALINCOME 96,77,541 -
EXPENSES
Finance Costs 15 90,32,674 2,88,009
Other Expenses 16 1.64.060 86,935
TOTAL EXPENSES 91,96,734 3,74,944
Profit/{Loss) before Tax 4,80,807 (3,74,944)
Tax Expense
Current Tax {95,000) -
Deferred tax (charge) / credit {1,02,957) 27,430
(1,97,957) 27,430
Profit/{Loss) for the Year 2,82,850 (3,47,514)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income 2,82,850 (3.47,514)

Earning per equity share of nominal value of ¥ 10/-

each
Basic and Diluted 17 5.66 {6.95)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date Foran¢ " ' ¥ "7 ' rd
]J H
Director

DIN:07129100

RAJEEVAN PAHAMBAN

Director
Membersnip No. U1/ DIN:03141200
Mumbai Mumbai

_Date: 21st June, 2018 Date: 21st June, 2018




DNIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THT YEAR ENDIED 315T MARLH, 2118

The tash Fow Stateimwens fas been pepared undes sindirecf method ws setouiin Indin Accounting Stindard g A

jsratemment of cash ows

Parriculass 31t March, 2018 31st March, 2017
4 ¥
I CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profit/{Loss] before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 4,830,807 [3.74.98)
Add/ {Less) :
Finance costs G0,32,674 288,000
Share of (Profit )/Loss frem investment in partnership firms and Vs 1,947
Interest Income VL 35 808
[2,01, 188} 288,009
Operating proflt belore working capital changes 2,79,619 (86,935)
Add / (Less):
(In¢crease] / Decreasc in trade and other receivables 51,29,82,811 {75,89,308)
Increase / [Decrease] in trade and other payables (5.82,991) 192,148
Direct Taxes paid (10,26,538} -
51,1373.282 (73,97 160]
Ket cash flow from operating actlvites 51,16,52,901 {74,84,095)
Ik i
Inflow / (Outilow} on account of ;
interest income received 92,35,809
Purchase of Long term / Current investments 1192753
Net cash flow [rom investing activities 90,43,056 -
118 isi i i
Inflow / (Outflow) on account of :
Repayment of Lang Term Borrowing {51,15,00,000) -
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowing - 75.93,466
Finance costs paid (HLALO74) {2 8i, 10
Net cash Now from finanding activities (52.05.32,674) 73,05.457
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents ( I+ 11 + 101} 1,631,283 (178,637}
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 71,389 250,028
Cash and cath equivalenty at Lhe end of the year 2,34.672 71,389
Components of cash and cash equivalents [refer note )
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand 1,065 2,530
Balances with banks
- On Current accounts 2 4%.m7 G B54
2,34 672 71,389
Footnote:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repert of even date

Forz
FOR L. ). KOTHARI & ASSDCIATES

Fsrm Registration No.105313W

LALIT KOTHARI
FARTHRER
Meinberihip No 30917

Mumbai
Date: 21st June, 2018

Date:

DIN:07129100

N
Lirsator
DIN:03141200

Mumbai
21st June, 2018




DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Amount
T
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at 01st April, 2016 5,00,000
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2017 5,00,000
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2018 5,00,000
B. OTHER EQUITY
Reserves and Surplus (Amount T}
General reserve | Retained Earnings Tolal

Balance at 1st April, 2016 1,21,000 4,93,48,400 4,94,69,400
Profit / (Loss}) for the year - (3,47,514) (3,47,514)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (3,47,514) (3,47.514)
Balance at 31st March, 2017 1,21,000 4,90,00,886 4,91,21,886
Balance at 1st April, 2017 1,21,000 4,90,00,886 4,91,21,886
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 2,82,850 2,82,850
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,82,850 2,82,850
Balance at 31st March, 2018 1.21,000 4,92,83,736 4,94,04,736

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board
FORL.]. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES

Firm Registration No.105313W
JAINAM NARESH SHAH

Birector
DIN:07129100

LALIT KOTHARI

PARTNER

Membership No. 30917 RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN
Direclor:

DIN:03141200

Mumbai Mumbai
Date: 21st June, 2018 Date: 21st June, 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2018
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a
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b)

HIL

REVENUE RECOGNITION
A. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the Company and the revenue can be

reliably measured and also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate coilection will be made and that there is buyers’ commitment
to make the complete payment.

B. Share of profit / loss from partnership firms / association of persons (AOP) is accounted in respect of the financial year of the Firm /
AOP, during the reporting period, on the basis of their audited/ management reviewed accounts, which is considered as a part of other
operating activity.

C. [nterest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. [nterest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the
effective interest rate applicahle, which is the rate that exactly disconnts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the

financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount con initial recegnition.

Revenues / Income and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A financial instrument js any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ane entity and a linancial liability or equity instrument of another

enticy.
Investments and Financial Assets

. Initial recognition

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to
hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specilied dates to cash
Nlows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount gutstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the eflective interest rate [“EIR) methed. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
A financial asset is subseqnently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in
nrder to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Finmancial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Prolit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable
election based on its business model, for its investments which are classilied as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value throngh OCI is carried at FVTPL.

De-recognition of Financial Assets:
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the

financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes 1its
retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantally all the risks and rewards of owncrship of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to
recognise the financial asset and alse recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

. Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recerded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are
issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.

ii. Financial Liabilities

1. Initial Recognition
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liahilities at FYPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the elfects of transactions of a non-cash

nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valne.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as resnlt of past event and it is probable that an
outflow of embodying economic benefits of resonrces will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined
based on best estimate required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision dne to the passage of time is recopnised as a [inance cost.

Contingent liabitities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence wonld be confirmed by the
DCCUTTENCE or non-gccurrence of one or mere uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. & contingent liability
also arises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUCEMENTS

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign cnrrency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs
{(""MCA™) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21,
Foreigncurrency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or incnme, when an entity has received or paid advance
consideration in a foreign cnrrency.

The amendment will come into force from 1 April 2018. The Company exposure towards foreign cnrrency transation is minimal, hence the
impact on the financial statements and effect on adoption of Ind AS 21 is expected to be insignilicant,

Ind AS115

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Aflairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018
{"amended rules"). As per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supcrsedes Ind AS 11, “Construction
contracts” and Ind AS 18, "Revenue” and is applicable for all accounting pericds commencing on or after 1 April 2018,

Ind AS 115 intraduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should
be recognised when [or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be
entitled. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from the entity's contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch -
up approach}
The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The eflect on adoption of IND AS
115 is expected to be insignificent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

4. Other assets

Non-current
Capital Advances to
- Related parties (Refer footnote)
Total
Footnote :

The estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of capital advances)
is ¥ Nil. (P.Y.: ¥ 99,14,60,800/-) however, during the year the said contract has been cancelled and the advance has been

received back.

5. Current tax assets (Net)

Advance Tax paid for the Current Year
Total

6. Cash and cash eguivalents

Balances with banks:
- in current accounts
Cash on hand
Total

7. Other financial assets

Current

Other Advances and Receivables
Advar.ces recoverable
- Related parties (Refer note 20}
- Others
Current Account Balances in Partnership Firms and Joint
Ventures (Refer note 20)

Other receivables from a related party(Refer note 20)
Total

As at Asat
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
¥ ¥
- 514,689,797
- 514,689,797

872,896 44,315
872,896 44,315
233,607 68,859
1,065 2,530
234,672 71,389
630,136 684,637
850,000 850,000
55,274,361 53,589,308
1,764,105 1,687,671
58,518,602 56,811,616
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Asat As at
31st March, 2018 J1st March, 2017
v €

9. Other equity
General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 121,000 121,000
Add/{Less):
Transfer from profit and loss account
Balance at the end of the year 121,000 121,000
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 49,000,886 49,348,400
Profit attributable to the owners of the company 282,850 {347,514
Balance at the end of the year 49,283,736 49,000,886

Total 49,404,736 49,121,886
10. Borrowings
Non-Curren
Secured

Term Loans
- From financial institutions (Refer Footnote) - 511,560,000

Total 511,500,000

Footnote :

The Company has entered in to triparty agreement in previous year with Twenty Five South Realty Limited and Indiabulls
Housing Finance Limited, in accordance with the terms of the agreement interest on long term borrowings shall be paid by
Twenty Five South Realty Limited till the date of Possession, during the year the same has been repaid.

The security charge for the aforesaid term loan from financial institution is yet to be released as on reporting date.

Unsecured

(il Loans repayabie ondemand:
- From Related Party (Refer note 20) 1,431,532 1,431,532
- From Companies 8,329,466 8,329,466

Total 9,760,998 9,760,998




DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

13. Other current liabilities

urr

Other payables :

- Statutory dues
Total

As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
L ¥
11. Deferred Tax balances
The following 1s the analysis of deferred tax (liabilities)/asset presented in the balance sheet
Deferred Tax Liability {211,895) (108,938)
Total (211,895) (108,938)
Recognise in Profit &
2017-2018 Opening Balance Loss Account Closing Balance
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets in relation to :
On account of fair valuation of investments {108,938) (102,957) {211,895)
(108,938) (102,957) (211,895
Recognise in Profit &
2016-2017 Opening Balance Loss Account Closing Balance
Deferred tax (liahilities) / assets in relation to:
On account of fair valuation of investments (136,368) 27,430 {108,938)
{136,368) 27,430 {108,938)
12. Other financial liabilities
Current
Other payables 243,920 174,210
Total 243,920 174,210
Fooinote :

As per infermation available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Mivre
Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered under MSMFD

1,105,603

1,859,314

1,105,603

1,859,314
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Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
4 z
14. Other income
Interest Receved on loan {Reter tosinaore) 9,235,809 -
Excess Provision winlten Back 250,172 .
Gredhitors Balanee written Back 754 -
Gt on b valuation ot Invesiment 192,753 -
Tatal 9,679,488 -
Footnute
Inrerest revewved on foan induaes 3 92 35 809/ from related parties (P.Y.: Nil). Further attention invited to Note 20,
15. Finance costs
Interst Paid {Others) 9,019,467 .
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 13,607 288,009
Total 9,032,674 288,009
16. Other expenses
Rates and taxes 2,500 2,500
Legal and professional fees 77,740 22,663
Other expenses 83,820 61,772
Total 164,060 86,935
Footnote :
Auditor's Renmuneration {included in other expenses) :
Audit Fees 17,500 17,500
GST / Service Tax on ahove 3,150 2,625
Total 20,650 20,125
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31stMarch, 2017
€ 4

17. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 5.66

Basic and Diluted EPS

The earnings and weighted average numher of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earmings per share are as
follows,

Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 282,850

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted 50,000

earnings per share

18. Contingent Liabilities (Not Provided For:}

The Company does not have any contingent liability as on balance sheet date, as certified by the management and relied upon by the

auditors,

19. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of current assets, non current assets, non current liabihties and

current Liabilities continues to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

(6.95)

(347,514)
50,000
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23. Fair Yalue measurement of Financial Instruments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

31st March 2018 31stMarch 2017

FVPL FVOC(l Amortised Cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost
i LA
Investments 15,90,982 10,000 13,98,229 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents 234,672 - 71,389
Qther financial assets - 5,85,18,602 - 56811616
Total of Financial Assets 15,90,982 - 5,87,63,274 13,98,229 - 5,68,93,005
Borrpwings - 97.60,998 52,12,60,998
Trade payables - :
Other Financial liabilities 243920 1,74,210
Total of Financial Liabilities - - 1,00,04,918 - - 52,14,35.208

i) Fair Value hierarchy

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring

. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
fair value measurements
At 31st March, 2018
Financial Assets
lavestments as at 31st March, 2018 - 15,490,982 15,980,982
Total Financial Assets - - 15,90,982 15,90,982
At 31stMarch, 2017
Financial Assets
Investments as at 31st March, 2017 - 13,98,229 13,98,229
Total Financial Assets - - 13,98,229 13,98,229

This section explains the judgements and estimates in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value,
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Level 3

f one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observahle market data, the instruments is included in level 3. During the year ended 31st March 2018, the company
Was fair valued its investments. Since valuation of investments are not based on inputs from ohservable market data, same has been classified in Level 3.

i) Valuation technique and process used to detemine fair value

The fair value of the financial instrument is determined using book value method.

Changes in Level 3 items for the year ended 31st March, 2017 and 31st March, 2018

Investments Total
As at 1st April, 2016 1,398,229 1,398,229
Gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss
As at 31st March, 2017 1,398,229 1,398,229
Gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss 192,753 192,753
As at 31st March, 2018 1,590,982 1,590,982
Footnote .

Inyvestments i Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank lunuted and Suraksha Realty Limited have been measured at fair value using the book value method in the financial year
2016 and 2017 However, the balance sheet of these entities were not available for fair valuation for the financial year 2018 Hence, fair value for the inancial year 2{117 has
heen arried forward (o the financial year 2017 as the management t of the opinion thal there 1~ no significant change.

As per our report of even date For and on bebalf of the hoard

FOR L. ]. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration Nn.105313W
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS jarNAM naredn dnAH
Director
DIN:07129100

LALIT KOTHARI

JIARTNER RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN

vlembership No. 30917 Director
DIN:03141200

vdumbai Mumba:

Yate: 21st June, 2018 Date: 21st June, 2018]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GUJARAT AKRUTI - TCG BIOTECH LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of GUJARAT AKRUTI - TCG
BIOTECH LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2018, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement
of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to
as “Ind AS financial statement”).

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
(including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules iscued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentaticn of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan

Jifice: 306, Zee Nayak buiiding, M.G. Re=A Nnp. Pritam restaurant, Vile Parle East, Mumbai - 400{057.
el.: 022-26127174, +91 82914 19381 *mail: adatia.niraj@gmail.com



and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at
31st March 2018, and its profit for the year (including other comprehensive income), its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matters

Attention is invited to Note 28 in the financial statements with regards to status of Biotech
Project of the company, management believes that the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment is higher than its carrying value due to which impairment is not required.

Our report is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter

The audited standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017, was carried
out and reported by Dalal Doshi & Associates, vide their unmodified audit report dated 25th May
2017, whose report has been furnished to us by the management and which has been relied
upon by us for the purpose of our audit of the standalone financial statements. Qur audit report
is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the

Central Government of India in terms section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order;



IL

Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income}, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule
issued thereunder;

(e) Based on the information received and explanations given to us, except two Directors,
none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31t March, 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us::

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements, if any;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. ~There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

FOR NIRA} D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No.: 129486W
Chartered Accountants

NIRAJ D.ADATIA
Partner

Membership No.: 120844
Place : Mumbai

Date : 19 June, 2018



ANNEXURE “A” REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GUJARAT AKRUTI -

TCG BIOTECH LIMITED ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31st MARCH, 2018;

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state that: -

Q)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

¢) As per the information and explanation given to us, lease deed and transfer
formalities with respect to lease hold land included in immovable properties are yet
to be executed.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any inventory
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any
guarantees or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the
extent notified. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income-tax,
sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory
dues, wherever applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There was an
amount of service tax of ¥ 1,11,625 and interest on late payment of taxes of ¥
19,721 and TDS of ¥ 52,781 and interest on late payment of taxes of ¥ 9,448
outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period exceeding six
months from the date they became payable.









“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GUJARAT AKRUTI - TCG BIOTECH LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GUJARAT AKRUTI - TCG
BIOTECH LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note"} and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risks. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A



company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that;

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial repoerting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR NIRA] D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No.: 129486W
Chartered Accountants

NIRA] D. Aval1ia
Partner
Membership No.: 120844

Place : Mumbai
Date : 19%June, 2018






GU)rnn s AKRL o2 - TCG BIUTEUH LEMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
X X

INCOME
Revenue from Operations 14 888,627 17,175
Other Income 15 2,749 1,758
TOTAL INCOME 891,376 18,933
EXPENSES
Costs Of Construction / Development 16 149,995 151,000
Finance Costs 17 1,967 8,796
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 18 328,050 328,050
Other Expenses 19 750,691 1,451,850
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,230,703 1,939,696
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (339,327) (1,920,763)
Tax Expense
Deferred tax (charge) / Credit 11,668,838 {161,300)
Profit/(lLoss) for the Year 11,329,511 (2,082,063}
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive income 11,329,511 (2,082,063)
Earning per equity share of nominal value of % 10/- each 20

Basic 226.59 (41.64)

Diluted 226.59 (41.64)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the filiasiia: Statements
As per our report of even date 3
FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 129486W I
Chartered Accountants r

}

NIRAJ ADATIA i
Partner r
Membership No.: 120844 3
Mumbai Mumbai

Date: 19th June, 7N18

Date: 19th June, 2018




GUJARAT AKRUTI - TCG BIOTECH LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2018

Pate: 19th june, 2018

Particulars 31st March, 2018 31stMarch, 2017
X X
[ CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit/[loss} before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss (339,327) (1,920,763)
Add/(Less] :
Nepreciation 328,050 328,050
Finance Costs 1,967 8,796
Interest [ncome (1,893) (1,758}
328,124 335,088
Operating profit before working capital changes (11,203) (1,585,675)
Add / (Less) :
Increase/(Pecrease) in trade and other payables (256,974) 1,990,748
(256,974) 1,990,748
Net cash flow [roin operating activities (268,177) 405,073
11 CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Inflow /(OQutflow) on account of : - -
Net cash lfow from investing activities - -
11l CASH FLOW FINANCING ACTIVITI
Inflow/(Outllow) on account of:
Finance Costs Paid {1,967) fa7aer
Net cash ffow from financing activities (1,967) e
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (1 + 11 + i) (270,144) 396,277
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 524,675 128,398
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 254,531 524,675
Components of cash and cash equivalents {Refer note 5}
Cash on hand 95,197 94,341
Balances with banks
- On Current accounts 159,334 430,334
254531 524,675
Footnote : .
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS- 7) statement of cash
flows.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial sta.curcnts
As per our report of even date
FOR NIRAJ D, ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 129486W
Chartered Accountants
NIRA] ADATIA
Partner
Membership No.: 120844
Mumbai Mumbai

Date: £9th June, 2018







GUJARAT AKRUTL - TCG HIOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Palicies.

1.1 Company Overview
Gujarat Akruti - TCG Biotech Litited s an uniisted limited Company damiciled m India, incorporated under tie Companies Act, 1956, The Company is engaged in
the business of developinent, Constructen, rmdt ketng and mawtenance of a bio-techneiogy park in the state of Guiarat. The Company was incotporated on 2Ath
May, 2007 a5 a oint venture between Gujarat State Motechnelopy Mission, Hubtown Limited and TCE Urban Jnfrastructure Holding Private Limated to carry an
the business of develapment, construction, marketing and matstenance of a bio-technoiegy park in the state o3 Gujarat, as per the Memorandum of Understanding
dated 5th March, 2007. The Company 15 yet tn comumence COMIMerclal acnvities.

1.2 The financial statements are approved for 1ssue hy the Company's Board of Directors on 19th june, 2018,

Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company

Basis of preparation of (inancial Statements

{i} Compliance with Ind AS

These tinanciat statements have been prepared in accordance with the [ndian Acceunting Standards (hereinafter reterrest to as the 'Ind AS') as nntified by
Ministry of Corpnrate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {'Act") vaad with of the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amnended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting pniicies are applied consistently to ail the periods presented in the financial statements.

(ii} Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared nu a hustorival cost basis, except for the following:

1)

certain financial assets and liainlities that are ineasured at far value;

2] assets held for sale - measured at lower at carrving amount nr fair value less cost tn seli:
3] defined henefit pians - plan assets measured at faic value:

{iii} Current non-current classification

All the assets and liabihities have Leen classitied as cunient or non-carrent, wherever apphcable, as per the operating <vele of the Company as per the guidance set
out in Schedule (1) ta the Act. Operating cvcle tor the business acuvinies of the Company covers the duration ot the project/ contract mcluding the defect habaloe
period wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of recervables [including retentivn monies, if any) withun the credut period nonnally applicahle to
the respertive propect.

Significant accounting judgements, estitnates and assumptions

The preparation nt tinancial statements in conformity with the recngnition and measurement pnnciples of {nd AS requires management to make
judgements, eslimates and assumptions that affect the reparied balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabihitics and the accompanyinyg disclosures,
and the disclosure nt cnnongent Lizbilities, Uncertainty ahout these assumptions and estimuates could result in putcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in futore periods.

a) Judgements

Classification of property

The company determines whether a property is classified as investment preperty or inventory property. Investment preperty cninprises land and
buildings that are not accupied substanhially for use by, or in the eperations of, the company, ner tor sale in the ordinary eourse of business, but are held
primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are suhstantially rented to tenants and nnt intended to be sold i the ordinary
course at business, Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course ot business. Principally, these are properties that the
company develops and intends to sell before ar on completinn ot construction.

b) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions cnncerning the future and nther key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustinent tn the carrying amounts of assets and liabilifes within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions ahout future
developments, hnwever, may change due ta market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the contral nf the Company. Such changes are
reflected 1n the assumptions when they occur.

Revenue recognition
Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that it is probable that the econamic benefits wilb accrue to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured
and also when [Uis reasanably certain that the ultimate collechion will he made and that there is buyers’ commitment to make the complete payinent

A, Revenue from Construction/Development Activity
Revenue 18 recognised to the extent that it s prohable that the economic benefits will accrue to the company and the revenue can he reliahaly
measured and also when 1t 15 reasnnably certain that the sltimate collection will be made and that there is buyer's rommitment tn make the complete
payment
The Company has purchased land on leasehold basis from Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation tor the purpose of building and executing
wark thereon lor development of industrial park. The same will be suh leased to custnmers for lease rental atter Lhe lease deed and ather tnrmalities
are executed,

B.  InterestIncome
Iinterest incoine from a tinancial asset 1s recogized when it 1s probable that the economic benefits wall flow ta the Cnmpany and the amount of
inconie can be measured reliahly. Interest incunie is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal nutstanding a¢ the effective interest rate
applicable, which 15 the rate that exdctly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life nf the tinancial asser to that asset's net
carrying amout on initial recognition.

C.  Others:
Other revenues / ncnmes and cnsts / expenditure are accounted an accrual, as they are earned or incurred.



CUJARAT AKRUTL - TCG B SH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOA THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2018
Property plant and eguipment, investment property and depreciation / ammaortisation

.

A

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cnst of acquisttion oy construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment .nsses, if any.

B.  Depreciation s provided on the straight hine muthnd nn the basis of estinrated useful life of the asset in the manoer specified in Sthedule U Lo the

Fi
A
A

Companies Act, 2013, Deprectation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata frem the month of such addition, or
upto the moenth of such sale /disposal, as the cise may be.

Asset Category Estimated useiul life {in Years}
Compound Wall 30
Computers & Laptaps 3

Leasehold land will be amortized over the balance period of lease alter the lease deed and other transier formalities are executed,
Capital work-in-progress, representing expenditure incurred in respect of assets under development and not ready to use for their intended use, are
carried at cost, Cost includes related acquisition expenses, canstruction cost, related borrowing cost and other direct expenditure.

nancial Instniments

financial instrument is any contract that gives rise te a inancial asset of one entity and a financial liabibty or equity instrument of another entity.
Investmeats and Financial Assets
. Initial recognition
Fimancial assels are suhsequently measured at amortised cost it these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective 10 hold
these assets i urder to collect contractual cash Nows and the contractual terms af the tinancial asset pive rise on specified dates to cash lows that
are solely payments of prsupal and interest on the principal armount outstanding. interest income from these (inanciai assets is included in finance
incame using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method, Impairment gaing nr Josses atising on these assets are recognised 1n the Statemnent of Profit
aod Loss.
il. Subsequent measurement
For purposes ot subsequent mieasurement. finanaial assets are dlassified in fullowimg rategories:
a) Financlal Asscts at Amortised Cost
A financial asser is subsequently measured at amornsed cost if 1t is held within 4 business model whose objective is to hnld the asset n order to
coliect coptractual cash Mlows and the contractual terms of the linancial asset give rise on specitied dates to cash flows that are solely payments ot
principal and interest nn the principal amount nutstanding,
b) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Yalue
Financial assets are measured At tair value through OCI if these Hnanrial assets are held within a business model with an nbjective ta hold chese
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these tinancial assets 1nd the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash Mows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount putstanding, Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCL, except tor the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revepue and foreign exchange paios and losses which are
recognised in the Statement ol Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has madoe an irrevocable electinn based vh its business model,
for its investinents which are «lassified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial asset not tneasured at amurtised cnst or at fair value through OCl 15 carnied at FVTPL.

De-recognition of Financial Assets:

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the vootractual rights to the cash flnws trom the asset expire, or it transfers the tinancial
asset and substantially all risks and rewards of mwnership ot the asset to another entity. if the Cnmpany neither traonsfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues tn control the transterred asset, the Company recagnizes s retained interest in the assets and an
assaciated hability for amounts it may have tn pay.

If the Conpany retains substantially ad the risks and rewards oi ownership nt a rransferred hnancial asset, the Company contiours t0 recognise the
financial asset and alsu recogmises a coliateralised burrnwing for the proceeds received,

Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities

Financial liahilities and equity instruments isstted by the Company are classified according ta the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitiuns of a tinancial liability and an equity instrament.

. Equity Instruments

An equity instrwnent is any contract that evidences a resulual interest i the assets nf the Company afier detwecting all of its hahilities, Equity
instruments which ave issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of divect 1ssue cnsts. Equiry instrutnents which are issued for
consideration other than cash are recerded at tair value of the eqiity instrument.

Financial Linbilities

1. Initial Recognikion

Financial hiabilities are classitied, at initial recognitior, as financial Liabllities at FYPL, Inans and bariswings and payables as appropriate. All financial
liabilities are recognised initialiy at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payahles, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

2. Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financiab habilities depends on their classification, as described below:

- Financial liabilities at FYTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial habilities held fnr trading and heancial habilities designated wpon initial recngnition as at FVEPL.
Financial liabilines are classified as keld for trading if they are incurred for the purpose ol repurchasing in the near term, Gams or losses on
lizhilities held for trading are 1 ecognised in the Statement of Pro fit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company ave thnse contracts that require a payment to he made to reimburse the halder for a toss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails ta make a payment when due in accardance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised wmitially as a Lability at fair value, atdjusterd tor trapsaction costs that are directly attrsburable to the issuance nf the
guarantee. Subsequently, the hability 1s measured at the higher ol the amouni of loss aliewance determined as per impairment reguirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cunulative amortisation. Amortisatinn s recognised as tinance incnme 1n the Statement ot Protit and Less,

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After imitial recognition, interest:hearing toans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amaused cost using the EIR methud. Any difterence
hetween the praceeds (net of ransaction rosts) and the seltlement or redemption of harrewings is recogmsed nver the terin ut the horrowings in
the Statement ot Profit and Louss. Amortised cost is calculated by takiog into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or custs that
are an mlegtal part nf the EIR. The EIR amorusation is included as finance costs 0 the Statenent of Profit and Loss.
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3. De-recagnitien of Financial Liabilities
Finanetal habitities are de-recognised when the abligating specitied i the cantract is discharged, cancelled or expired, When an exssting financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantizlly different terms, or the termns of an existing liability are substantially moditied,
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recogmition of the original liability and recognitinn of a new liability. The difterence i the
Lespective carrving amnunts s recogmsed inthe Statement ot Protit and Loss.

C.  OHsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial Lahilites are offset and the net amount is reported o the Balance Sheet 1f there is a currently entorceable legal right ta
offset the recngmised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settie the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecagnition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash fiows trom the financial asset expires ar it transfers the finacial asset
and the transfes qualifies for derecoghition under IndAS 109. A financial liability {or a part of a financial \iability) is derecognized Irom the Company's
Ralance Sheet when the phligation specitied i the contract s discharged or cancelled nr expires,

Impairment

. Financial assels

The Conipany measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on histerical trend, industry practices and the bosiness enviconment in
which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis, The impairment methndology applied depends nn whether there has bees a significant increase
in credik risk.

Non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 1s an indicatton that an asset may be impaired, If any indicatinn 2x)5t5 or swhen annual
impairment testing tor an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recavecable amount, An asset’s recoverable amoeunt is the higher of an
asset's or cash-generatiog unit's (CGU) Fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recnverable amaunt 18 determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those frnm other assets or gioups nf assets. When the carrying amount ot
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 18 considered impaired and is wrirten down tn its recnverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estirnated tuture cash finws are discointed to their present value using a pre-tax discnunt rate that retlects current market
assessments of the tme value of money and the risks specific to the asset. [n determining tair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into accnunt, If no such transacuons can he identified, an appropriate valuatine mndel is used. These calculatians are corrnbnrated by valuatinn
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies ar nther available fair value indicatnrs.

tmpairment losses, meluding impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and Inss.

Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, plant and equipment are evaiuated lor recoverabihity wheneer events or changes in circumslances mdicate thal their carrying amnunts may not
be vecoverabie, For the purpose of imparrment testing, the recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of the fair valee less cost to sell und the value-in-use] is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets, In such
cases, the recoverahle amount is deteriined tor the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a resull of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive ubligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is
probable that an outflnw of cconomic benefits will be required ro settle the abligatinn, Provisions are determined by discnunting the expected future rash
Rows at a pre-tax rate that retlects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Taxation

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is basea on taxable profit for the year. Taxable protit difters from profit betore tax' as reported in the financial statement of
profit and loss hecauseat items of Incame or expense that are taxable or deductble in other years and items that are never taxahle ur deductible. The
Cmmpany's current tax 18 caleulated using vates that have been enacted or substantively enarted by the end of the reporting perind.

In case the Company 15 liable to pay income tax u/s 115§B of Incume Tax Act, 1961 {L.e, MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of pnrmal income tax 1y
recognized as an asset [MAT Credit entitlement) nuly if there is convincing evidence tor realization o1 such asset during the specihed period. MAT credit
entitlement is reviewed at each Balanre Shect date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recugnized on temparary diterences between the carrying amnounts of assets and nabilties in the financial statements and the
rorresponding tax bases used it the computation nf taxahte protit, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized fur all taxahle temporary differences.
Deferred tax dssets are generally recognized for all deductible ivmporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable prefits will be avaiiahle
against which lhusc deductible temparat y differences can be utilized,

The carrving amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end ot each reporung period and reduced tu the extent that it 1s ni longer prebable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are medsured at the tax rates that are expected te apply in the peviad in which the liability is settled or the asset
realized, hased an tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end af the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax halnlicees and assers reflects the tax consequeores that would follow from the manner in whech the Campany expects, at
the end of the repucting peried, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilites.

Current and defeered tax for the year

Current and defereed tax are recognized 1n profit ar loss, excepr when they relate to ilems that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in nther #n - ~=rboe-d

S TR PR E ST Tt wneeotfyely,
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Borrawings and Borrowing costs

Harrowing are tntally recognised at Net off transation cost muurred and measured at amorgsed cost. Any difference benveen the proceeds { net nt
transation costs] and the redemption amount is recogmsed in statetment ol prolit and Ivss over ther period of the borrowings using the effective interes!
method.

Inlerests and other barrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per eifective interest rate attributable o gualifying assets, which takes
substantial perind of time to get ready for its intended usc are allacated as part of the rost of construction / development at such assets. Such allocation is
suspended during extended periods in which active development s interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially
rumplete, Investment ncome earved on the temporary investment of specitic barrpwings pending their expenditure on yualifying assets 15 deducted from
the borrowmg costs eligible tor capitalisation. Cther borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares autstanding during the year. The weighted ayverage number of equity shares outstanding during the vear 1s adjusted for events of bonus
issue, if any.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the vear attributable to equity sharehnlders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjnsted tor the effects of all dilotive potential equity shares.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the mdivect method, whereby prafit far the perind is adjusted for the effects ot transactions of a nan cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash recerpes ne payments and item of income or eapenses assotiated with investing or financing cash
flows, The cash lows {rom operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash eqoivalent in the halance sheet compnise cash at banks and on hand apd short-term deposits with an onginal maturity ot three months ar
less, which are subject tn an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the porpose of the statement of cash (inws, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shnrt-term depasits, as delined above, net of ourstanding
bank nverdrafts as they are considered an integral part nf the Company's cash managetnent.

Foreign currency transactions

A. Alltransactivns in foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency, based un closing rates of exchange prevalent on the dates of the relevant
transactinns,

B.  Monetary assers and liabilities i foreipn currency, outstanding as an the Balance Sheet date , are converted in reporting currency at the closing
rates of exchange prevailing nn the said date, Resultant gain o7 10ss is recognized during the yeau 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Non mnnetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are carried at the exchanpe rate prevalent on the date of the transaction.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provisinn 1s recogmized when an enterprise has 2 present obligation (legal or constructive] as result of past event and it 15 probable that an outilnw of
embodying econemic benefits af resources will be required to setile a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based nn best estimate
riquired to settle each obligation a1 ach balance sheet date. If the effect uf the time value of money 1s material, provisions are discaunted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the lianility. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage af
time is recngmsed as a finance cose.

Contingent babilities are disclosed 18 respert of pnssible nbligations that arise trom past events, whnse existence would be corhrined by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one nr ore uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. & contingent liability also arises, in rare cases,
where a ljability cannot be recognised because it cannnt be measured refiably.

Cantingent assets are neither recognised nor disciosed in the financial statements.

Recent accounting pronouncements
Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 201, Ministry nf Corporate Affaws (""MCA™) has
nesified the Cumpaties (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreigncurrency transactions and
advanie considaration which clariies the date of the transaction for the purpose of detertnining the exchange rate to use on juitial recognition of the
related asser expense orintome, when an entity has recelved or paid advance cansiderstion in a foreign rurrency.
The amendnient will come into torce from 1 Aprit 2018, The Company exposure towards loreign currency transation s minimal, hence the impact on the
tinancial statements and etfect on adophion of knd AS 21 1s expected to be insignificart.
ind AS 115
1o March 2018, the Mintstry of Corporate Atfairs has notified the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 ("amnended rules”). As
per the amended vules, Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with custoniers” supersedes ind A5 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind A5 1B, “Revenue”
and ix applicablo tor alt accounting perinds commencing un or atrer 1 April 2018.
Ind AS 115 introduces a new [ramework of five step model for the anaivsis ot revenue mansactions. The model specifies that revenue should be
recopmsed when (nr as) an entity teanster contrnl of goads or services to a custumer at the amount to which the entiry expects to be entitled, Further the
new standard requires enhanced disclosures akout the mature, amount, tming and uncertainly of revenue and cash Mlows arising frem the entity’s
enntracts with custimers. The new revenue standard is aipplicable to the Company from I Aprl 2018,
The standard permits twn possible inethods of transition:

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the siandard will be applied retrospectively to each prioc reporting periodd presented in
accurdance with Ind AS B - Accounting Pnlicies Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Retrospecuvely with cumulative effect of initmally applying the standard recogrized at the date of imtial applicaticn {Cumulative catch - np approach)

The Company 1s evaluatuig the requirement uf the antesdinent and the impact on the fomo it tenenenans The affact oo sdaption of IND AS 115 is
expected to be insignificent
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3. Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at 31st March, 2016
Additions
Balance at 31st March, 2017

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance at 31st March, 2016
Depreciation expense

Balance at 31st March, 2017

Carrying amount as on 31st March 2017

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at 1st April, 2017
Additions
Balance at 31st March, 2014

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance at 1st April, 2017

Depreciatinn expense

Balance at 315t March, 2018

Carrying amount as at 31st March 2018

*Reter nate 2(V)C.

4. Other financial assets
Neon-current
Bank deposits

Security deposits
Total

Lurrent
Other Advances and Receivables
Interest accrued on fixed depuosits
Taotal

5. Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks-
-tn current accounts
Cash on hand

Total

Computers anil

(in%)

Capital work-in-

Leasehold Land” Compound Wall Total o
Laptops Progress
(Retfer note 28)
171,496,664 10,635,281 17,660 182,149,105 09.4.12,275
- - - - 15,044,367
171,496,664 10,635,281 17,164 182,149,105 84,388,642
- 3,206.071 17.160 3,223,231 -
- 328,050 - 328,050 -
- 3534121 17,160 3,551,281 -
174 AL Laq 7,101,160 - 178,597,824 84,388,642
Leaschold land Campound Wall Cumputersrand Total Capital “i,m_‘]j(_m-
Laptops progress
171,496,604 10,635,281 17.160 182,149,105 A4.3R8,642
. - - - 17,568,051
171,496,664 10,635,281 17,160 182,149,105 101,956,683
- 3534521 17160 31551.2B1 -
- 328,050 - 328,050
- 3862171 17,160 3,879,331 -
171,496,66 " 6,773,110 - 178,269,774 101,956,693
Asar As at
JistMarch, 2018 31st March, 2017
X X
22,184 15,270
207,600 207,600
229,788 226,870
4,254 5,278
4,254 ,278
159,334 430,334
b5, 197 94,341
R4 531 524,675




GUJARAT axkuUTI - TCG BIOTECH LIF"" 3D

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2018

Asat As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
= %
6. Share capitat
Authorised Share Capital:
3,000,000 [P.Y. - 3,000,000} Equity Shares of 10/- each 30,000,000 30,000,000
B00,000 (P.Y. - 8,00,000} Preference Shares of  100/- each 80,000,000 0,000,000
Total 110,000,000 114,000,000
Issued and subscribed capital comprises :
50,000 {1.Y. - 50,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up 500,000 500,000
Total 500,000 300,000
a) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Fully paid equity shares
Number of Snare Capital
) 2
Balance at 1st April, 2016 50,000 500,000

Add : [ssued during the year . -
Less ; Bought back during the year - -
Balance at 31st March, 2017 50,000 500,000
Add . [ssued during the year - -
Less : Bought back during the year

Balance at 31st March, 2018 50,000 500,000

b} Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Shares

The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10 per share, Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the
event uf liquidation of company, the halders of equity shares will he entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of cquity shares held by the sharcholders.

¢) Equity Shares heldby its holding company or its ultimate holding company, subsidaries or assocoiates of the holding company aor the ultimate
holding company

As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017
No of shares held % holding No of shares held % hotding

Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 37,000 74% 37,000 74%
Total 37,000 T4% 37,000 T4%

d) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares

As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017
No of shares held % halding No of shares held % holding

Fully paid equity shares
Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 37.000 74% 37,000 74%
TCG Urban Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 13,000 26%, 13,000 26%

Total 50,000 100% 50,000 100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2018

Asat As at
31st March, 2018 31stMarch, 2017
X X
7. Convertible Instruments classified as Equity
Convertible Debentures classified as Equity
1,615,269 (PY. : 1,615269) Zero Coupon Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures of the face value of % 100 each rorEasnna 1o s nan
Total
Footnote :

1,615,269, zero coupon compulsorily convertible debenture of ¥ 100 each to be convertible on or before 28th March, 2020,
i.e. not later than five years from the date of allotment. These debentures will be converted into 16,152,690 number of equity
shares of face value of %10/-,

As per Ind AS 32 & 109, zero coupon compulsorily convertible debentures of ¥ 100 each have been classified as equity since
the issuer holds an unconditional right to avoid a cash outflow. Hence, it has heen regrouped under equity.

8. Other Equity

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year (85,725,639} (83,643,576)

Profit attributable to the owners of the company 11,329,511 (2,082,063)

Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings - -
Total [74‘01’1&.1 0% !Dr.'."r"l[' £INn%

9. Borrowings

Current
Secured
Debentures
768,919 (P.Y.: 768,919) 0% Secured Reedeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures of the face value of ¥ 100 each (Refer Footnote and Note 122,392,958 104,824,907
24)

122,392,958 104,824,907

Footnote ;

768,919, 0% Debenture having reedeemabie balance of ¥ 7,68,91,900 are to be reedeemed at the end of five years from the
date of allotment at the latest at 28th March,2020. These debentures are secured by creation of first charge by way of the
receivahles from the project of the company and the project being presently executed and developed at Savil ,near Vadodara,
Gujarat . These debentures will be redeemed at a premium of ¥ 117 each. The debentures are valued at amortised cost, using
EIR method using 16,76% as the effective interest rate which has been derived by compounding the face value of the
debentures to the redeemable value over a period of 5 years. The interest calculated is capitalised to Capital-WIP.

10. Other financial liabilities

Non-current

Retention money payable 732,391 732,391
Total 732,391 732,391

Current

Business Advance received from related party(Refer Note 24) 773,071 773,071

Other payables 24,303,450 24,083,111

Total 25,07+ 521 24,856,182




GUJARAT AKRUTI - TCG BIOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 201B

11. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

‘The following is the analysis of deferred tax liabilities / [asset) presented in the balance sheet

Deferred Tax Liability
Deferred Tax {Asset)
Total

2017-18
Deferred tax liabilities / {assets) in relation to:
0On account of Depreciation (WDV)
On account of Capital work-in-progress
On account ot Unamortised Premiium on Debentures
On account of convertibte Borrowings
On account of Premium Payahle on Debentures
On acccount of Other ltems
Total

2016-17
Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) in relation to :
On account of Depreciation (WDV)
On account of Capital work-in-progress
On account of Unamortised Premium on Debentures
On account of Borrowings
On account of Premium Payable on Debentures
On acccount of Other Items
Total

AS at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
x =
53,831,452 78,400,356
(20,476.186) (33,376,252)
33,355,266 45,024,104

Recognised in profit or

Opening Balance loss Closing Balance

1,031,606 (242,416) 789,190
(2,786,776) 603,934 (2,162,842)
(18,680,745) 9,414,502 (9.2606,243)
46,234,174 (16,357,520) 29,876,654

31,134,576 (7.968,969) 23,165,607
(11,908,731) 2,881,631 (9,027,100}
45,024,104 (11,668,838) 33,355,266

Recognised in profit or

Since the taxable income is negative, there is no current tax payable; hence reconcitiation has not been provided.

12. Trade payables

Due to Micro & Small enterprises (refer footnote a}
Due to others (refer footnote b)
Total

Footnote:

Opening Balance loss Closing Balance
986,696 44,910 1,031,606
(1,767,107 {1,019,669) (2,786,776)
(24,907,661} 6,226,916 (18,680,745)
51.441,421 (5.207.247) 46,234,174
il134,576 - 31,134,576
(12,025,121} 116,390 {11,908,731)
44,862,804 161,300 45,024,104
4,603,159 5,157,927
4,603,159 5,157,927

(a) As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small
Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered under MSMED Act, and the same

has been relied upon by the auditors.

(b) Trade payables includes ¥ 4,41,942 (As at 31st March, 2017: 4,39,487) due to related parties. Further, attention is invited to Note 24,

13. Other Liabilities
Currept

Advance from customers
Deposits (Unsecured)
Other payables :
- Statutory dues

Total

5,300,000 5,300,000
1,350,000 1,350,000
273,971 “96,517
6,923,973 0,046,517
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2018

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
X b
20. Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic Earnings Per Share 226.59 (41.64)
Diluted Earnings Per Share ** 226.54 {41.64)
20,1 Basic EPS
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic carnings per share are as follows
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 11,329,511 {2,082,063)]
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 50,000 50,000
200.2 Diluted EPS
‘T'he earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 11,329,511 (2,082,063)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 50,000 50,000

Footnote :

For the purpose ot calculating diluted EPS convertihle instruments (zero coupon compulsorily convertible debentures) are deemed to be converted into

ordinary shares at the heginning of the period.

** Zero coupon compulsorily convertible debentures could potentially not dilute basic earmings per share for the year ended 31st March, 2018, hence
are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share for 2018, because they are antidilutive for the period presented. Diluted EPS is restricted to

the amount of Basic EPS ta the extent the conversion of canvertible instruments prove to he anti dilutive,

21. Contingent Liabilities (Not Provided For) :

Particulars As at

31st March, 2018

As at
31st March, 2017

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts oa account of :

Income Tax Matter with Income Tax Appellate Tribunal u/s 143(3) for 3,570
the F.Y. 2011-12 {AY, 2012-13)
Income Tax Matter with [ncome Tax Appellate Tribunal u/s 143(3) for 4,750

the F.Y, 2012-13 (A Y. 2013-14)

[ncame Tax Matter with tncome Tax Appellate Tribunal u/s 143(3) for 520
the F.Y. 2013-14 (A.Y. 2014-15)

Non Agricultural Tax payable tv Gujarat Industrial Development -
Corporatiun

Footnote;

3,570

4,750

520

14,349,775

The Company does not have any contingent lability as at balance sheet date, other then stated above, as certified by management & relied upon hy the

auditors,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31S8T MARCH, 2018

22. Disclosure of Derivatives

3. Noderivative instrument were outstanding at the end of the year.
b. Uncovered risk in foreign currency are as under :

Cash in Hand

31st March, 2018

31st March, 2017

24. Related Parties Disclosures

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship

Holding Company
Hubtown Limited

Other Major Shareholder
TCG Urban Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited

Hubtown Bus Terminal (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

Related Party relationships are identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors
B. Transitions with Related Parties

Joint Ventures of Holding Company, with whom Transitions have taken place during the year

usb 1,400 1,400
INR 91,062 90,774
EURO 50 50
INR 4,031 3,462

23. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of current assets, current liabilities & loans and advances
continues to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the balance sheet.

Sr. Nature of Transition Holding Other Major Joint Venture of
No, Company Shareholder Holding Company
g 4 2
i. Business Advances received/recovered/adjusted
Hubtown Limited - - -
{200,000) (-] -]
it. Interest Expense Accrued
Hubtown Limited 17,568,051 - -
(15,046,367) (=) )
ifi. On behalf payments received/ adjusted
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Ahmadabad) Private Limited -
{-) () (12.851)
Previous years figures are given in brackets
C. Balance outstanding payables/receivables
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T
a) Unsecured Non- Convertible Debenture
Hubtown Limited 122,352,958 104,824,907
b} Business Advances payable
Hubtown Limited 560,002 560,002
¢) Trade Payables
Hubtown Limited 561,217 561,217
d] Other Receivables
Hubtown Bus Terminal {Ahmedabad) Private Limited 12,851 12,851










Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Halitious Developer Limited

1) Report on the Standalone Financial Statements:

2)

3)

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Halitious
Developer Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March
2018, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprebensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)} with respect to the preparation of
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
the statement of changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 as amended, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility:
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements
based on our audit,

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matter which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the
Order issued under section 143(11) of the Act.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.



4)

5)

6)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2018 and its financial performance incituding
other comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter:

1. Attention is invited to Note No. 17 of the financial statements with regard to
reliance placed by the auditors on certification received from the management with
regard to the disclosure of contingent liabilities given by the Company.

2. Attention is invited to Note No. 18 and 19 of the financial statements with regards
to baiances that are subject to confirmations, reconciliation and adjustments if
any.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report} Order, 2016 (“the Order”} issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143{11} of the Act, we give
in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4
of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and cbtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows
and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financiai statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant

iued thereunder;



e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being appoeinted as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in Annexure B; and

g} with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors}) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. the Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements;

i the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts;

ii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company; and

For Sanket R Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN:

Sanke
Propr
M. No

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20" June, 2018



Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of Halitious Developer Limited of even date}

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

()
(i)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
{vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The company does not have any Fixed Assets during the financial year and as at
the balance sheet date;

The Company does not have any Inventories during the year and as at the balance
sheet date.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has granted any secured or unsecured loans to Cornpanies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in
respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and
securities, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any
unclaimed deposits as at 31% March, 2018 and therefore, the provisions of the
Clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.
According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

a. On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, amounts
deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutery dues
including provident fund, income-tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs,
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited
during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. However, there
were outstanding interest dues of statutory liability and the details of outstanding
as follows:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount in INR
1. Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) Liability 60,000/-

2. Goods and Service Tax (GST) Liability 30,60,000/-

3. Interest on above Statutory Liability 55,79,959/-
Total Statutory Liability 86,99,959/-

b. On the basis of our examination of docurnents and records of the Company, and
explanation provided to us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess;

The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution,
banks, government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initiai public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments} and term loans during the year.

~ iy, paragraph 3 {ix) of the Order is not applicable.



(x)

(xi)

(xii)

{xiii}

{xiv}

(xv}

{(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by
the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit,

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and
details of such transactions have been disciosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year and hence reporting under Clause 3(xiv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934,

For Sanket R Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN:

Sank
Prop
M. N

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20™ June, 2018



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of Halitious Developer Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internai financial controis over financial reporting of Halitious Developer
Limited (“"the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

1)

2)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderiy and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
{the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
mremtee ~=- financial reporting.



3) Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting:
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabitity of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principtes, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

4) Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

5) Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate interpal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Sanket R Shah & Associates
Cha
FRM

San
Pro
M. No.: 152369

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20" June, 2018



"TIALITIOUS DEVELOPER LIMITED
_ACIN: U70101MH2007PLC172784

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°" MARCH 2018

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31st March, 2018 31" March, 2017
T T
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a)  Financial assets
Investments 3 10,000 10,000
(b)  Current tax assets (Net) 4 18,73.433 1,13,433
Total Non-Current assets . 18,83,433 1,23,433
Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 6,57,27,631 4,67,19,631
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 31,434 38,104
Totai Current Assets 6,57,59,065 4,67,57,735
Total assets 6,76,42,498 4,68,81,168
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 7 10,00,000 10,00,000
(b)  Other equity 8 4,17,66,795 2,95,86,445
Total Equity 4,27,66,795 3,05,86,445
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 9 1,08,00,000 1,08,00,000
(i) Trade payables 10 7,18,837 56,238
(iii) Other financial liabilities 11 46,56,508 17,942
(b}  Other current liabilities 12 86,99,958 54,20,543
Total Liabilities 2,48,75,703 1,62,94,723
Total Equity and Liabilities 6,76,42,498 4,68,81,168

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 135703W

SAl
PR(

Meversiup vu. 1oco09

Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R, |

DMRECTOR
DIN: 06843982

KHILEN SHAH
DRECTOR
DIN: 05134932




HALITIOUS DEVELOPER LYMITED
CIN: U70101MH2007PLC172784

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. F1st March, 2018 31" March, 2017
T T
INCOME
Share of Profit / (Loss) of Joint Ventures (1,948) -
Other Income 1,76,00,000
Total Income 1,75,98,052
EXPENSES
Finance Costs 13 1,59,484 2,339
Other Expenses 14 6,23,218 62,050
Total Expenses 7.82,702 64,389
Profit before exceptional items and Tax (I - 11} 1,68,15,350 {64,389)
Exceptional Items - -
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 1,68,15,350 (64,389)
Tax Expense
Current Tax 46,35,000 -
46,35,000 -
Profit / (Loss) for the year 1,21,80,350 [64,389)
Earning per equity share of nominal value of ¥ 10/- each 15
Basic and Diluted 121.80 {0.64)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements,
As per our report of even date
FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Acranntantc
Firv
1
SA! DIRECTOR
PR( DIN: 06843982
Met
Mumbai DIRECTOR

Date: 20th June 2018

DIN: 03134932
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

Particulars

Net Profit / (Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit or Loss
Add / (Less):

Share of Profit / [Loss) of Joint Ventures

lnterest and Finance Charges

Qperating Profit / [Loss) Before Working Capital Changes
Add / (Less}:

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables

Net Cash flow in the course of Operating Activities

1. Cash flows arising from Investing activities
Inflow / {Qutflow) on account of:
Net Cash flow in the course of Investing Activities

1. Cash flows arising from Financing activities

inflow / {Outflow) on account of :

Short term borrowings

Interest and Finance Charges Paid

Net Cash flow in the course of Financing Activities

Net Increase in cash and cash Equivalents ([ + 11+ 111}
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

R iliati f Cash and Cash Equival (Refer |
Cash on Hand

Bank Balances in Current Accounts

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

31" March, 2018 31" March, 2017
Amount Amount
E4 L 4
1,21,80,350 (64,389)
1,59,484 2,339
1,23,39,834 (62,050

(2.07,68,000)

85,80,980 (5,02.383)
1,52,814 (5,64.433)
- 5,00,000
{1,59,484) (2,339)
(1,59,484) 4,97,661
(6,670) (66,772)
38,104 1,04,876
31,434 38,104
1,125 1,125
30,310 36,979
31,434 38,104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date

FOR SANKET R.SHAH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 135703

SAl‘l\l‘l «JEESLEL
PROPRIETOR
Membership No. 152369

Mumbai
Date; 20th June 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DIRECTOR
DIN: 06843982

DIRECTOR
DIN: 03134932




HALITIOUS DEVELOPER LIMITED
CIN: U70101MH2007PLEL172784

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH 2018
inf

Particulars Equity Share Capital Reserves and Surpius Total
Securities Premium | Retained Earnings
Reserve

. st
Balance at 31" March, 2017 10,00,000 5,00,00,000 (2,94,13,555) 3,05,86,445

Total Comprehensive Income for the
year

- - 1,21,80,350 1,21,80,350

st
Balance at 317 March, 2018 10,00,000 5,90,00,000 {1.72,33,205) 4,27,66,795

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES For and an behalf of the Board of Directors
Cl v
Fi

b H
i} DIRECTOR

M ™I NECADINGTD

Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2018 DIN: 03134932
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.|NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Halitivus Developer Limited is an unhsted Public Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act. 1356, The Company is
vngaged 1into busimess of constructing building, chawls, heuses, appartments, flat, residential township, commercial complex. warchouses, storage facilities,
industrial park, SEZ. anywhere in India & abroad and transporting & carriage of goods and to provide storage and protection of goods against calamities.

The tinancial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors vn 20th June 2018.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) under the historical cost cnnvention on the avcrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act’) (to the extent notified), The Ind
AS are prescnbed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companivs (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Acvoeunting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

The Company has adopted all the IndAS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with IndAS 101 First time adoptien of Indian Accounting
Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (FEGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition
has been sommarized in Note 24.

Accounting policies have been consistently appled except where a newly issued accounting standard is imtially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy thereto in use.

a) Historical Cost Convention
The tinanciai statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following:
i. certain financtal assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value
. assels held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount nr fair value less cost to sell.
i defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

b} Current and Non-Current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non current classification.
An asset is classified as current when itis:
i. Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normat operating cytle
ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading
iil. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
1. Cashor cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is classified as current when:

i Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

i, Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

jit. It1s due to be settled within twelve months after the repnrting period, or

w. There 1s no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other habilities are classified as non-current

The operating cycle 1s the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets
and habihuies are classified as non-current assets and habilities.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

A. Revenue from Construction Activity

a.  The company has adopted the principles of revenue recognition en the basis of * Guidance note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions ” issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, for the entities to whom IndAS is appticable.

k. Revenue from sale of ‘finished properties / huildings / rights’ is recognised on transfer of alt significant risks and rewards of ownership of such
propurties / building / rights, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with huyer/(s), which generally coincides with the firming of the sales
contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still has obligations to perform substantial acts even after the transfer of all significant
risks and rewards.

B. Profit/ Loss from Partnership Firms / Association of Persons
Share of profit / loss from partnership firms / association of persons (AQP) 1s accounted n respect of the financial year of the firm / AOP, during the
reparting period, nn the basis of their audited/ management reviewed accounts, which is considered as a part of other nperating activity,

C. Others
Revenues / Income and € Ily accounted om accrual, as they are carned or incurred.
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JINOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

2.2

2.3
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v
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INVESTMENTS
Investments are classified inte Currentand Nen Current ¢ Long Term bnvestments. Current investments are staled at jower of cost and fair value. Long term
investments are stated at cost. A provision for diminunien s made ta recognive decline. other than temporary. in the value ol long term investments.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial recogniton

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial hubilioes when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets
and liabilities are recognized at far vaiue cn inital recogmpon except tor trade receivables which are mitizlly measured at transaction price. Transacnon
costs that are directly attnbutable to the acguisition or issue of finandial assets and financial habilites. that are not at fair value through profit or loss.are
added te the tbar value on imitial recegmition. Regular way purchase and sale of inancial assets are avceunted for at trade date.

Subsequent measurement
Non-derivatve financial instruments

Financial assels carried at amortised cost
A financial asset 18 subsequently measured at amorused cost if it is held within a business madel whaose ohjective 15 to hold the asset 1n order o coliect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the hinancial asset give rise on specified dates te cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount vutstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business model whose objective is
achieved hy hoth collecting contractual cash Mows and ~clhing {inancial assets and the contractual terms cf the financial asset pive rise on specified dates to
vash flows that are sclely payments of principal and ipterest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in casex where the Company has made an
irrevacable election based on its busingss medel, for 12 investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are
recopnized in other comprehensive iIncome.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which 1s not classilied m any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial liabilides

Financial liabikities are subsequently carried at ameortized cost using the cttective interest method, except for contingent consideration recognized in a
business combination which 1s subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the
Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financiat instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based an market vonditions and
risks exsting at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value tnclude discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and
dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair vaiue result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

Derecognition of financial instruments
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the finacial asset and|
the transfer gualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109 A financial liabihty (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized fram the Company's balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contractis discharged or cancelled or expires.

Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recugnizes Joss allowances using the expected creditloss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or Joss.
Loss allowance for trade receivabivs with no significant Pnancing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credil nisk [rem initial
recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit iosses {or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment

Propecty, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in vrcumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purpuse of impairment tesuing the recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individua' - S =l sl e fney not generate cash flows that are larpely independent of those from other assets. In such cases,
the recoverable amount is d ch the asset belengs.
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.INOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018
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TAXATION

i- Current Tax

The wia cutrently pavabie 1s based on taxabie proht os the year. Taxable profit differs from "nrofit hetore tax” as reported 1n the statement of profit and loss
becauseut items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1tems that are never Laxable or deductible. The Company's current
tix is valeulated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

En case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115]B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e, MAT), the amount of tax paid in cxcess of normal income tax is
recogmzed as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) anlvat there is convineing evidence for realization of such asset during the speaitied period. MAT credit
entitlement s reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

ii. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax 15 revognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used iy the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax habilities are generally recognized for all tagable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recogmzed for ail deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can he utilized.

The carrying amnunt of deferred tax asset 15 reviewed at the end of each reporting penod and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probahte that
sufficient taxable profits will be avainlable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax habilities and asscts are micasured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liabihity is settled or the asset realized,
based on tax rates (and tax laws] that have been enacted or subswantively eracted hy the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax habihties and asselts reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the varrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

ili. Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deterred tax are recognized in profit or less. escopt when they relate to items that are recopnized in ether compre hensive income or directly in
equity. in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flow« are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effeces of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals
or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or pavments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
Mlows from aperating, investing and financing activities of the company are <eprepated.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognized onlv when there is a present vhligation, as a result of past cvents, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of ohligation can be
made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of meney is matenal.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
*  Poss:bie oblhigations which will he confirmed only by tuture events not whaily within the control of the Company or
* Present obligations arising from past events where 1t 1s not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the cbligation or a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company 1s cngaged in the business of Real Eslate Development, which as per ind AS - 108 'Operating Segments 14 considered to be the only reportable
business segment. The Company 1s also operating within the same geographical segment. Hence, disclosures under Ind AS - 108 are not applicable.

USE OF FSTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. Thesc
estimates, judgmenls and assumptions affect the apphcation of accounting pelicies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of]
contingent asscts and Jiabhes at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the perod. Application of]
accnunting pohcies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these finanoal
statements have heen disclosed in note 2.8.1. Accounting estimates coold change from period to perod. Actual results cauld differ from those estimates.
Appropriate thanges in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates
are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, 1 material, their effects are disclosed in the notes s the financial
statements.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

a. Revenue recognition

The Company uses the percentage-of-compietion method in accounting for 1ts revenue. Costs ot the project are based on the management's estimate of the
cost to he incurred upto the completion of the projects and inciude cost of land, Floor Space tndex {FS1), materials, services and other expenses attributable
tu the projects. Estimates of project income, as well as preject costs, are reviewed periodically. Costs expended have been used to measure progress towards
completion of work. Provisions for estimated losses if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses beceme probable
based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date

b. Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some ot the company’s assets are measured at farr value tor financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Cempany
uses market-observable data to the extent it is avallable. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The Company works closely with the yualified external valuers to estahlish the appropriate valuatiun techniques and inputs to the
model
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

3. |lhvestments

Non Current investments
(Trade, unless otherwise specified)

Capital Investment in Partnership Firms and }oint Ventures

M/s Rising Glory Developers

Less: Provisien for Diminutien in the value of investments

Total Non Current Investments

Footnote:

Details of [nvestments made in capital of partpership firm:

Total

As at As at
31 March, 2018 31* March, 2017
k4 T
10,000 10,000
10,000 10,000

Sr No Name of Partners

31st March, 2018

31st March, 2018

31 March, 2017

31" March, 2017

Amount (T) Profit Sharing Ratic Amount () Profit Sharing Ratic
1 |Hubtown Limited 30,000 20,00 30,000 20.00%,
2 |Ackruti Safeguard System Private Limited 8010 5.34% 8010C 5.34%
3 |Citygold Education Research Limited 8010 5.34% 8010 5.34%
4 |Citygold Farming Private Limited 8010 5.34% 8010 5.34%
5 |Diviniti Projects Private Limited 8.010 5.34% 8010 5.34%
6 |Halhtious Developers Limited 8010 5.34% 8010 5.34%
7 |Headland Farming Private Limited 7,995 5.33% 7.995 5.33%
8 [Heddie Knowledge Private Limited 7.995 5.33% 7.995 5.33%
9 |Heet Builders Private Limited 7.995 5.33% 7.995 5.33%
10 |Subhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 7,995 5.33% 7.995 5.33%
11 [Sunstream City Private Limited 15,990 10.66% 15,990 10.66%,
12 [Upvan lake Resort Private Limited 7,995 5.33% 7.995 5.33%
13 |Vega Developers Private Limited 7,995 5.33% 7,995 5.33%
14 [Whitebud Developers Limited 7,995 5.33% 7.995 5.33%
15 |Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 7,995 5.33% 7.995 5.33%
Total Capital of the firm in T 150000 100% 150000 100%
4. Current Tax Assets Asat As at
31st March, 2018 31" March. 2017
e T
Advance Tax paid 18,73.433 1.13,433
Less: Provision for Tax - -
Curent Tax Assct Total 18,73,433 1,13,433
Footnote :
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accountng profit multiplied by India’s tax rate :
Since the taxahle income i1s negative, there is no current tax payable; hence reconciliation has not been provided.
5. Trade Receivables Asat Asat
31st March, 2018 31" March, 2017
T T
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Outstanding for a period exceeding six
months from the date they are due for
payment 6,57.27.631 4,67.19,631
Total 6,57,27,631 4,67,19,631
6. Cash and Cash Equivalents Asat Asat
31stMarch, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 30,310 36979
Cash on hand 1,125 1,125
»al 31,434 38,104
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

7.Equity Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital:
2,50.000 (As at 31 March, 2017: 2,50,000; As at 1 April, 2018: 2,50,000) Equity Shares
of T10/- each

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
1,00,000 {As at 31" March, 2017: 1,00,000; As at 17 April, 2018: 1,00,000) Equity Shares
of T 10/- each fully paid up

(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity Shares outstanding at the
beginning and at the end of the year

Balance at 01st April 2017

Add : Issued during the year

Less : Bought back during the year
Balance at 31st March 2018

(ii} Equity Shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company
subsidiaries or associates of holding company or the ultimate holding company

As at As at
31" March, 2018 31* March, 2017
L4 4
25,00,000 25.00,000
10,00,000 10,00,000
10,00,000 10,00,000
1,00,000 10,00,000
1,00,000 10,006,000
As at As at

31st March, 2018
No. of Shares

31" March, 2017
No. of Shares

Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners [Holding Company] 1,00,000 1,00,000
(iit} Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares
As at 315t March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017

Fully paid equity shares No of shares held % holding No of shares held % holding
Hubtown Limited 99,994 99.994% 99,994 99.994%
Kamal Matalia / Hubtown Limited 1 0.001% 1 0.001%
D.V. Prabhu / Hubtown Limited 1 0.001% 1 0.001%
Anil Ahluwalia / Hubtown Limited 1 0.001% 1 0.001%
Hernant M Shah / Hubtown Limited 1 0.001% 1 0.001%
Chetan S Mody / Huhtown Limited 1 0.001% 1 0.001%
Vyomesh M Shah / Hubtown Limited 1 0.001% 1 0.001%

Total 1,060,000 100.00% 1,00,000 100.00%

(iv) Terms / Right attached to Ordinary Equity Shares:

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the numher of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

8. Other Equity As at Asat
31" March, 2018 31° March, 2017
T T

(i) Securities premium reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,90,00,000 5,90,00,000
Add / (Less):

Premium on account of shares alloted during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 5,90,00,000 5,90,00,000

{(ii) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year (2,94,13,555) (2,93,49,166)
Profit attributable to the owners of the company 1,21,80,350 (64,389}
Balance at the end of the year {1,72,33,205) (2,94,13,555)
Total 4,17,66,795 2,95,86,445
9. Borrowings Asat As at
31st March, 2018 31°' March, 2017
T T
Current
Unsecured
(i)  Leans repayable on demand:
- From Related Party (Refer footnote) 1,08,00,000 1,08,00,000
Total 1,08,00,000 1,08,00,000
Footnote:

The Company has received interest free Loan from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in
which the Company operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call / demand as the
repayment period of such amounts so received is not measureable precisely.

10. Trade payables Asat Asat
31stMarch, 2018 31" March, 2017
T T
Trade Payables 7,18,837 56,238
Total 7,18,837 56,238
Footnote:

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined
under the Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act}, none of the suppliers of the
Company are registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

11. Other financial liabilities Asat Asat
31st March, 2018 31" March, 2017
T T
Current
Current account balance in firms and joint ventures 2,640 692
Other payables 46,54,268 17,250
Total 46,56,908 17,942
12. Other Liabilities As at Asat
farch, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T
Current
Other payvables:
- Statutory dues 86,99,958 54,20,543

86,99,958 54,20,543
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

13. Finance Costs

Delaved/penal interest on loans and statutory dues

14. Other Expenses

Rates and taxes
Legal and prefessional fees
Other expenses (Refer footnote)

Footnote :

Auditor's Remuaneration (Inctuded in other expenses)
Statutory Audit Fees
Service tax /GST on above

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE {EPS)
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share
Basic and Diluted EPS

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used ta the calculahon
of hasic and diluted earmings per share are as follows:

Profit for the year atiributable to the owners of the Company
Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per
share

Year Ended Year Ended
31" March, 2018 31* March, 2017
T T
1,59,484 2,336
1,59,484 2,339
Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2018 31% March, 2017
4 T
2,500 2,500
6,02,29% 40,676
18,419 18,874
6,23,218 62,050
15,000 15,000
2,700 2,325
17,700 17,325

31st March, 2018

31" March, 2017

12180 (0.64)
1,21,80,350 {64,389)
1,21,80,350 {64,389)
1,00,000 1,00,000

The accempanying notes are an integrat part of Financial Statements
As per our report of even date

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & A7 ™" For and or
Chartered Accountants

Firm Remstration No. 135703

SA
PROPRIETOR
Membership No. 152369

Mumbau
Date: 20th June 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018
16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a.  List of Related Parties:

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship

[ HOLDING COMPANY
Hubtown Limited

1. FIRM IN WHICH COMPANY 15 PARTNER
Rising Glory Developers

1ll. |OINT YENTURE OF HOLDING COMPANY

Sunstream City Private Limited

OTHER SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCES WiTH WHOM TRANSACTIONS TAKEN PLACE
Citygold Management Services Private Limited

Note: Related party relationships are as identified by the Company and relied upon hy the Auditors

b. Transactions with Related Parties:

Balance outstanding receivables:

31" March, 2018

in¥
Particulars Firm inwhich | Holding Company | Other Significant
Company is Influences
Partner
Loans and advances received /recovered:
Hubtown Limited 2,500 -
(5,800,000
On behalf payments made (Including reimbursement of expenses)
Citypold Management Services Private Limited 6,48,000
(6,500}
Share of Loss
Rising Glory Developers 1,948 -
(692)
Note. Previous year's figures are given in hrackets
As at As at

31* March, 2017

Joint ¥enture of Holding Company
Sunstream CQity Private Limited

4,67,19.631

4,67,19,631

Balance outstanding payables:

As at
31" March, 2018

Asat
31" March, 2017

Firm in which Company is partner
Rising Glory Developers
- Current Account Balance (Share of Loss)

Holding Company
Hubtown Limited

Other Significant Influences
Citygold Management Services Private Limited

2,640

1,08,02,500

6,48,000

692

1,08,00,000

2,000




HALITIOUS DEVELOPER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°T MARCH, 2018

17. CONTINGENT LIABILITY
The Company does not have any contingent hiability as at the balance sheet date, as certified by the management and relied upon by the
auditors.

18. In the cpimon of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Loans and Advances continues to
have a reahzable value of a1 least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

19. Trade payable & other current hability are subsect tc confirmation, reconciliation ard adjustment if any.

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OB)JECTIVES

The company is net exposed to market nisk, credit risk and hguidity risk. The company's management cversees the management of these risks.
The cempany’s board of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these srisks summanzed below:

1) Market Risk

a) Interest rate risk
Company has received intrest free loan and it receives interest free funds for operating cash Now from its holding company as and when
required (Refer Note 10}, hence the Company is not exposed to intrest risk.

2) Credit Risk
The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans s
managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company’s policy

3) Liquidity risk
Since the company’s cashilow requirements are met by funds received from its holding company, the company is not exposed te liquidity
rsk.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSDCIATES For and on behalf of the Board o
Chartered Accountants
Fi 57031
DIRECTOR
5 DIN: 06843982
PROPRIETOR

Membership No 152369

DIRECTOR
Mumbai [DIN: 03134932
Date: 20th June 2018




CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF INDIA DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION VENTURE CAPITAL PRIVATE
LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of INDIA DEVELOPMENT AND
CONSTRUCTION VENTURE CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after
referred to as “Ind AS financial statement”).

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
orescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued there under.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
srovisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
Tauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
udgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
naintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
‘he accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
Of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
nisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Jur responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

Ne have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing Standards and
natters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
he Rules made there under.

Ne conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
[43(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
serform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are
ree from material misstatement.

Mfice: 306, Zee Nayak building, M.G. Road. Opp. Pritam restaurant, Vile Parle East, Mumbai - 400057.
ol * 29296127174 401 R72014 107R1 Email* adatia niraicedamail cnm



,An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Au audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinton

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 31st March 2018, and its
loss for the year (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to Note no. 18 in the ind AS financial statements with regards to accumulated losses
and its negative net worth of the company. The Company has incurred a net cash loss during the current
year and, the Company’s liabilities exceeded its assets as at the balance sheet date. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. However, the Ind AS financial statements of the Company have
been prepared on a going concern basis for the reasons stated in the said Note.
QOur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter

The audit of Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31%t March 2017, was carried out and
reported by Dalal Doshi & Associates, vide their unmodified audit report dated 26th May 2017, whose
report has been furnished to us by the management and which has been relied upon by us for the
purpose of our audit of the financial statements, Our audit report is not qualified in respect of this
matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order;



IL.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued there under;

(e) The going concern matter described under the Emphasis of Matters paragraph above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

(f) Based on the information received and explanations given to us, except two Directors, none of
the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”; and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us :

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations if any on its financial position
in its Ind AS financial statements;

ii. ~The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No.: 129486W
Chartered Accountants

NIRAJ D. ADAT
Partner

Membership No
Place : Mumbai
Date :22nd Juni



"ANNEXURE A” REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INDIA DEVELOPMENT AND
CONSTRUCTION VENTURE CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH, 2018;

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company does not have any fixed assets during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(i) of the Order is not applicable.

(ii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company does not have any inventory during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv)]  The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees
or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of
the Order is not applicable.

(vl  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent
notified. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income-tax, goods & service tax,
sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory
dues, wherever applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There were no arrears as at
31st March, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they become
payable.

b) On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and
explanation provided to us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, Value
Added Tax and Cess as at the Balance Sheet date.

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks,
government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order
is not applicable.

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of
the Order is not applicable.



(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

The Company has not paid / provided for managerial remuneration during the year and hence,
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties which are in compliance with
the Section 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements as required under IND AS24, Related Party Disclosures
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2015.

The company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No.: 129486W
Chartered Accountants

NIRAJ D. ADATL/
Partner
Membership No.:

Place : Mumbali
Date : 22ndJune,



“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION VENTURE CAPITAL
PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of INDIA DEVELOPMENT AND
CONSTRUCTION VENTURE CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2018 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risks. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that;

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR NIRA] D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No.: 129486W
Chartered Accountants

NIRA] D. ADAT
Partner
Membership Nc

Place : Mumba
Date : 22nd Jun



INDIA DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION VENTURE CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°" MARCH, 2018

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31 March, 2018 31" March, 2017
L4 L4

ASSETS
Current assets

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 608 24,581

TOTAL ASSETS 608 24,581
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a}  Equity share capital 4 500,000 500,000
{b}  Other equity 5 (2,820,072) (2,799,055)
Total Equity (2,320,072) (2,299,055)
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
(a}  Financial Liabilities

(i} Borrowings 6 2,295,808 2,253,308
(b)  Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 7 - 318
(c)  Other current liabilities 8 24,872 70,010
Total Liabilities 2,320,680 2,323,636
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 608 24,581

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 129486W
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

NIRAJ A
PARTNI
Membei

Mumbai
Date: 2z

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mumbai
Date: 22" June 2018




INDIA DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION VENTURE CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No.  31%March, 2018 31" March, 2017
T T

INCOME
Revenue from Operations 9 - 32,820
Total Income - 32,820
EXPENSES
Finance Costs 10 - 363
Other Expenses 11 21,017 31,106
Total Expenses 21,017 31,469
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (21,017) 1,351
Tax Expense

Current Tax - {318)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year {21,017) 1,033
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income/{Loss) {21,017) 1,033
Earning per equity share of nominal value of T 10/- each

Basic and Diluted 12 (0.42) 0.02

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

FOR NIRA] D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 129486W
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

NIRAJ ADATIA
PARTNER
Membership No.: 120844

Mumbai
Date: 22" June 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

IYENDKRA SHAH

Mumbai
Date: 22™ June 2018




INDIA DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION VENTURE CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018

Particulars

31 March, 2018

31" March, 2017

T T
1 CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit/(loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss (21,017) 1,351
Add/(Less):
Interest Expense - 363
Provision no longer required - (32,820}
- (32,457)
Operating profit before working capital changes (21.017) (31,106)
Add / (Less):
Increase/{Decrease) in trade and other payables {45,138)
Direct Taxes Paid {318) (10,754)
Net cash flow from operating activities (66,473) (41,860)
I CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - -
Net cash flow from investing activities - -
1T CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inflow/(Outflow) on account of:
Interest Expense - (363)
Proceeds of short term borrowings 42,500 27,281
Net cash flow from filnancing activities 42,500 26,918
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (1+11 +111') (23,973) {14,942)
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 24,581 39,523
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 608 24,581
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 3)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand - 3,040
Balances with banks
- On Current accounts 60B 21,541
Total 608 24,581

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 129486W
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

NIRAJ ADA
PARTNER
Membershi

Mumbai
Date: 22™

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N, UI19UDJF L

Mumbai

Date: 22™ June 2018




INDIA DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION VENTURE CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018

Amount
A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at 1st April, 2016 500,000.00
Changes in equity share capital _
As at 31st March, 2017 500,000.00
Changes in equity share capital .
As at 31st March, 2018 500,000.00
B. OTHER EQUITY

Retained Earnings Total

Balance at 1st April, 2016 {2,800,088) (2,800,088)
Profit / (loss) for the year 1,033 1,033
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,033 1,033
Balance at 31st March, 2017 {2,799,055) {2,799,055)
Balance at 1st April, 2017 {2,799,055) (2,799,055)
Profit / (loss) for the year (21,017) (21,017)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (21,017) (21,017)
Balance at 31st March, 2018 (2,820,072) (2,820,072)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per attached report of even date

FOR NIRA] D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 129486W
CHARTERED ACCOIINTANTS

NIRA] ADATIA
PARTNER
Membership No.: 120844

Mumbai
Date: 22" June 2018

For and nn hahalf af tha Raard nf Diractare

Mumbai

Date: 22" June 2018




INDIA DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION VENTURE CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policles.

1.1 Company Overview
India Development and Construction Venture Capital Private Limited is a subsidiary of Public Limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, The Company is engaged in the business of investment advisors, consultants for real estate and infrastructure funds
including but not timited to advise on investment by the aforesaid funds in all kind of real estate and infrastructure projects.

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 22™ june 2018.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company
I Basis of preparation of financial Statements

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 [‘Act’) read with of the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

(ii} Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

2) assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value bess cost to sell;

3) defined beneht plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

(iii) Current non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set
out in Schedule 1] to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicabie to the
respective project.

I Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumpticns that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
a) Judgements
Classification of property
The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory propetty. Investment property comprises land and
buitdings that are not accupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held
primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and net intended to be sold in the ordinary
course of business, Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the company
develops and intends to sell before or on completion of construction.
b) Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the centrol of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

II. Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the Cempany and the revenue can be reliably measured
and also when it is reasonably certain that the ultitnate collection will be made and that there is buyers’ commitment to make the complete payment.

A, Revenue from Consultancy & Advisory Services

Revenue from consultancy & advisory services are accrued and accounted for as and when the services are provided and the revenue for the same is
certain. Where the income / revenue is contingent or uncertain, recognition for the same is postponed to the extent of significant uncertainty.

B. Interest and dividend:
Interest income including income arising on other instruments recognised on time proportion basis using the efTective inkerest rate method.
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

C.  Others:
Cther revenues / incomes and costs / expenditure are accounted an accrual, as they are earned or incurred.



INDIA DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION YENTURE CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31™ MARCH, 2018
Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rige to a financial asset of one entity and a financial Hability or eguity instrument of another entity.

1v.

A

a

—

b)

(i)

{iii)

{iv)

)

Financdlal Assets

. Initial recognition

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business mode} with an objective to hold these
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractuat terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate (“EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cest if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
cotlect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Yalue

Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model,
for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCl is carried at FYTPL.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business mode! whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cases where the Company has
made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in
fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial liabjlities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration recognized in a
business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market
conditions and risks existing at each reporting date, The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted
market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be
realized,

. De-recognition of Financial Assets:

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. if the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

., Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting atl of its jiabilities. Equity
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.

. Financial Liabilities

i. Initial Recognition
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at F¥PL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financia)
liabilittes are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,
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2. Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

- Financial liabilities at FYTPL

Financial liabilities at FYTPL include financial labilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FYTPL.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpase of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation, Amortisation is recognised as finance incotne in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR methed. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amonrtisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, canceiled or expired. When an existing linancial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantally modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original lability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

C.  Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition of inancial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it rransfers the finacial asset
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's
Balance Sheet when the ebligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss {ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or
loss. Loss aliowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credijt risk from initial
recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or
loss.

. Non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the assets recoverable amount An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individuai asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. in determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment lesses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable, For the purpese of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to setl
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets, fn such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Provisions

A provisien is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liabiligy.
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Taxation

. Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reperted in the financial statement of
profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115|B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement} only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified peried. MAT credit
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates thatare expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash Mows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

Provisions, contingent Habilitles and contingent assets

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate
required to sextle each obligation at each halance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted vsing a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due 1o the passage of
time is recagnised as a finance cast

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise fram past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where
a hability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial seatements,

Recent accounting pronouncements
Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign curtency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (""MCA™) has
notified the Companies ([ndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreigncurrency transactions and
advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use an initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income, when an entity has recetved or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.
The amendment will come into force from 1 April 2018. The Company exposure towards foreign currency transation is minimal, hence the impact on the
financial statements and effect on adoption of Ind AS 21 is expected to be insignificant
Ind A5 115
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 ("amended rules™). As
per the amended rules, Iad AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with custorers” supersedes Ind AS 11, "Construction contracts” and [nd AS 18, “Revenue” and
is applicable lor all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018,
Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised
when (or as) an entiry transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further the new
standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts
with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.
The standard permits twe possible methods of transition:

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS B - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach)

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of IND AS 115 is
expected to be insignificent.
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As at As at
31* March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T 4
3. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 608 21,541
Cash on hand - 3,040

Total 608 24,581
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4. Equity share capital

Authorised Share Capital:
5,00,000 (P.Y. 31st March, 2017: 5,00,000) Ordinary Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
Total

Issued and subscribed capital comprises :
50,000 (P.Y. 31st March, 2017: 50, 000} Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up
Total

a) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Fully paid equity shares

Balance at 1% April, 2016
Add : Issued during the year
Less : Bought back during the year

Balance at 31* March, 2017

Balance at 17 April, 2017
Add : Issued during the year
Less : Bought back during the year

Batance at 31" March, 2018

As at Asat

31" March, 2018 31 March, 2017

T T
5,000,000 5,000,000
5,000,000 5,000,000
500,000 500,000
500,000 500,000

Number of Share Capital

Shares i
50,000 500,000
50,000 500,000
50,000 500,000
50,000 500,000

b) Equity Shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company, subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the

pitimate holding company
As at 31st March, 2018

As at 31st March, 2017

No of shares held % holding No of shares held % holding
Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners 50,000 50,000 100%
Total 50,000 100% 50,000 100%
c) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares
As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017
No of shares held % holding No of shares beld % holding
Fully paid equity shares
Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners 50,000 50,000 100%
Total 50,000 100% 50,000 100%

d) Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares:

The company has single class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.
The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of

shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.
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5. Other Equity

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Profit/(Loss) attributable to the owners of the company
Total

6. Borrowings

Current
Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand: (Interest free)
- from Related Party (Refer note 13)
- from Companies
Total

7. Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Provision for Tax
Less: Advance Tax Paid

Total

8. Other current liabilities

Current

Other payables :

- Statutory dues

- Other Miscellaneous
Total

As at As at
31* March, 2018 31" March, 2017
4 E4
(2,799,055) (2,800,088)
(21,017} 1,033
(2,820,072) (2,799,055)
838,967 798,967
1,456,841 1,454,341
2,295,808 2,253,308
- 318
- 318
- 5,397
24,872 64,613
24,872 70,010
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Year Ended Year Ended
31" March, 2018 31™ March, 2017
T T
9. Revenue from operations
Other operating revenue :
Provision no longer required - 32,820
Total ) - 32,820
10.Finance Costs
Interest costs :
Delayed /penal interest on loans and statutory dues - 363
Total - 363
11. Other Expenses
Legal and professional fees 11,863 13,946
Other expenses 9,154 17,160
Total 21,017 31,106
Footnote:
Auditer's Remuneration (included in other expenses) :
Statutory Audit Fees 6,000 6,000
GST/Service tax on above - 900
Total 6,000 6,900
12, Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (0.42) 0.02

12.1 Basic and Diluted EPS
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are
as follows:

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (21,017) 1,033

Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share (21,017) 1,033

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share 50,000 50,000
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13. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship

(i) Holding Company
Hubtown Limited

(ii) Key Manageria! Personnel(KMP) of Holding Company
Chetan S. Mody

(iii) Fellow Subsidiaries, with whom transactions have taken place during the year
ABP Realty Advisors Pvt. Ltd,,

Note: Related Party relationships are identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors

B. Transactions with Related Parties

(Payable)

Sr. Nature of transaction Holding KMP of Holding
No. Company Company
i i
i. Loans and Advances received/recovered/adjusted
ABP Realty Advisors Private Limited - -
() )
Hubtown Limited 40,000 -
) )
ii. On behalf payments made {including reimbursement of expenses)
Chetan S. Mody - 6500
() (7,012)
iii. On behalf payments received/adjusted
Chetan S. Mody - -
) (512)
Note: Previous Year figures are given in brackets
C. Balance outstanding payables / receivables:
Asat Asat
317 March, 2018 31" March, 2017
3 i
Hubtown Limited 730,600 690,600
(Payable)
ABP Realty Advisors Private Limited 108,367 108,367
(Payable)
Chetan S. Mody 6,500
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14. Capital Management
The primary objective of company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value. The company’s board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis.

15. Financial Risk Management Objectives
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s focus is to foresee the unpredictability of
financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

1) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The company's
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk.

2) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. The company is
not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the agreement of sale of land is executed only on receipt of full consideration.

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company’s treasury department in accordance with the company’s policy.

3) Liquidity risk
The operating cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from shareholders.

16. Contingent Liabilities (Not Provided For) :
The company does not have any contingent liabilities as on the balance sheet date as certified by the management and relied upon by the auditors.

17. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all the items of current assets, current libilities & loans and advances continue to have a realisable value
of at least the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet

18. The accumuiated josses of the Company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The Company's management is, however, in the
process of procuring new business / entering into joint venture with start up ventures, the proceeds of which when fructified, would result in tumaround of the
Company.

19, Fair Value measurement of Financial Instruments

FOR NIRA] D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registration No. 129486W
CHARTERED ACCOHINTANTS

NiRA]J /
PARTN
Membe

Mumba

| Date: 2:

31st March 2018 31st March 2017

FVPL FVOCI | Amortised Cost | FVPL FYOCI | Ameortised Cost
H ial A
Cash and cash equivalent - - 608 - - 24,581
Total of Financial Assets - - 608 - - 24,581
5 ial Liabilii
Borrowings - - 2,295,808 - - 2,253,308
Other Financial liabilities - - - - - -
Total of Financial Liabilities - - 2,295,808 - - 2,253,308
20. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / recast wherever necessary.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date r - T

Date: 22" June 2018







4)

5)

6)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtai audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk = sessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circ stances. An au : also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficier and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

O] »ion:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explana ns
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information
req red by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principies generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2018 and its financial performance inclu ng
other comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter:

1. Attention is invited to Note No. 3.1(A) of the financial statements with regarding
recognition of expense and income for ongoing projects which is based upon
estimated project costs, as per the judgement of the management, which have
been relied upon by us, ese being technical Matters.

2. Attention is invited to Note No. 13(a) of the financial statements with aird to
interest not charged on Compulsory Convertible Debentures.

3. Attention is invited to Note No. 30 of the financial statements with regard to
reliance placed by the auditors on certification received from the management with
regard to the disclo: re of contingent liabilities given by the Company.

4. Attention is invited to Note No. 32 of the financial statements with regards to
balances that are subject to confirmations, reconciliation and adjustments if any.

5. Attention is invited to Notes the Company has not charged interest on loans and
advances given to various entities in which the Company has a business interest.

Report on Other Legal and Re 1latory Requirements:.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give
in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4
of the order.

2. Asrequired by Sec n 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) we have sought and ' :ained all the information and explanations whic ) the
best of our knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our aud
b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far ¢ our examination of those books;



c)

d)

f)

g)

the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash ws

and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the ooks of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant

rule issued thereunder;

on the basis of the written representations received from the rectors as on

31%' March 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the

directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being appointed as a

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; )

with respect to the adequacy of the intern. financial controls over financial

reporting of e Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

refer to our separate report Annexure B; and

with respect to the r matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordance with R 2 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law
or accounting sti dards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

For Sanket R Shah & Associates
Charterad Arrnnntantc

FRN: 1.

Sanket
Proprie

M. No.: 152369

Place: Mun ai
Date: 21% June, 2018



Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on O er Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of Joynest Premises Private Limited of even date)

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

a. The Company has maintai 1a 2r of fixed assets, giving description and
location of its assets; and

b. As explained to us, the Company has physically verified its fixed assets d ng
the year;

a. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year,
In our opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable.

b. In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of Inventory followe by
the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
company and the nature of its bu: ess;

c. On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, we are of the
opinion that, the company is not maintaining proper project-wise records. The
value of inventory has shown of both projects. The discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to its book records were not
maintained.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has granted any secured or unsecured loans to Companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013;

a. The above loan is interest free and repayable on demand; and
b. As the loan repayable on demand, the question of overdue amount does not

arise;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in
respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and
securities, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted d )sits during the year and does not have any
claimed deposits as at 31 Mz , 2018 and therefore, the provisions of the
wse 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory

( =2s;

a. On the basis of our examin: on of the records of the Company, amounts
deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of und iuted statutory
dues including provide ‘ax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of
customs, service tax, service tax (GST) and other material
statutory dues have b osited during the year by the Compa






(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of secti 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) 1e Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

For Sanket R Shah & Associates
Chartered Arranintantc
FRN: 13!

Sanket S
Propriet:
M. No.: 152369

Place: Mumbai
Date: 21° June, 2018









JYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2018

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
i i
1 ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a)  Property, plant and equipment 4 44,09,195 57.58,439
(b)  Capital work-in-progress 4 1,99,38918 1,99,38918
(c) Financial assets
(ii) Other financial assets 5 3,27,65,000 10,00,67,051
(d) € enttax assets (N 6 74,50,617 1,27,91,934
Total Non-Current assets 6,45,63,730 13,85,56,342
2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 1,91,92,40,014 1,66,45,20,917
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 - -
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 44,91,505 26,99,137
(i) Bank balances other than (iii) above 9 6,60,00,000 -
(iii} Loans 11 - -
(iv) Other financial assets 5 40,73,61,190 42,69,92,512
(d)  Other current assets 10 17,16,62,550 17,36,72,569
Total Current Assets 2,56,87,55,259 2,26,78,85,135
TOTAL ASSETS 2,63,33,18,989 2,40,64,41,477
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a)  Equity share capital 11 1,04,71,94,550 1,04,71,94,550
(b)  Other equity 12 (13,60,74,468) {12,01,53,521})
Total Equity 91,11,20,082 92,70,41,029
2 Liabilities
i Non-Current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 40,15,05,134 10,19,76,306
(ii} Other Financial Liabilities 14 1,56,92,611 1,08,76,639
(h) Provisions 15 10,624 7,41,197
Total Non-Current Liabilities 41,72,08,369 41,35,94,142
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 16 18,74,11,946 15,92,62,790
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 50,93,15,848 32,23,38.369
(b)  Other current liabilities 17 60,70,95,622 58,40,56,250
(¢)  Provisions 15 7.122 1,48,897
(d)  Current tax Liabilities (Net) 18 11,60,000 -
Total Current Liabilities 1,30,49,90,538 1,06,58,06,306
Total Liabilities 1,72,21,98,907 1,47,94,00,448
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,63,33,18,989 2,40,64,41,477

As per our report of even dale

|+ ket R Shah & Associates
Firm Registration No: 135703W |
Chanr

iNEk
Propi
Mem

M abai
Date: 21 June, 2018

accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the hnard nf Nirartors

1

LIA
Director
I 00009695

; E'é ‘
HILEN V H

Director
DIN: 03134932

Minmbai
Date: 21 June, 2018
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Particulars N Year ended Year ended
No. 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
T 3
I INCOME
Revenue from Operations 19 3,13,99,544 30,23,084
Other Income 20 1,36,94,089 1,22,06,974
Total Income 4,50,93,633 1,52,30,058
Il Expenses
Costs Of Construction / Development 21 19,58,24,955 14,06,60,090
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 3,14,85,852 17,73,869
Changes in Inventories of Incomplete Project 22 {25,70,10,103) (18,43,19,633)
Employee Bencfits Expense 23 3,92,35,970 1,29,34,655
Finance Costs 24 3,13,31,269 3,21,96,768
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 25 13,49,244 10,2 902
Other Expenses 26 1,66,80,348 6,62,09,635
Total Expenses 5,88,97,536 7,04,87,286
111 Profit before Tax (1,38,03,903) 52,57,228)
IV Tax Expense
Current Tax - -
Profit / {Loss) for the Year (1,38,03,903) (5,52,57,228)
V Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeseaurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset 23,264 6,46,154
V1 Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (1,37,80,639) (5,46,11,074)
VIl Earning pereq y share of nominal value of¥10/- each
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share 27
Class - A (0.76) (3.05)
Class - B (6.85) (27.41)
Class - C (0.26) (1.05)
O ary (1.380.39) (5,525.72)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Sanket R
Firi
Cha

ih & Associates

SAP
Pro
Mei

Mumbai
Date: 21 June, 2018

For

-and on behalf of the board of Directors

KAMAL MATALIA
Director
DIN : 00009695

':" | KHILEN V SHA

Director
DIN: 03134932

Mumbai
Date: 21 June, 2018






JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR E!

ED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Asat 1st Apr 2016

As at 31st March, 2018

Notes Amount Ame it
. No T 4
A.E 'Y SHARE CAPITAL
Equity Shares Preference Shares
11 72,70,94,550 32,00,00, ©
Changes in share capital - -
As at 31st March, 2017 72,70,94,550 32,00,00, 0
Changes in share capital - .
72,70,94,550 32,00,00, 0

B. OTHER EQUITY

Reserves and Surplus

Retained Earnings Total

Balance at April 1,2016 (6,55.,42,447) 98,15,52, 3 |
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 6,46,154 6,46,154
Transfer to Retained Earnings (5,52,57,228) (5,52,57,228)
Balance at March 31, 2017 (12,01,53,521) 92,69.41,029
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 23,264 23,264
| Transfer to Retained Earnings {1,38,03,903) (1,38,03,903)

(13.39.34,160) 91,31,60,390

i1 wce at March 31,2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For Sanket R Shah & Associates
Firm Repistration No- 135703W

Ch:

SAl
Pro
Me

Mumbai
Date: 21 June, 2018

Forand on behalf of the board of Directors

KAMAL MATALIA
Director
DIN : 00009695

KHILEN V SHAH
Director
DIN: 03134932

Mumbai
Date: 21 June, 2018



JOYNEST MISES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Note 1.

1.1

Note 2.

Note 3.

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Company Overview
Joynest Premises Private Limited is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. Company is
engaged in the real estate business of construction and development of residential project at Chembur and other similar works.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 21 June, 2018,
STANDARDS, NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND HAVE NOT BEEN ADOPTED EARLY BY THE COMPANY
Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the financial statements is provided below.

Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (Ind AS 115)

There is one new standard issued by MCA (not yel effective) for revenue recognition which overhauls Lhe existing revenue recognition
standards including Ind AS 18 - Revenue and Ind AS 11 - Construction contracts. The new standard provides a control-based revenue
recognition model and provides a five step application principle to be followed for revenue recognition:

i) ldentification of the contracts with the customer

ii) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract

iii) Determination of the transaction price

iv) Allocation of transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract (as identified in step ii)

v) Recognition of revenue when performance obligation is satistied.

The effective date of the new standard has not yet been notified by the MCA. The management is yet to assess the impact of this new standard
on the Company's financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of
Carporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) (to the extent notified) read with Rule 3 of the Companices (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The Company has adopted all the IndAS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with IndAS 101 First time adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. Reconciliations and
descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in Note 38.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

a) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following:
i. certain financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value
ii. assets held for salc - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell,
ili. defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.
b) Current and Non-Current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non current classification.
An asset is classified as current when:
i. Itisexpectedto be realised or intended to sold or consumed in narmal operating cycle
ii. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii. I is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv. Itis cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used Lo settle a liability tor at least twelve months after the
reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:
i. Itisexpected Lo be settled in normal operating cycle
. IUis held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii. IUis due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting perind
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Opcrating cycle for the business activities of the company covers the duration of the specific project / contract / service and extends upto
the realisation of receivables within the agreed credit period normally applicable to the respective project.
¢) For currency tran:  ion
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR’) which is also the functional and presentation curren



JOYNEST PREM  ES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45202MHZ008PTC183715
NOTES T

{E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

3.1

3.2

33
3.3.1

REVENUE RECOGN N

A.

il

Revenue from Construction Activity

The company has adopted the principles of revenue recognition on the basis of * Guidance notle on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions
"issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountlants of India, lor the entities to whom IndAS is applicable.

Revenue from sale of 'finished properties / buildings / rights’ is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership of
such properties / building / rights, as per the Lerms of the contracts entered into with buyer/(s), which generally coincides with the
firming of the sales contracts/ agrecments, except for contracts where the Company still has obligations to perform substantial acts even
after the transier of all significant risks and rewards.

Revenue from sale of incomplete properties / projects is recognized on the basis of percentage of completion method only il the lollowing
th holds have

All critical approvals necessary for the comn cement of the project have been obtained;

The expenditure incurred on construction and development costs, excluding land costs, is not less than 25% of the total estimated
construction and development costs of project;

Atleast 25% of the saleable praject area is secured by agreements with the huyers; and

Atleast 10% of the sale consideration of each sold unit has been received at the reporting date in respect of such contracts with buyers.

Fur  or, revenue recognized in the aforesaid manner and related costs are both restricted to 90% until the construction activity and
related formalities are substantially completed. Recognition of revenue relating to agreements entered into with the buyers, which are
subject to fulfillment of obligations / conditions imposed on the Company by statutory authorities is postponed tili such obligations are
substantially discharged.

Estimated costs relating to construction / development are charged to the statement of profit and loss in proportion with the revenue
recognized during the year. The balance costs are carried as part of ‘Incomplete Projects’ under inventorics under current assets. Amounts
reccivable / payable are reflected as Trade Receivables / Unbilled Receivables or Advances from Customers, respectively, after considering
incone recognized in the aforesaid manner-.

l.osses expected to be incurred on projects under construction, are charged in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the
losses are known.

Interest

Interest income from a tinancial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benelits will low to the Company and lhe
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the
elfective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated liture cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that assel's net carrying anmount on initial recognition.

C s
Revenues / Income and Costs/ Expenditure are gencrally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred.

PROPERTY PL. AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION / AM  )RTISATION

A

Tangible Fixed Assels are stated at cost ol acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciatian is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in the manner specitied in Schedule 11
to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata trom the month of such
addition, or upto the month ot such sale/disposal, as the case may be.

Ass lategory Estimated useful life (in Years
Computer 3
Office Equipment’s 5
Furniture and Fixture 10
Vehicles 8

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
financial assets and liabilities are recognized at lair value on initial recognition except for trade receivables which are initially measured at
transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that are
not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are
accounted for at trade date.

!






JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATELIM D
CIN: U45202ZMH2008PTC183715
NOTES TO THE FINANCL \TEMENTS FOR THE YE. ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

3.5

3.6

3.6.1

3.7

3.8

ii. Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the e;  nt that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that  is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realized, based on lax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end ol Lthe reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

iti. Currentand delerred ta: rthe year
Current and deferre ax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other ¢ iprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred lax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

INVENTORIES

Allinventories are stated at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower.

Stock of material at Site' includes cost of purchase, other costs incurred in bringing them to heir respective present location and condition,
Cost formula used is average cost.

Incomplete Projects' include cost of incomplete properties for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases
where the revenue recognilion is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate directly to a (prospective)
project, incurred for the purpose of securing the project. These costs are recognized as expenditure for the vear in which they are incurred
unless they are separately identifiable and it is probable that the respective project will be obtained.

Inventory value includes costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land / rights, value of floor space index (FSI), materials,
services and other expenses (including borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined bene plans:

Gratuity

Gratuity is post-empleyment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the financial statements in respect
of gratuity is the presenl value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date, together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial
gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation is calculated at or near the reporting date by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assw1  -ions are credited or charged to the statement of OCl in
the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

Short-  nemployeel

Expense in respect of other short term benefits is re  nised on the basis of the amount paid or payabie for the period during which services
are rendered by the employec.

Other Long Term employee Benefits:

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the balance sheet date is recognised
on the basis of discounted value of estimated amount required Lo be paid or estimated value of benefit expected to be availed by the employees.
Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected (o be availed more than one year after the balance sheel date is
estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to

statement ol profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

Defined contribution plans: Company's contribution to State governed Provident Fund Scheme is recognised during the year in which the
related service is rendered.

BORROWING COSTS

Interests and other borrowing costs calcu  d as per elfective interest rale attributable 1o qualifving assets are allocated as part of the cost of
construction / development ol such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted
and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investiment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted trom the borrowing costs ¢ le for capitalisation. Other
borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals ol past oy future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
tinancing cash flows. The cash flows fr 1d financing activities of the compa
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NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
3.9 Fi N CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

3.10

3121

i.  All transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency, based on closing rates of exchange prevalent on the dates of
the relevant transactions.

ii. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date , are converted in reporting currency at the
closing rates of exchange prevailing on the said date. Resultant gain or loss is recognized during the year in the statement of profit and
loss.

iii. Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are carried at the exchange rate prevalent on the date of the
transaction.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is ¢ ged in the business of Real Listate Development, which as per Ind AS - 108 ‘Operating Segments’ is considered to be the
only reportable business segiment. The Company is also operating within the same geographical segment. Hence, disclosures under Ind AS - 108
are not applicable.

PROVI S, CONTINGENT ASSETS. ) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of = amount of
ol ration can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
esumates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

¢ e obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not whoelly within the control of the Company or

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probahle that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a
reliable estimate of the amount ol the obligation cannot be made.

U: OFESTIMATES
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions.

These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assetsanc  bilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the perind. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the
use of assumptinns in these financial statements have been disclosed in note 3.12.1. Accounting estimales could change from period to period.
Actlual results could dilfer from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware ol changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are
made and, it material, their eftects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

a. Revenue recognition
The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its revenue. Costs of the project are based on the management’s
estimate of the cost to be incurred upto the completion of the projects and include cost of land, Floor Space Index (FSI), materials, services
and other expenses attributable to the projects. Estimates of project income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically. Costs
expended have been used to measure progress towards completion of work. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted

contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become prohable based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date.
b. Pr rty,pla. and equipment and depreciation

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected usetul life and the expected

residual value at the end ot its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management at the time the

assel is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar

assets as well as anticipation ol future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

As at As at
31stMarch, 2018  31st March, 2017
4 4
Note 5. Other ancial assets
Non-current
Bank balances
osits with maturity of more than twelve manths 3,27,00,000 9,82,00,000
gin money deposits - 18,17,051
Sccurity deposits 65,000 50,000
Total 3,27,65,000 10,00,67,051
{
Project Advances 34,88,86,258 32,64,82,707
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 8,87,143 8,63,275
Other receivables (Other than Trade Receivables) 5,75,87,788 9,96,46,530
Total 40,73,61,190 42,69,92,512
Note 6. Current Tax assets and liabilities
Advance Tax paid 74.50,617 1,27,91,934
Total 74,50,617 1,27,91,934
Note 7. Inventories
Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value)
- Stock of material at site 39,28,038 -
- Stock in trade (Acquired for trading) - 40,78,735
- Incomplete projects 1,91,53,11,976 1,66,04,42,182
Total 1,91,92,40,014 1,6645. 917
Note 8. Cash ¢  cash equivalents
Balances w anks:
- in current accounts 24,10,010 23,77,175
- in deposit with maturity of less than three months 20,67,051 2,50,000
Cash on hand 14,444 71,962
Total 44,91,505 26,99,137
N 9.t .erbankbalances
Other bank deposits 6,55,00,000 -
Margin moncey deposits 500 O -
Total 6,60,00,000 -
FootN =
Balances with bank in margin money and fixed deposits are kept as security for guarantees / other facilities.
Note 10. Other assets
C
Advances to land owners 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

A ance recoverable in cash orin kind 14,76,57,661
Prepaid Expenses 5,25,539
Balance with stat  wry authorities 1,34,14,445
Plan Assets (Net of provisions ¥ 25,996} 64,9n%

Total 17,16,62,5

15,80,39,690

55,76,018
Ca QAN
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As at As at
31st March,2018  31stMarch, 2017
4 T
Note 11. Equity share ca] |
Equity share capital 72,70,94,550 72,700,94,550
Preference share capital 32,00,00,000 32,00,00,000
Total 1,04,70,94,550 1,04,70,94,550
Authorised Share Capital:
100,00 (P.Y. - 100.00) Ordinary Equity Shares ot T 10 cach 1,00,000 1,00,000
18134450 (P.Y.-181,34,450) Class A Equity Shares ol T 10 cach 18,13,44.500 18,13,44,500
20.16,050 (P.Y. - 20.16,050)Class B Equity Shares of T 10 cach 2.01.60,500 2,01,60.500
52558955 (P.Y. - 5,25,58,955) Class € Equity Shares ot 10 cach 52.55.89,550 52,55.89.550
3,20,00,000 (P.Y.-3.20,00,000), 17.75% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of T 10 cach 32,00.00,000 32,00,00,000
Total 1,04,71,94,550 1,04,71,94,550
Issued and subscribed capital ¢ rises:
Ordinary Equity Shares
100,00 (PY. - 2,00) Ordinary Equity Shares of ¥ 10 cach 1,00,000 1,00,000
Class A Equity Shares
1,81,34450(P.Y. - 1,81,34.450) Class A Equuly Shares of T 10 cach 18,13,44,500 18,13.44,500
Class B Equity Shares
20 16050 1P Y. - 20,16,050)Class B Equity Shares of ¥ 10 cach 2,01,60,500 2,01,60,500
C'L ity Shares
5,£5,58,955 (P.Y. - 5,25,58,955) Class C Equity Shares ot T 10 each 52.55,89,550 52,55,89,550
Preference Shares
3,20,00,000 (P.Y. -3,20,00,000), 17.75% Cumulative Compuisory Convertible Preference Shaves of T 10 cach 32,00.00,000 32,00.00,000
Total 1,04,71,94,550 1,04,71,94,550
a) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Number of shares Share Capital
Ordinary Equity Shares T
Balance at Ist April, 2016 10.000 1.00,000
Add / (Less) : Issued / (Bought back) during the year - -
Balance at 31st March, 2017 10,000 1,00,000
Add / (Less) - Issued / (Bought back) during the year - -
Balance at 31st March, 2018 10,000 1,00,000
Class A Equity  res
Balance at 1st Apnil, 2016 181.34.450 18,13.44,500

Add / {Less) @ Issued / (Bought back) during the year
Balance ac 3 1st March, 2017
Add / (Less) : Issuced / (Bought back) during the year

1,81,34450

18,13,44,500

Balance at 31st March, 2018 1,81,34,450 18,13,44,500

Class B Equity Shares

Balance at Ist April, 2016 20,16,050 2,01,60.500
Add / (Less): Issued / {Bought back) during the vear - -

Balance at 31st March, 2017 20,16,050 2,01,60,500
Add / (Less: Issued / (Bought back) during the year - -

Balance at31s  arch, 2018 20,16,050 2,01,60,500

Class C Equity Shares
Balance at 1st April, 2010
Add / (Less) : Issued / (Bought back) during the year

5,25.58,955

52,5589,550

Balance at 31st March, 2017 5.25,58,955 52.55.89,550
Add / (Luss) : Issued / {Bought back) during the year - -

Balance at 31st March, 2018 5,25,58,955 52,55,89,550

Preference res

B e at Ist April, 2010 3.20,00,000 32.00,00,000
Add / {Less) : Issued / {Bought back) during the year . -

Balance at 31st March, 2017 3.20.00,000 32,00,00,000
Add / (Luss) @ Issued / {Bought back) during the year - -

Balance at 31st March, 2018 3,20,00,000 32,00,00,000

b) rms / rights ot r

Equity Shares {Class 'A™):
Equity Shares {Class 'B) :
Fiuity Shares {Class 'CY 5
Ordinary Shares

Class A equity shares have no voting rights,

c) Ternw of Conversion of Preference Shares

Ordinary Equity shares have no voting and distributions rights,

Class B equity shores shall e entitled to 26% ol the total voting rights in the Company,
Class C eyuity shares shall be entitled to 7404 of the totad voting rights in the Company.

The Company has issucd 17.75%, 3.20.00,000, cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 cach {CCPS) on 26th February, 2014, Each CCPs
shall be campulsority convertible inte Class “B * Eauity Share at tair value, which is eyuivalent to the subscription amount of the CCPS in om

o1 alter Februare 27, 20 any divelend since date o issue ot the above preference shares,



JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIM D
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 20~

d) Details of shares held by cach shareholders holding more than 5% shares

i.F  tyShare Capital

Ordinary Equity Shares
Hubtown Limited
Shree Naman Developers

Class ‘A’ y Shares

Hublown Limited

High Scale Trading Private Limited
Grayline Real Estate Private Limited
Eknath Infraprojects Private Limited
J.P. Vaastu Nieman Private Limited

Class ‘B’ Equity Shares
SIREF [ Residential A Limited

Class 'C’ Equity Shares
Hubtown Limited

Preference Shares
SIREF 1 Residential A Limited

Note 12. Other Equity
Retained Earning

Retained Ear E

Balance at the beginning of the year

Prior Period Adjustment

Profit attributable to the owners ofthe company
Balance at the end of the year

As at 31st March, 2018

As at 31st March, 2017

No of shares held

% holding of this class of

No of shares held

% heolding of this

shares class of shares
7.400 74.00% 7,400 7 A
2,600 26.00%: 2,600 2600y,
10,000 100.00% 10,000 100 %
1,24,31,045 68.55% 1,24,31,045 68.55%
20,16,050 11.12% 20,16,050 1 2
11,08,827 6.11% 11,08827 v %
16,71,306 9.22% 16,71,306 9.224%,
9.07,222 5.00'% 9,07,222 5.00%
1,81,34,450 100.00% 1,81,34,450 100.00%
20,16.050 100 20,16,050 0
20,16,050 100% 20,16,050 Y%
5,25,58,955 100 5.25.58,955 100
5,25,58.955 100% 5,25,58,955 100%
3.20.00.000 100% 3.20,00,000 100%
3,20.00,000 100% 3,20,00,000 100%
As at As at
31st March, 2018  31st March, 2017
T T
[13,60,74.468) (12,01,53.521)
Total (13,60,74,468) (12,01,53,521)
{12,01,53.521} (6,5542.447)
{21.40,309) -
(1.37.80.639) 15.46.11,074]
Total (13.60,74.468) {12,01,53,521)

|









JOYNEST PREML 5 PRIVATE  AITED
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
T T
N :19.Revenue from operations
Sale from operations:
Revenue from sale of Tre ng Materials 3,02,22,608 22,81,282
3,02,22,608 22,81,282
Other operating revenue
Excess/Short provision for expenses 11,56,847 7,41,802
Creditor Balances Written Back 20,089 -
11,76,936 7,41,802
Total 3,13,99,544 30,23,084
N ). Other income
a ‘est Income:
- Loans 46,064,713 79,33,256
- Bank fixed deposits 67,20,514 38,73,918
- Others 23,04,627 3,55,650
1,36,89,853 1,21,62,824
b} Other gains and losses
Miscellaneous income 4,236 44,150
4,236 44,150
ral 1,36,94,089 1,22,06,974







JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE L
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE

ITED

INTS

JR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Note 27. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic Earnings Per Share
Class- A
Class- B
Class-C
Ordinary

D ited Earnings Per Share
Class - A
Class-B
Class-C
Ordinary

Basic EPS

As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017

T L4
(0.76) (3.05)
(6.85) (27.41)
(0.26) 1.05)

(1,380.39) (5,525.72)
(0.76) 3.05)
(1.22) 2.47)
(0.26) 1.05)

(1,380.39) (5,525.72)

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share

are as follows

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company

Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share

(1,38,03,903)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share

Class - A
Class - B
Class - C
01 nary
Total

D tedEPS
The earn

1,81,34,450
20,16,050
5,25,58,955
10,000
7,27,19,455

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company

Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share

(1,38,03,903)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share

Class - A
Class- B
Class - C
Ordinary
Total

For the p

1,81,34,450
7,40,16,050
5,25,58,955
10,000
14,47,19,455

first day of the previous year. The conversion ratio has been arrived at on face value basis.

(5,52,57,228)

1,81,34,450
20,16,050
5,25,58,955
000
7,27,19,455

3s and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per

(5,52,57,228)

1,81,34,450
7,40,16,050
5,25,58,955
10,000
14,47,19,455

sose of diluted EPS convertible instruments 17.75% Debentures are deemed to be converted on the






JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45202MHZ2008PTC183715
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Note 29. Related Parties Disclosures

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship

Parent/ Holding Company
Hubtown Limited

Citygold kducation Kesearch Limited
Citygold Farming Private Limited
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited

Others - Joint Ventures Of Holding Company (with Whom transactions have taken place )
Rising Glory Developers

Note: Related party relationships are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditor.
Previous year

Related party transactions and balance as at year end:

S, I are oftransaction Holding Fellow Subsidiary
D Company companies
a. Transactions with Related parties
i. Loans and Advances received \ recovered \ adjusted

i1t

Hubtown Limited

Citygold Education Rescarch Limited

Heddle Knowledge Private Limited

Citygold Farming Private Limited

Rising Glery Devclopers

Loans and Advances given/ repaid/adjusted
Hubtown Limited

Heddle Knowledge Private Limited

Citygold Farming Private Linuted

Citygold Education Research Limited

Rising Glory Developers

Reimbt nent of Expenses (Ho Allocation )
Hubtown Limited

35,76,20,278
(2.17,38,58,253)

38,42,75,239
(1,23,53,66,229)

99,31,603
(1,12,70,283)

(7,33,15,545)

(5.65,00,000)

15,22,00,000

5.00,00.,000

55,00,000
,30,00,000)

(15,00,00,000)

(34,33,15,545)

5,00,00,000



JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2018

C. Balance outstanding
Sr. Nature of ince outstanding As at As at
No. 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
3 T
i Balance outstanding Receivables :
Citygold Farming Private Limited - -
Citygold Education Research Limited - -
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited - -
Hubtown Limited 20,24,20,504 17,61,7 2,707
ii Balance outstanding payables :
Hubtown Limited - -
M/s Rising Glory Developers - -
Citygold Farming Private Limited 22,00,000 -
Citygold Education Research Limited - 27,00, 00
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited - 55 000

N 30.Contingent Liability

In the opinion of the management the company does not have any Contingent habilities, which have not been provided for.

Note 31.
The Company has created charge on its immovable property or any interest therein against borrowings on behalf of the related parties ar  hird

parties.

Note 32.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all the items of current assets, current labilitics & loans and advances continue to have a
realisable value of at least the amount at which they are stated 1n the balance sheet.

v



'NEST P SES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45202MH2 PTC183715
NOTES™ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THEYEARE  :D 31ST MARCH, 2018

Note 33. Capital Man: it

The primary objective of company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders value. The company’s board of directors reviews the capital
structure on an annual basis.

The capital structure of the company consists ol net debt (borrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and

total equity of the company. The borrowings consist of debentures issued, term loans from financial institutions and
from companies.

earing Ratio

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as fallows

As at As at
31st March, 2018  31st March, 2017
T T

Unsecured Loan 40,00,00,000 40,00,00,000
Secured Loan 15,05,134 19,76,306
Interest accrued and due/and but not due 1,32,970 7,32,07,856
Less: Cash and Bank Balance (44,91,505) (26,99,137)
Total Debt (A) 39,71,46,599 47,24,85,025
Equity Share Capital 1,04,70,94,550 1,04,70,94,550
Retained Earpings (13,60,74,468) (12,01,53,521)
Total Equity ) 91,10,20,082 92,69,41,029

Debt Equity Ratio A/B 43.59% 50.97%



JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Note 34. Post Retirement Benefit Plans

The Principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows,

Gratuity:

Discount Rate

Expected rate of salary increase

E. cted average remaining service

Service cost

Current service cost

Past service cost and (gain)/loss from settlement

Net interest expense

Component of define benefit cost recognised in profit or loss

Actuarial (gains) / losses for the period

C ) lefin en ( re iised in other comp  iensive income

Total

Present value of funded defined benetfit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Funded status
Movement in PV of defined benefit obligation

Opening define benefit obligation

Current service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gains) and losses arising trom changes in financial assumption
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in experience adjustment
closing define benefit obligation

Movements in fair value of plan assets

Opening fair value of plan assets

Interest income

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense)
Contribution from employer

closing fair value of plan assets

. t Information:

Gratuity Fund

Expected Payout:

Expected Outgo First Year

Expected Qutgo Second Year
Expected Qutgo Third Year
Expected Outgo Fourth Year
Expected Outgo Fifth Year

Expected Outgo Sixth to Tenth Years

Sensitivity Analysis:

As of 31st March, 2018, every percentage point increase in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation ¥ 20,900/-

As of 31st March, 2018, every percentage point decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity benelit obligation ¥ 32,671 /-

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Year ended
31stM  "h, 2017

T LS
7.67% 7.449%
5% 5%
24.89 23.04
19,450 17,005
(4.231) 42.504
15,219 509
{23,264) {6,46,154)
(23,264) (6,46,15-
(8,045) (5.86,645)
25,996 27,762
(90,901) (84,622)
(1,16,897) (1,12,384)
27,762 6,11,884
19,450 17,005
2,065 48,951
{1,378) 2,973
(21,903) (6,53,051)
25,996 27,762
84,622 79,066
6.296 6,447
(17) (3.924)
- 3,033
90,901 84,622

Total Amount

PVO Payout
457

1,054

1,676

2,325

3,001
40,724

Target Allocation
Y%

As of 31st March, 2018, every percentage point increase in salary escalation rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation¥ 32,732/-

As of 31st March, 20118, every percentage point decrease in salary escalation rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation ¥ 20,790/-

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit

obligation by vne percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant.

Projected service cost as on 31st March, 2019is ¥ 12,015/-

Narrations:
1 Analysis of Defined Benefit Obligation

There is no change in the number of members covered under the scheme. However, the total salary decreased by 31.68% during the accounting
period. Simiarly, the resultant liability at the end of the period over the beginning of the period has decreased by 6.36%

2 Expected rate ‘eturn basis:

Since the scheme funds are invested with LIC ol India EROA is based on rate ol relurn declared by Froul Manacers

3 Description of Plan Assets and Reimbursement Conditions -
L00Y%, of the Plan Asset is entrusted to LIC of Uty
Policy.

o

p Gratuity Scheme. The rein

Insurer’s Surrender

P
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Note 35. Financial Risk Management Objectives

Financial Risk Mana; ient Objectives
The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The

Company's financial risk mana it policy is set by the  inaging Board.
The Company manages market risk through a treasury department which evaluates and exercises independent contr  over
the entire process of market risk management. The trcasury department recommend risk management objectives and

policies which are approved by the senior management. The activitics of this department include management ¢ cash

resourses, borrowing strategies and ensuring compliance with the market risk limits and policies.

Market Risk

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to
company’s long term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

b) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash tlows of an exposure will fluctuate on account of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The company does not have any exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates from its
operating activities or investments in foreign companies.

Credit Ri
The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Credit risk from balances with banks and inter

corporate loans is managed by the company’s treasury department in accordance with the company’s policy.

Liquidity risk
The companies cashtflow requirement are met by funds received from its holding company.

Note 36. Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassitied whereever necessary.

As per our report of even date

KAMAL MATALIA

For Sanket R Shah & Associates Director

Firm ™ oot ormmney DIN : 00009695

Chart

SANK KHILEN V SHAH

Propr Director

Memt DIN: 03134932

Mumbai Mumbai

Date: 21 June, 2018 Date: 21 June, 2018
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B'CZOZ"Z' F.CA. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
9920424040 GANDHI MANSION, 3*° FLOOR, NEW SILK BAZAR, OPP KALBADEVI HEAD P. O,,
MUMBAI — 400 002 * Tel.: 2205 5916 * E-mail: ca_lalitkothari@yahoo.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF VAMA HOUSING LIMITED
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of VAMA HOUSING LIMITED
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018, the statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance

including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan



and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at
31st March 2018, and its financial profit for the year (including other comprehensive income},
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

The audited standalone financial statements for the year ended 31t March 2017, was carried
out and reported by Dalal Doshi & Associates, vide their unmodified audit report dated 25th
May 2017, whose report has been furnished to us by the management and which has been
‘relied upon by us for the purpose of our audit of the financial statements. Our audit report is
not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
L. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order;

Il.  Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have heen kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those hooks;



(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued there
under,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2} of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us :

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements, if any;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses and;

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FORL.]. KOTHARI & CO
Firm Registration No. 105313W

Charterad Acrrnnintantc

Place : Mumbai
Date :20thJune, 2018



ANNEXURE “A” REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF VAMA HOUSING
LIMITED ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH,
2018;

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information
and explanations given to us, we state that: -

(1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature
of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been
physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies between the books records and the physical fixed assets have
heen noticed;

(c)  Thetitle deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note [4] on Non-Current
Investments to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company;

(i)  The Company does not have any Inventories during the year; Therefore, the provisions
of clause 3(ii) of the said order are not applicable to the company;

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act;

iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any
pany g y y
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3 (iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company;

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year from the public within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to
the extent notified; Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3 (v) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company;

(vi)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and
hence the provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company;



(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(a)  According to the records of the Company, it has been regular in depositing,
wherever applicable, undisputed statutory dues including Investor Education
and Protection Fund, Wealth Tax, Goods & Service Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty,
Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There have been
delays during certain months in depositing Income Tax Deducted at Source. The
extent of arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at Balance Sheet date, for a
period exceeding six months from the date they became payable are ¥ 97,500/,
relating to Wealth Tax.

(b)  According to the information and explanation given to us and records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service
Tax, Sales tax including value added tax, duty of customs and duty of excise which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute;

As the Company does not have any loans or horrowings from any financial institution
or bank or Government as at the balance sheet date, Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practice in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any
instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such
case by the management;

The Company has not paid / provided managerial Remuneration hence, the provisions
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company;

The Company has not entered into any related party transactions as covered by the
section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transaction have been disclosed as
per Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosers specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.-Refer Note 22. Further, the
Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the
Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the provisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debenture during the year under review. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company;



(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3
(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company;

FORL.]. KOTHARI & CO
Firm Registration No. 105313W
Chartered Accountants

LALIT KOTHARI
Partner
Membership No.: 30917

Place : Mumbai
Date :20t% June, 2018



“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VAMA HOUSING LIMITED
(“the Company”) as of 31st March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risks. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that;



1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO
Firm Registration No. 105313W

Chavtarad Arcaiintante

Place : Mumbai
Date :20% June, 2018



VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH, 2018

Particulars Note As at Asat
No. 31" March, 2018 31 March, 2017
3 T
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a)  Property, plant and equipment 3 - -
(b)  Investment property 4 1,24,49,875 1,27,10,706
Total Non-Current assets 1,24,49,875 1,27,10,706
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
Trade Receivables 5 53,46,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents 6 88,368 20,345
(b)  Other Current Assets 7 1,305 -
()  Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 10,83,169 10,83,169
Total Current Assets 65,18,842 11,03,514
Total assets 1,89.68,717 1,38,14,220
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a)  Equity share capital 9 5,00,000 5,00,000
(b)  Other equity 10 {2,75,51,705) (3.06,77,506)
Total Equity (2,70,51,705) (3.01,77,906)
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11 4,41,05,000 4,36,70,000
(if} Trade payables 12 74,766 187221
(iii) Other financial liabilities 13 1,95,593 17,250
(b}  Other current liabilities 14 9,54,563 20,155
()  Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 15 593,000 -
(d) Provisions 16 97,500 97,500
Total Current Liabilities 4,60,20,422 4,39,92,126
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,89,68,717 1,38,14,220

As per our report of even date

For L.]. KOTHARI & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105313W

LALIT KOTHARI
PROPRIETOR
MEMBERSHIP NO. 30917

Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN

DIRECTOR
DIN: 07115916

H
v JR
DIN: 06843982




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 317 MARCH, 2018

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31" March, 2018 31" March, 2017
ks T
I INCOME
Revenue from Operations 17 49,50,000 -
Total Income 49,50,000 -
11 EXPENSES
Finance Costs 18 56,409 12,232
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 19 2,60,831 2,60,831
Other Expenses 20 4,18,559 3,35,673
Total Expenses 7.35,799 6,08,736
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 42,14,202 (6,08,736)
Tax Expense
(1} Current Tax (10,88,000) -
{2) Excess /(Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years - -
(10,88,000) -
Profit/(Loss) for the Year 31,26,202 (6,08,736)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 31,26,202 (6,08,736)
Earning per equity share of nominal value of ¥ 10/-each 21
Basic and Diluted 62.52 (12.17)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date

For L. ). KOTHARI & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105313W

LALIT KOTHARI
PROPRIETOR
MEMBERSHIP NO. 30517

Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

tAJEEVAN PARAMBAN

DIRECTOR
DIN: 07115916

H

LHKELIUR
DIN: 06843982




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% MARCH, 2018

Particulars 31" March, 2018 31" March, 2017
Amount Amount Amount Amount
® (%) [84] £4]
T Cashf ising f - —
Net Profit/(Loss) Before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 42,14,202 (6,08,736)
Add / {(Less):
Depreciation and Amortisation 2,60,831 2,60,831
Finance Casts 56,409 12,232
Interest Income - -
3,17,240 2,73,063
45,31,442 (3,35,673)
Add / {Less):
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities 10,00,296 1,36,456
Increase / {Decrease) Trade Receivables (53,46,000)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Assets {(4,96,305) -
Direct Taxes paid (48,42,010) 1,36/456
Net Cash flow in the course of Operating Activities {3,10,568) (1,99.217)
11. Cash flows arising from Investing activities
Net Cash flow in the course of Investing Actlvities - -
111 Cash flows arising from Financing activities
Inflow / [Outflow) on account of :
Finance Costs (56,409} (12,232)
Interest Income - -
Increase / (Decrease) in Unsecured Loans 4,35,000 (1,00,000)
Net Cash flow in the course of Financing Activities 3,78,591 (1,12,232)
Net Increase in cash and cash Equivalents (1+ 11 +101) 68,023 (3,11,449)
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 20,345 3,31,794
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 48,368 20,345
R iliati f Cash 1 Cash Equival (Ref )
Cash on Hand 330 330
Bank Balances in Current Accounts 88,038 20,015
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 88,368 20,345

As per attached report of even date
For L. ]. KOTHARI & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

FIRM REGISTRATION NO, 105313W

LALIT KOTHARI
PROPRIETCR
MEMBERSHIP NO. 30917

Place; Mumbai
Date; 20th June 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directers

RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN
DIRECTOR
DIN: 07115916

H
‘TOR
DIN: 06843982




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

Note Amount
9 X)
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at 1st April, 2016 5,00,000.00
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2017 5,00,000.00
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 311st March, 2018 5,00,000.00
B. OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Reser:ves & Sur_plus Total
Retained Earnings

Balance at 1st April, 2016 {3,00,69,170) (3.00,69,170)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (6,08,736) (6,08,736)
Balance at 31st March, 2017 (3,06,77,906) (3.06,77,906)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 31,26,202 31,26,202
Balance at 31st March, 2018 (2,75,51,705) (2,75,51,705)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per attached report of even date
For L. ). KOTHARI & €O. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105313W

RAajrevAN rAKAMBAN
DIRECTOR
DIN: 07115916

LALIT KOTHARI
PROPRIETOR H
MEMBERSHIP NO. 30917 vincuavR

DIN: 06843582

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th June 2018




[VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies,

1.1 Company Dverview
Vama Housing Limited is unlisted Public Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged into real
estate business specializing in construction and development of Infotech Parks, Cyber Parks, Business Parks, SEZ as well as sale and lease of commercial,
industrial and residential properties and other similar works.

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 20th June, 2018.

Note 2. Signiflcant Accounting Policies followed by the Company
L Basis of preparation of financial Statements

(i)} Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS?) as notified by,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
1) cerain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

2) assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell;

3) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

(iii} Current non-current classiflcation

All the assets and liabiliies have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the cperating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set
out in Schedule [I1 to the Act Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to
the respective project

It Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of Fnancial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of ¥nd AS requires management o make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported batances cf revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabiliies afTected in future periods.

a} Judgements

Classification of property

The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property comprises land and
buildings that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are heid
primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary
course of business. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the
company develops and intends to sell before or on completion of construction.

b) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Il Revenue recopnition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the Company and the revenue can be retiably measured
and also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyers' commitment to make the complete payment.

A.  Revenue from Construction Activity:
Revenue from sale of ‘finished properties / buildings / nghts’ is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership of such
properties / buildings / rights, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyer/(s), which generally coincides with the firming of the sale
contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still has obligations to perform substantial acts even after the transfer of all
significant nsks and rewards.

B. Interestincame:
Interest income including income arising on other instruments recognised on time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

C. Others:
Other revenues / incomes and costs / expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred.

v, Property plant and equipment, investment property and depreciation / ammortisation
A, Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including attributable interest and finance cost, if any till the date of|
acquisition/installation of the assets, less accumulated depreciation /amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

B. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule 11 fo the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions 1o
assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may|

be.
Asset Category Estimated useful life (in Years)
Office Equipments 5




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 317 MARCH, 2018
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Asset Category Estimated useful life (in Years)
Residential Flat 60
Taxation
. Curtent Tax

il

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrawing costs less
depreciation and impairment if any Depreciation on building is provided overit’s useful life using the written down value method.

Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation for assets class are as follows-

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax’ as reported in the financial statement of]
profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

In case the Company is liabie to pay income tax u/s 115]B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferved tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The cartying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset|
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferved tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the end of the reporting peried, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilites.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company priot to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other]
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after reporting period. For trade and other payables maturing
within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Trade receivable
A receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of geods seld or services rendered in the normal course of|
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less provision for

impairment

Borrowings and Borrowing costs

Borrowing are initally recognised at Net off transation cost incurred and measured at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds ( net of]
transation costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statetment of prefit and loss over ther period of the borrowings using the effective interest]
method.

Interests and other borrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate anributable to qualifying assets, which takes|
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction / development of such assets. Such allocaticn is
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account

Earnings per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares ouistanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus
issue, if any.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°' MARCH, 2018

XL
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XiiL

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shert-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are subject to an insigmificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assels

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (Jegal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an cutflow of]
embodying econemic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate
required to setile each ohligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current]
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of]
time is recognised as a finance cost,

Contingent iiabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obiigations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence
or nen-accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the contrel of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases,
where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Recent accounting pronguncements
Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (""MCA”"") has
notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on witial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.
The amendment will come into force from 1 April 2018. The Company exposure towards foreign currency transation is minimal, hence the impact on the
financial statements and effect on adoption of Ind AS 21 is expected to be insignificant
Ind AS 115
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has netified the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 (*amended rules™). As
per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind AS 18, “Revenue”
and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.
Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be
recognised when {or as} an entity transfer controt of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further the
new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.
The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reparting period presented in
accordance wath Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Rerrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up
approach)

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of IND AS 115 s
expected to be insignificent




'IVAMA HODSING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31™ MARCH, 2018

3. Property, plant and equipment

Cost or deemed cost *
Balance at 1st April, 2016

Additions

Disposals

Balance at 31st March, 2017

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1st April, 2016

Eliminated on disposal of assets
Depreciation expense

Balance at 31st March, 2017

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2017

Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1st April, 2017
Additions

Disposals

Balance at 31st March, 2018

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1st April, 2017

Eliminated on disposal of assets
Depreciation expense

Balance at 31st March, 2018

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2018

Office
Equipment

1,42,113

1,42,113

142,113

1,42,113

1,42,113

142,113

1,42,113

1,42,113




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% MARCH, 2018

As at As at
31" March, 2018 31™ March, 2017
T T
4. Investment property
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,95,57,675 1,95,57,675
Additions - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,95,57,675 1,95,57,675
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at the beginning of the year 68,46,969 65,86,138
Depreciation expense 2,60,831 2,60.831
Balance at the end of the year 71,07,800 68,46,969
Carrying amount 1,24,49,875 1,27,10,706
Note: Details of Income and Expense relating to Investment Property
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31" March, 2018 31" March, 2017
4 T
Rental income derived from investment properties - -
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating rental
income 2,33,165 2,82,284
Loss from Investment Properties before Depreciation 2,33,165 2,82,284
Depreciation 2,60,831 2,60,831
Loss from Investment Properties 4,93,996 5,43,115
As at Asat
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
L4 3
5. Trade Receivables
Current
Unsecured, Considered good 53,46,000 -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts -
Teotal 53,46,000 -
6. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- In current accounts 88,038 20,015
Cash on hand 330 330
Total 88,368 20,345
7. Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expense - Current 1,305
Total 1,305 -
8. Current Tax Assets {Net)
Advance Tax paid 10,683,169 10,83,169
Less:- Provision for Tax - .
Total 10,83,169 10,83,169




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

9. Equity share capital
Authorised Share Capital:

50,000 (P.Y. 31st March, 2017: 50,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:

50,000 (P.Y. 31st March, 2017: 50,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up

Footnotes:

(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the

beginning and at the end of the year.

Balance at 1st April, 2016

Add : Issued during the year

Less : Bought back during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2017
Balance at 1st April, 2017

Add : Issued during the year

Less : Bought back during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2018

(ii) Equity Shares held by its holding company or its ultimate

holding company.

Hubtown Limited with its benefeciary owners

(iii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Fully paid equity shares
Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners

Asat Asat
31* March, 2018 31" March, 2017
3 3
5,00,000 5,00,000
5,00,000 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000 5,00,000
Number of shares Share Capital
3
50,000 50,000
50,000 50,000
50,000 50,000
50,000 50,000
Asat Asat
31* March, 2018 31" March, 2017
(No.) (No.)
50,000 50,000
Total 50,000 50,000
31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
50,000 100% 50,000 100%

(iv) Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares :
The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to
one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held

by the shareholders.

10. Other Equity
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year

Profit/(Loss) attributable to the owners of the company

Balance at the end of the year

As at As at
31" March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T
(3,06,77,906) (3,00,69,170)
31,26,202 (6,08,736)
(2,75,51,705) (3,06,77,906)




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2018

As at As at
31*' March, 2018 31" March, 2017
X ¥
11. Borrowings
Current
Loans repayable on demand (Unsecured):
- From Related Party(Refer Footnote) 4,41,035,000 4,36,70,000
4,41,05,000 4,36,70,000
Footnote:

The Company has received interest free Loan from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the Company operate,
the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call / demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received is not
measureable precisely.

As at Asat
31" March, 2018 31™ March, 2017
¥ i
12. Trade payables
Trade Payables(Refer Footnote} 74,766 1,87,221
TOTAL 74,766 1,87,221

Footnote: As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the
Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered under MSMED
Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

13. Other financial liabilities

Current
Other payables 1,95,593 17,250
TOTAL 1,95,593 17,250
14. Other liabilities
Current
Other payables :
- Statutory dues 9,52,108 17,700
- Others 2,455 2,455
TOTAL 9,54,563 20,155
15. Current Tax Liabilities [Net)
Provision for Tax 10,88,000 -
Less : Advance Tax paid (4,95,000) -
TOTAL 5,93,000 -
16. Provisions
Current
Provision for Wealth Tax 97,500 97,500

TOTAL 97,500 97,500




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2018

17. Revenue from Operations
Management and Professional Fees Received
Total
18. Finance Costs
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues
Total
19. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Depreciation of investment property
Total
20. Other Expenses
Repairs and society maintenance charges
Legal and professional fees
Other expenses
Total
Footnote:
Auditors Remuneration (included in other expenses) :
Audit Fees

GST / Service Tax on above

Total

As at As at
31%March, 2018  31* March, 2017
4 4

49,50,000 -

49,50,000 -
56,409 12,232
56,409 12,232
2,60,831 2,60,831
2,60,831 2,60,831
2,33,165 2,82,284
1,63,163 24,343
22,231 29,047
4,18,559 3,35,674
10,000 15,000
- 2,700
10,000 17,700




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 317 MARCH, 2018

21. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share

(i) Basic and Diluted EPS

As at Asat
31" March, 2018 31" March, 2017
7 T
62.52 (12.17)

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of Basic and Diluted earnings per share

are as follows:

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company

Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share

(if) Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic
earnings per share

Year Ended Year Ended
31* March, 2018 31" March, 2017
T 4
31,26,202 (6.08,736)
31,26,202 (6,08,736)
Asat As at

31% March, 2018 31* March, 2017

50,000 50,000




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018
22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A. List Of Related Parties:

HOLDING COMPANY
Hubtown Limited

B. Transactions with Related Parties:

St. No. Particulars HOLDING COMPANY
1|Loans and advances received /recovered:
Hubtown limited 13,70,000
(3,00,000)
2 |Loans and advances Repaid/Glven:
Hubtown timited 6,35,000
(2.00,000)

Feotnote:
Figures in bracket pertains to previous year.

Balance outstanding payables / recelvables;

Nature of Transactions Amount
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
1{HOLDING COMPANY
Payables
Hubtown limited 4,41,05,000 4,36,70,000

Footnotes:
Related parties are identified by the Company and relied upcn by the auditors.

23. Contngent Liabilides
The Company does not have any contingent liability as at balance sheet date, as certified by management and relied upon by the auditors.

24 Inthe opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all iterns of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Loans and Advances continues to have a
realisable value of atleast the amounts at which they are stated in the balancesheet.

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s management oversees the management of these risks. The company’s
board of directors review and agrees poiicies for managing each of these risks summarized below:

1} Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Interest rate risk
Company has received intrest free loan and it receives interest free funds for its operating cash flow from its holding company as and when required {Refer
note 11}, hence the Company is not exposed to interest risk.

2) Credit Risk
The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the
company’s treasury department in accordance with the company's policy.

3} Liquidity risk
The companies cashflow requirement are met by funds received from its holding company.

26. Capital Management
The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value. The company’s board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis.




VAMA HOUSING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018
Note 27 :FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017

FVPL | FVOCI Amortised Cost FVPL | FYO(I Amortised Cost
Fi al A
Cash and cash equivalent - - 88,368 - - 20,345
Trade Receivables - - 53,46,000 - - -
Total of Financial Assets - - 54,34,368 - - 20,345
Fi ial Liabiliti
Borrowings - - 4,41,05,000 - - 4,36,70,000
Trade payables - - 74,766 - - 1,87,221
Other Financial liabilities - - 1,95,593 - - 17,250
Total of Financial Liabilities - - 4,43,75,359 - - 4,38,74,471

Note 28 : Loans and advances, other receivables, debtors and creditors are subject to confirmation
and are considered payable / realisable, as the case may be.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For L. ). KOTHARI & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105313W

RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN
DIRECTOR
DiN: 07115916

DIRECTOR
Mumbai DIN: 06843982
Date: 20th june 2018







An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial Statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financjal Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018,
and its profits {financial performance including other comprehensive Income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I.  As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2016°, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred
to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as
we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

II. Asrequired by Section143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books,

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and statement of
changes in Equity deait with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“"Annexure B”.



(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)] Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any material pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

jii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FORM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 103256W

MUKESH K. GOHEL
PROPRIETOR
M. No.: 038823

Place : Mumbai
Date : 21/06/2018



“ANNEXURE-A" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH I OF OUR REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OUR AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31= MARCH, 2018 OF UPVAN LAKE RESORTS
PRIVATE LIMITED

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets;

b) The company has physically verified its fixed assets at reasonable interval;

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no material discrepancies were noticed on
verification of such assets.

(ii)  Asexplained to us, the company does not have any inventory during the year. Accordingly the
provisions of this clause are not applicable to the company.

(iif)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any secured or unsecured loans to Companies, firms or other parties covered
in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(iv}]  As per the information received there are no loan, investment, guarantees and security to director
by the company.

v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India under the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(vi)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records
and hence such the provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the company;

{vii) a}  According to the records of the Company, there were interest on Tax Deducted at
Source ¥ 2,337/- outstanding at the last day of the financial year for a period
exceeding six months from the date they became payable;

b}  On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and
explanation provided to us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess.

{viii) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing to a financial
institution, banks, government or dues to debenture holders.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial -"lic
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and h=c nnt nhtainod anv
loans during the year



(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of the
material fraud on or by the Company, has been noticed or reported by the Company during
the year, nor have we been informed any such case by the Company;

(xi)  No Managerial remuneration has been paid or provided during the year.

(xii)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiit) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by
Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act, read with the relevant rules.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him/ her. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not appiicable

(xvi) In ouropinionand according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to be registered under section 45 [A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

FOR M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 103256W

MUKESH K. GOHEL
PROPRIETOR
M. No.: 038823

Place : Mumbai
Date :21/06/2018



“ANNEXURE-B” REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH I OF OUR REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 (“THE ACT") OUR AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 312 MARCH, 2018 OF UPVAN LAKE RESORTS PRIVATE
LIMITED.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of UPYAN LAKE RESORTS
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company”} as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internatl financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controis over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that [1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limijtations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
ICAL

FORM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 103256W

MUKESH K. GOHEL
PROPRIETOR
M. No.: 038823

Place : Mumbai
Date : 21/06/2018



UPVAN LAKE RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2018

Particulars As at As at
Note No. 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
T e
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 55,309 75,965
(b)  Financial assets
Investments in Firm 4 10,000 10,000
Total Non-Current assets 65,309 85,965
Current assets
(a)  Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,85,270 1,85,270
(b}  Other current assets 6 14,20,279 54,079
Total Current Assets 16,05,549 2,39,349
Total assets 16,70,858 3,25,314
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@)  Equity share capital 7 1,20,000 1,20,000
(b)  Other equity 8 (25,18,995) (34,02,341)
Total Equity {23,98,995) {32,82,341)
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities 9 9,00,000 15,57,984
Total Non-Current Liabilities 9,00,000 15,57,984
Current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 10 26,77,331 20,04,257
(ii) Other financial liabilities 9 66,452 43,077
(b)  Other current liabilities 11 4,26,069 2,337
Total Current Liabilities 31,69,852 20,49,671
Total Liabilities 40,69,852 36,07,655
Total Equity and Liabilities 16,70,857 3,25,314

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For M.K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

F m No: 1

MUKESH K GUHEL
PROPRIETOR
Membership No.: 0388,

Mumbat
Date: 21st June 2018

For and on behalf of the 8oarc

DNAVIR 3nAD
DIRECTOR
DIN: 07108862

SAMIR KUMAK DALU 1

DIRECTOR
DIN: 07115916



UPVAN LAKE RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Note No. 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
T T
I INCOME
Revenue from Operations - -
Share of Profit / (Loss) of Joint Ventures (365) -
Other Income 12 12,65,044
Total Income 12,64,679 -
I1 EXPENSES
Costs Of Construction / Development 13 - -
Finance Costs - -
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 3 20,656 20,656
Less: Attributable to Capital WIP (Tr, to CWIP) (20,656)
Other Expenses 14 53,177 4,90,698
Total Expenses 73,833 4,90,698
Profit before Tax 11,90,847 {4,90,698)
Tax Expense
Current Tax 3,07,500 -
Profit for the Year 8,83,347 (4,90,698)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income 8,83,347 (4,90,698)
Earning per equity share of nominal value of ¥ 15
10/- each.
Basic and Diluted 124.86 (40.89)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For M.K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firr ?-~~~—+~~ No: 1

MUKESH K GUHEL
PROPRIETOR
Membership No.: 0388:

Mumbai
Date: 21st June 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DOAYIR ONAN
DIRECTOR
DIN: 07108862

SAMIK KUMAK d»ALUT

DIRECTOR
DIN: 07115916



UPVAN LAKE RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
T T
Net Loss before taxes as per Statement of Profit and Loss 8,83,347 (4,90,698)
Add / (Deduct) :
Interest Expenses 11,454 -
Prospective project written off (Net) - 3,95,495
Share of Profit / (Loss) of Joint Ventures - -
Depreciation 20,656 20,656
Operating Profit / (Loss) before Working Capital Changes 9,15,457 (74,547)
Add / (Deduct) :
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advances (13,66,200) -
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable 6,73,074 (18,21,314)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other liabilities and other previsions 447,107 18,36,625
(2,46,019) 15,311
Net Cash Flow in the course of operating activities 6,69,438 (59,236)
Il Cash Flow from [nvesting Activities:
Inflow / [Qutflow) on account of:
Fixed Assets Acquired - -
{Increase) / Decrease in Capital Work-in-Progress - 23,516
Proceeds from Long Term Investments - -
Net Cash Flow in the course of Investing activities - 23,516
II1 Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
nflow n nt of:
Interest Paid (11,454) -
Borrowings (6,57,984) (80,160)
Net Cash Flow in the course of Financing activities (6,69,438) (80,160)
Net Increase / (Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents (I + IT + 11I) {4} (1,15,880)
Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 1,85,270 3,01,150
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 1,85,270 1,85,270
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 1,85,263 1,85,263
Cash on hand 7 7
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 1,85,270 1,85,270

As per our report of even date

For M.K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Fir n No: 103256W

MUKE>H K LWHEL
PROPRIETOR
Membership No.: 038823

Mumbai
Date: 21st June 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

BHAVIR DHAR
DIRECTOR
DIN: 07108862

SA]‘III\ [LLVILYV, TIRS Y, VLV f

DIRECTOR
DIiN: 07115916



UPVAN LAKE RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018 ®
Equity Share Capital Retained Earnings Total

Balance at March 31, 2017 1,20,000 (34,02,341) (32,82,341)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 8,83,347 8,83.347

Balance at March 31, 2018 1,20,000 (25,18,995) (23,98,995)

As per our report of even date

For M.K. GOHEL & ASSOCJATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTAN
Fim = T Tl 1030

MUncon nuwuncyu
PROPRIETOR
Membership No.: 038823

Mumbai
Date: 21stJune 2018

BHAVIK SHAH
DIRECTOR
DIN: 07108862

SAMIK KumaAaK >aLuT
DIRECTOR
DIN: 07115916




UPVAN LAKE RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

21

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Company Overview

Upvan Lake Resorts Private Limited is a Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in
the real estate business.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 21st June, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’} (1o the extent notified) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The Company has adopted all the IndAS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with IndAS 101 First time adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (1GAAP), which was the previous GAAP. Reconciliations and
descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in Note 27.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

a) Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following:

i. certain financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value

ii. assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

iii. defined benelit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

b} Current and Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it is:

i. Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii. Expected 1o be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting
period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:

i. Ivis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

il. Iltisheld primarily for the purpose of trading

ili. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Operating cycle for the business activities of the company covers the duration of the specific project / contract / service and extends upto
the realisation of receivables within the agreed credit period nermally applicable to the respective project

REVENUE RECOGNITION

A.  Revenue from Construction Activity
Revenue from sale of finished properties / buildings / rights’ is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership of
such properties / building / rights, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyer/(s}, which generally coincides with the
firming of the sales contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still has obligations to perform substantial acts even
after the transfer of all significant risks and rewards.

B. Interestncome
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount cutstanding and the rate applicable.

C. Profit / loss from partnership firms / association of persons:
Share of profit / loss from partnership firms / association of persons (AOP) is accounted in respect of the financial year of the firm / AOP,
during the reporting period, on the basis of their audited/ management reviewed accounts, which is considered as a part of other

operating activity.

D. Others
Other Revenues/ Income and Costs / Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, asthey earned or incurred.
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(i)

(i)

(iii)
(iv}

v)
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2.4.4

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION

A. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

B. Depreciaticn is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in the manner specified in Schedule H
to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such
addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be.

Asset Category Estimated useful life {in Years)

Office Equipments 3

Furniture and Fixture 10
INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified into Current and Non Current / Long Term Investments. Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair
value. Long term investments are stated at cost. A provision for diminutien is made to recognize decline, other than temporary, in the value of
long term investments.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Al
financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition except for trade receivables which are initially measured at
transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributabie to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that are
not at fair value through profit or loss,are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are
accounted for at trade date.

Subsequent measurement

Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractuai cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business mode! whose
objective is achieved by hoth collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cases
where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity
instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration
recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables
maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market
conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available
quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never
actually be realized.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the
finacial asset and the ransfer qualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109. A financial liability {or a part of a financial liability} is derecognized
from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss {ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through
profit or loss. Loss allowance lor trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For
all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL. unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an
impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss.
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Non-financial assets
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets and properiy, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows
that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset
belongs.

TAXATION

i. Current Tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement
of profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
In case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115}B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal
income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the
specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

ifi. Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductibie temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no Jonger
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is setted or
the asset realized, based on tax rates {and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting peried, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

ifi. Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are alse recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

Borrowings are initially recognised at the net transaction costs incurred and measured at ammortised cost Any difference between the
proceeds [net of transaction costs) and the redempton amount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of the cost of
construction / development of such assets. Such allecation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted
and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other
borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company is engaged in the business of Real Estate Development, which as per Ind AS - 108 ‘Operating Segments’ is considered to be the

only reportable business segment. The Company is also operating within the same geographical segment. Hence, disclosures under Ind AS - 108
are not applicable.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of
obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.
Contingent liability

* Possible obliga «d only by future events not wholly within the contr

* Present obligat ts where it is not probable that an outflow of resou settle the obligation

cor a rehable esi »bligation cannot be made.
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10 USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptons.
These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting pelicies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the
use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note 2.10.1 Accounting estimates cculd change from period to period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates, Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are
made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

2.10.1 Critical accounting judgements and estimates
a. Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected
residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management at the time the
asset is acquired and reviewed peicdically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

b. Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the company’s assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability,
the Company uses market-cbservable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Company works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate vatuation techniques and inputs to the model.
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3. Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

Carrying amounts of:
Office Equipments
Furniture and Fixtures

Capital work-in-progress

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at 31st March, 2017
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31st March, 2018

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 31st March, 2017
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Depreciaticn expense

Balance at 31st March, 2018

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2018

As at As at As at
31st March, 2018 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016
3,603 4,118 4,632
51,706 71,847 91,989
55,309 75,965 96,621
. . 4,95,72.457
55,309 75,965 4,96,69,077
. Furniture and
Office Equipments Fixtures Total
. Fumniture and
Office Equipmenlts Fixtures Total
13,520 271,644 2,85,164
13,520 2,71,644 2,85,164
9,402 1,99,797 2,09,199
514 20,141 20,656
9917 2,19,938 2,29,855
3,603 51,706 55,309
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31st March, 2018 31stMarch, 2017
T T
4. Investments
Non Current Investments
(Trade, unless otherwise specified)
Capital Investment in Partnership Firms (Refer footnote) 10,000 10,000
M/s Rising Glory Developers - -
10,000 10,000
Less: Provision for Diminution in the value of investments
Total Non Current [nvestments 10,000 10,000
Footnote:
Details of Investments made in capital of partnership firm:
Sr 31stMarch, 2018 31st March, 2017
No Name of Partners Profit Sharing Ratio Profit Sharing Ratio
1 |Hubtown Limited 20.00% 20.00%
2 |Ackruti Safeguard System Private Limited 5.34% 5.34%
3 |Citygold Education Research Limited 5.34% 5.34%
4 |Citygold Farming Private Limited 5.34% 5.34%
5 |Diviniti Projects Private Limited 5.34% 5.34%
6 |Halitious Developers Limited 5.34% 5.34%
7 |Headland Farming Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
8 [Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
9 {Heet Builders Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
10 |Hoary Realty Limited 5.33% 5.33%
11 |Subhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
12 |Sunstream City Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
13 |Upvan lake Resort Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
14 |Vega Developers Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
15 [Whitebud Developers Limited 5.33% 5.33%
16 |Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
TOTAL 100% 100%
Toatal Share Capital in Firm (%) 1,50,000 1,50,000
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5. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

- in current accounts

Cash on hand

Cash and cash equivalents

6. Other assets
Current

Advance to contractors
Other receivable

Total

As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
T T
1,85,263 1,85,263
7 7
1,85,270 1,85,270
54,079 54,079
13,66,200
14,20,279 54,079




UPVAN LAKE RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

7. Equity share capital Asat As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
T T
Authorised Share Capital:

50,000 (As at March 31, 2016: 50,000; As at April
1, 2015: 50,000) Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
fully paid up 5,00,000 5,00,000

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
12,000 (As at March 31, 2016: 12,000; As at April
1, 2015: 12,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully

paid up 1,20,000 1,20,000
Fully paid equity shares 1,20,000 1,20,000
Footnotes: Number of shares Share Capital

(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning 4

and at the end of the year.

Balance at March 31, 2017 12,000 1,20,000
Add : Issued during the year - -
Less : Bought back during the year - -

Balance at March 31, 2018 12,000 1,20,000

(ii) Equity Shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding Asat As at
company.
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
(No.) (No)
Hubtown Limited with its benefeciary owners 50000 50000
Total 50000 50000
(iii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares
As at 31 December 2017
No of shares held % holding
Fully paid equity shares
Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 9,000 75.00%
Arunkumar Mahabal Suvarna 1,000 8.33%
Vivek Sadanand Salian 1,000 8.33%
Prasad Shashikant Kolambkar 1,000 8.33%
Total - 12000 100%

(iv) Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares :
The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is
entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the

As at As at
31st March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T b4
8. Other Equity
Retained Earnings (34,02,341}) (29,11,643)

Balance at the beginning of the year 8,83,347 (4,90,698)

Profit attributable to the owners of ! G ool
Balance at the end of the year }
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As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
T T

9. Dther financial liabilities
Non-current
Retention money payable - 6,57,984
Lease deposits from tenants 9,00,000 9,00,000

TOTAL 9,00,000 15,57,984
Current
Business Advances for project from related party(Refer Footnote) - -
Other payables 66,452 43,077

TOTAL 66,452 43,077

Foot note :

The Company has received interest free Advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which
the Company operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call / demand as the repayment period
of such amounts so received is not measureable precisely.

10. Trade payables
Trade Payables(Refer Footnote) 26,77,331 20,04,257

TOTAL 26,77,331 20,04,257

Footnote :

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under
the Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 {(MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are
registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

11. Other current liabilities

Current
Other payables :
Provision for Tax Liaility 3,07,500
Less: Advance Tax paid (1,26,500]
1,81,000 -
- Statutory dues 2,45,069 2,337

TOTAL 4,26,069 2,337
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12. Revenue from operations Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
T T
Other operating revenue :
Management and Professional Fees Received 12,65,000
Sundry Creditor Balances Written Back 44
TOTAL 12,65,044 -

13. Costs Of Construction / Development
Construction costs incurred during the year:

Construction Cost - 16,970

Other Construction expenses - (61,142)

Add / (Less) : Transferred to CWIP - 44,172
TOTAL - -

14. Other Expenses

Legal and professional fees 10,893 22,046
Prospective project written off (Net) - 395,495
Other expenses (Refer Footnote) 23,010 56,656
Filing Fees 5,320 -
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 11,454 16,501
Profession Tax (Company) 2,500
TOTAL 53,177 4,90,698

Footnote:

Audit Fees 19,500 19,500

Service tax/GST on above 3,510 2,925

TOTAL 23,010 22,425
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Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
T T
15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share 124.86 (40.89)

(i) Basic and Diluted EPS

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows:

Year Ended
31st March, 2018

Year Ended
31st March, 2017

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 14,98,347 (4,90,698)
Any other adjustments
Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share 14,98,347 (4,90,698)
Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted
12,000 12,000

earnings per share
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A. List Of Related Parties:

i) Holding Company
Hubtown limited

iil} Firm with whom Company is Partener
Rising Glory Developers

iii) Other significant infuences with whem transaction taken place

Citygold Management Services Private Limited

Footnote:

Related party relationship are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

B. Transaction with Related Parties -

)
Sr. Particulars HOLDING COMPANY OTHER
No. SIGNIFICANT
INFLUENCES
1|Loans and advances received /recovered:
Hubtown limited - -
(49.500) -
2|Balances Written Off
Hubtown limited - -
(4.91,53,446) -
3|Share of Lossof Joint Ventures
Rising Glory Developers - 1,056
- (691)
4|Reimburesement of Expenses
i} | Citygold Management Services Private Limited - 5,320
(48,170)
ii}iHubtown limited - -
{9,630)
Footnote:
Previous Year figures are given in brackets.
Balance outstanding payahles / receivahles:
Nature of Transactions Amount(X)

31st March, 2018

31st March, 2017

31st March, 2016

1|Hubtown limited - 4,72,64,446
2|Rising Glory Developers 10,000 10,000 10,000
5.320 -29,170 1600

3|Citygold Management Se:
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17. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The company does not have any contingent liability as at the balance sheet date, as certified by management & relied
upon by the auditors.

18. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Loans
and Advances continues to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance
Sheet.

19. Financial Risk Management Objectives

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’'s management oversees the
management of these risks. The company’s board of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks summarized below:

1) Market Risk

Interest rate risk
Company has received intrest free Business Advances and it receives interest free funds for its operating cash flow
from its holding company as and when required (Refer note 10), hence the Company is not exposed to interest risk.

2) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer
contract leading to a financial loss. The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade
receivables.

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company’s treasury department in
accordance with the company’s policy.

3) Liquidity risk
The companies cashflow requirement are met by funds received from its holding company.

20.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The primary objective of company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders value. The company’s board of directors reviews the capital

structure on an annual basis.

21. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable with
current year figures.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For M.K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTAM™C
Firm Panicteation No: 10
SArun numnn onlOT BHAVIK SHAH
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
MUKESH K GUHEL DIN: 07115916 DIN: 07108862
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Membership No.: 03882

Mumbai
Date; 21st June 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of Vega Developers Private Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of VEGA DEVELOPERS
PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company’}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “standalone Ind AS financial
statements”,

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Actread with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters

which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
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audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone [nd AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 31st March, 2018,
and its financial performance including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

Attention is invited to: (1f Any ) NIL
Other Matters
Attention is invited to: (if any) NIL

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the provisions of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order") issued by

the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A", a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order;

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the statement of

changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018 taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (™ -“*" - * -



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 on Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements in our report of even date to the members VEGA DEVELOPERS
PVT LTD on the financial statement for the year ended on March 31, 2018, we
report that:

(i) a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars
including quantative details and situation of fixed assets.

b} The management at reasonable intervals has verified the fixed
assets . We Have been informed that no material discrepancies on
such verification have been noticed.

(i) a} As per the records maintained, the management has conducted
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals.

b) In our view the procedures of physical verification of inventory
followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the company and nature of business.

c] In our view , the company has maintained proper records of
inventory. No discrepancy has been noticed on physical verification of
stocks as compared to the books record

(iiij The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189
of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii) (a) and 3(iii) (b} of the
Order are not applicable

{ivi In our opinion and according to the information and explanation give to us,
the company has complied with section 185 and section 186 of the
companies Act 2013 in respect of corporate guarantee given in connection
with the loan taken by the others from bank or financial institutions and
investment in other related party.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from public in terms of the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, We are
informed that no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or Court or any other
tribunal. Accordingly, the Company has complied with the provisions of
section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vij  Central Government has not prescribed/specified the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (l) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,
hence clause (vi) of Paragraph 3is not applicable to the company.

(vii}  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax and any
other statutory dues with the ~nmrerricte cothgritieg,



(viii)

(ix)

(x)

{xi)

(i)

(xiii}

{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
dues of income-tax, service tax, wealth tax, which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute.

Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanation give
to us by the management, the company has not borrowed any amount from
financial institutions or bank or Government issued debentures till 31st
March 2018. Hence clause (viii) of Paragraph 3 is not applicable to the
company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation give to us,
the company has not raised money by way of public issue/ follow-on offer
(including debt instruments). The company has not obtained housing loan
during the year .

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the
Company by its officers/ employees was noticed or reported during the
course of our audit

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information
and explanations given to us the company has paid/provided managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Act.

According to the record of the Company and the information and
explanations given to us the company, the company is not the Nidhi
Company, hence the clause (xil) of Paragraph 3 is not applicable to the
company.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the company has complied with Section 188
and 177 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable in respect of all
transactions with the related parties and the details have been disclosed in
the Financial Statements etc. as required by the accounting standards and
Companies Act, 2013.

According to the record of the Company and the information and
explanations given to us the company, the company has not made
preferential allotment / private placement of shares during the year under
review and the requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence
the clause (xiv) of Paragraph 3 is not applicable to the company.

According to the record of the Company and the information and
explanations given to us the company, the company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him hence
the clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 is not applicable to the company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For PM PANDE AND CO
Chartered Accountants



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (f) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. VEGA
DEVELPOERS PRIVATE LIMITED. (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to company’s
policies. the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and. both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company: (2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For P M PANDE AND CO

+ &



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2018

Particulars As at As at
Note 31" March 2018 31" March 2017
No. 2 T
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Financial assets

[nvestments 3 10,000 10,000
Total Non-Current assets 10,000 10,000
Current assets
(a) Inventories 4 13,49,67,025 16,50,26,830
(b}  Financial assets

(i) Trade Receivables 5 4,82,22,720 -

(if} Cash and cash eqguivalents 6 498,612 472,887

(iii) Other financial assets 7 720 720
(c)  Other current assets 8 9,60,750 2,82,10,750
Total Current Assets 18,46,49,827 19,37,11,187
Total assets 18,46,59,827 19,37,21,187
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a)  Equity share capital 9 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000
{(b)  Other equity 10 (11,57,039} {10,92,391)
Total Equity 2,88,42,961 2,89,07,609
Current Liabilities
(a)  Financia!l Liabilities

(i} Trade payables 11 4,82,62,564 5,25,49,210

(ii) Other financial liabilities 12 10,73,20571 11,21,20,789
{b)  Other current liabilities 13 233,731 1,43,579
Total Liabilities 15,58,16,866 16,48,13,578
Total Equity and Liabilities 18,46,59,827 19,37,21,187
The accompanying notes are an intergal part of financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalfof thel’ * "7
FOR P. M. PANDE AND CO
FIRM RECISTRATIAN N 107789 W [

DIRECTOR

frd. LUl JuUlll, £V 10

DIN: 00546842

RFIILEN 2NIAN

DIRECTOR
DIN: 03134932

o




VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2018
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31"March 2018 31" March 2017
T T
I INCOME
Revenue from Operations 14 4,82,22,720 -
Other Income 15 15,000 -
Share of Profit / (Loss) of Firms (1,937) -
Total Income 4,82,35783 -
Il Expenses
Costs Of Construction / Development 16 4,82,22,720 73,640
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 17 (1,08,251) {2,74,640)
Employee Benefits Expense 18 108,251 2,01,000
Finance Costs 19 - 44,971
Other Expenses 20 77,711 65,009
Total Expenses 4,83,00,431 1,09,980
Profit before Tax (64,648) (1,09,980)
Tax Expense
Current Tax - -
Profit for the Year (64,648) (1,09,980}
QOther Comprehensive Income -
Total Comprehensive Income {64,648) (1,69,980)
Earning per equity share of nominal value of ¥ 100/- each 21
Basic and Diluted (0.22) {037)
The accompanying notes are an intergal part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

FOR P. M. PANDE AND CO

[VIVA PRV FRch 3 KA



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

As at As at
Particulars 31" March 2018 317 March 2017
T T
Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss Account (64,648) (1,09.980)
Add / (Less) :
Finance Charges - 44971
Share of Profit / (Loss) of Firms 1,937
Provision no longer required written back {15,000)
Interest Income - {13,063
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (77.711) (65,009)
Add / (Less) :
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 3,00,59,805 (2,74,640)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (2,09,72,720) (56,538)
Increase / {Decrease) in Trade Payables & Other Payables (90,86,864) 1,13,259
Increase/ (Decrease} in Other Liablities 1,05,152 4,29,191
Direct Taxes Paid - 1,05,373 - 211,272
Net Cash flow in the course of Operating Activities 27,662 1,46,263
1. Cash flows arising from Ipvesting activities
inflow / (Dutflow) on account of :
(increase) / Decrease in Investments (1,937) -
Net Cash flow in the course of Investing Activities {1,937 -
1. Cash flows arising from Finanging activities
Inflow / (Outflow) on account of :
Increase in Unsecured Loans - (2,32,496)
Interest and Finance Charges Paid - (44.971)
Net Cash flow in the course of Financing Activities . (2,77.467)
Net Increase in cash and cash Equivalents (1+11 +111) 25,725 (1,31,204)
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 4,72,887 6,04,091
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 498,612 4,72,887
R lliation of C Bank Bal o .
Cash on hand 4,54,114 4,39,114
Bank balance in Current Account 44,498 | 33,773
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4!98!612 4!72!887

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of
cash flows.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board
FOR P. M. PANDE & Co.

DIN: 00546842




VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 ™
Particulars Equity Share Capital | Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 31st March, 2016 3,00,00,000 (9,882,411} 2.,90,17,589
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {1.09,980} {1,09,980)
Balance as at 31st March, 2017 3,00,00,000 {10,92,391)| 2,89,07,609
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (64,648) (64,648)
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 3,00,00,000 {11,57,039}| 2,88,42,961

FOR P. M. PANDE AND CO

TIDM DTLICTRATION MO 107780 W




VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31™ MARCH, 2018

Note 1. Statement of Significant Acceunting Policies.

1.1 Company Overview
Vega Developers Private Limited is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the
real estate business of censtruction and development of residential and commercial premises.

1.2 The linancial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 20th June, 2018

Mote 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company

Basis of preparation of financial Statements

{i) Compliance with ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘Act’} read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015 as
amended and other relevant provisicns of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

[3i) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

2) assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell;

31 defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

{iii) Current non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Campany as per the guidance set
out in Schedule 1} to the Act Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duratien of the project/ contract including the defect liability
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables {including retention inonies, if any) within the credit peried normally applicable to
the respective project.

{iv) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule Iil, unless otherwise

stated.

IL. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

a) Judgements

Classification of property

The company determines whether a property 15 classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment preperty comprises land and
buidings that are not occupied substantially for use by, or 1n the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held
primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation, These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary
course of business. Inventory comprises preperty that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the
company develops and intends to sell before or on completion of construction,

b} Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company hased its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Exisuing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due te market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the contrel of the Company. Such changes are
refllected 1 the assumptions when they occur.

i) Revenue Recognition

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its revenue. The percentage of comgpletion is measured by reference to the
stage of the projects and contracts determined based on the propertion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date hear to the estimated toral
contract costs, Casts of the preject are based on the management's estimate of the cost to be incurred upto the completion of the projects and inctude cost
of land, Floor Space Index [FSI), materials, services and other expenses attributable te the projects. Estimates of preject income, as well as project costs,
are reviewed periodically. Costs expended have been used to measure progress towards cempletion of werk Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on
uncompieted contracts are recerded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date.

ii) Estitnation of net realisable value for inventory (including advance to land owner)

Inventory are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value {NRV).

NRV for completed property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices existing at the reporting date and 15 determined by the Company,
based on comparable transactions identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real estate segment.

NRY in respect of inventory under construction / incomplete projects is assessed with reterence to market prices at the reporting date for similar
completed praperty, less estimated costs to complete constructian and an estimate nf the time vatue of money to the date of completion.

With respect to Advance given to land owners, the net recoverable value is based on the present vatue of future cash flows, which depends on the
estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the estimation
of sale prices and construction costs,

iii} Yaluation of investment in/ loans to subsidiaries

The Company has performed valuation for its investments in equity of subsidiaries, associates and [¥'s for assessing whether there is any impairment.
When the fair value of investments in such entities cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
vatuation techniques including the discounted cash flow model.

Similar assessment is carried for exposure of the nature of loans and interest recejvable thereon as well as project advances, The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement 1s required in establishing fair values.
ludgements include considerations of inputs such as expected earnings in future years, liquidity risk ~rads eicl aod bl M in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported amounts of these investments, loans and advances.



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31™ MARCH, 2018

1L Re

venue recoghitdon

Revenue ts recognised to the extent that it is probable that the econcmic benefits wil! accrue to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured
and alse when it)s reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made and that there 1s buyers’ ccmmitment to make the coinplete payment

A

Revenue from sale of propertes / develepment rights

i. The company has adopted the principles of revenue recognition on the basis of " Guidance note un Accounting for Real Estate Transactions ” issucd
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, for the entities to whom IndAY 1 apphicabte.

i. Revenue frem sale of ‘finished praperties / buildings / rights” is recognisced en transfer of all significant nsks and rewards of ownership of such
preperties f bulldings / rights, as per the terms of the contracts entered inte with buyer/(s), which gererally coincides with the firming of the sale
contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still has obligations to perform substantial acts even after the transfer of all
sigmificant risks and rewards.

Revenue from sale of incemplete properties / projects is recogmized on the basis of percentage of compieticn methed anly if the following threshelds
have been met :
a. All critical approvals necessary for the commence ment of the project have been obtained;
b. The expenditure incurred on construction and development costs, excluding land costs, is not less than 25% of the total estimated

construction and development costs of the project;
c. Atleast 25% of the saleahle project area s secured by apreements with the buyers; and
d. Adeast 10% of the agreement value of each sold uni has been received at the reperting date in respect of such contracts

with the buyers.
Further, revenue recognized in the aforesaid manner and related cests are both restricted to 90% until the construction activity and related
formalities are substantially completed. Recognition of revenue relating to agreements entered into with the buyers, which are subject to fulfllment
of obligations / cunditions imposed on the Company by statutory authorities is postponed till such ohligations are substantially discharged.

Estimated costs relating to consbruction / development are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in propertion to the revenue recognized
during the year. The balance costs are carried as part of ‘Incomplete Projects’ as inventeries under current assets. Ameounts receivable / payable are
reflected as "Trade Receivahles / Unbilled Receivables or Advances from Customers’. respectively, after considering income recognized in the
aforesaid manner.

iv. Losses expected to be incurred on projects under construction, are charged in the Statement of Prefit and Less in the period in which the lesses are

-

vi.

known.
. Costs of the projects are based on the management’s estimate of the cost to be incurred upte the completion of the projects and include cost of land,
Floor $pace Index {FS1), materials, services and other expenses attributable to the projects, Estimates of project income, as well as praject costs, are
reviewed periodically.
The sale proceeds of the investments held in subsidiaries, joint ventures, etc, developing real estate projects are included (n reyenue from
operations, net of cost
Profit / loss from partnership firms / association of persuns:
Share of profit / loss from partnership firms / assooiabion of persons {AOP) is recognised on the hasis of their audited/ management reviewed
accounts, which is considered as a part of other operating activity.
Others:
Dther revenues / incomes and costs / expenditure are avcounted en accrual, as they are earned or incurred,

. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument 1s any contract that gives nse to a financial asset of ene entrty and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,

A

Financial Assets

i, Initial recognition
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amornsed cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an ebiective to held
these assets 1n order ta collect contractual cash Nows and the contractual terms ef the Hnancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effectve interest rate (“EIR"} methed. Impairment gains or Josses ansing on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

i, Subsequent measurement

For purposes cf subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categeries:

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A financial asset 1s subsequently measured at amortised cost if it 1s held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to

collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of

principal and interest on the princtpal amount outstanding

b) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI f these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these
assets in order te collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give nise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest an the principal amount outstanding, Movements in the carrying amaunt are
taken through OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business mode!,
for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial asset rot measured at amortised cost or at fair value through GClis carried at FYTPL

On transition to Ind Ay, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its
investments |n subsidiaries, assoviates and joint ventures and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of these investments on the date of
transition i.e. 1st April, 2015,

De-recogniticn of Financial Asseis:

The Company de-reregnises a financiat asset only when the contractual rights to the rash Mows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all risks and rewards of cwnership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers ner retains substantialty all
the risks and rewards of awnership and rontinues te control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes 1ts retained interest in the assets and an
associated liabilny for amounts it may have 1o pay.

If the gompany retains substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownershep of a transferred financial aceat the Camean ceerinues to recagnise the
financial asset aed also recognises a collateralised borrowtng for the proceeds received.



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2018

vl

B.  Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

. Egquity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a vesidual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the preceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for
consideration cther than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.

. Financial Liabilities
1. Initial Recognition
Financiat liabilities are classified, at imitial recognition, as financial habihities at FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate, All inancial
liabitities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

2. Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial habilities depends on their classification, as described below:

- Financial liabilities at FYTPL

Financial liabilities at FYTPL include financial Habilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses an
liahilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the helder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liahility is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation, Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

- Financial liabilities at amertised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilittes

Financia) Yjabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and reccgnition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Offsettdng Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are cffset and the net amount is reperted in the Balance Sheet 1f there 15 a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the habilities simultaneously.

Derecogniton of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the finacial asset
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liahitity) is derecognized from the Company's
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss [ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or
joss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. Fer all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured atan amount equal to the 12-month ECE, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the repnrting date to the amount that is required te be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or
loss.

Nen-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 1s an :ndication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recaverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s {CGU) fair value tess costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individua) asset,
uniess the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropnate valuation model 15 used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

. Intangibie assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverabihty wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
CArrying amounts may not he recoverable. For the purpose of imparrment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell
and the vatue-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. in such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

ii. Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present tegal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is
probabie that ar outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obhigation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
Nows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liahilitv.
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VIl

Taxation

i. Current Tax
The tax currently payable is hased on taxable profit for the year, Taxable proft differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financial statement af
prafit and loss becauseef items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

In rase the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115]B of income Tax Act, 1961 {1.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is
recognized as an asset {MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

ii. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recogmized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabihities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable prefit Deferred tax liabilities are generaily recegnized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temperary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow ali or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the peried in which the liability is sertled or the asset
realized, based on tax rates [and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reftects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the end of the reparting periad, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year

VIE

XL

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to iterns that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and defetred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in eqoity respectively.

inventories

All inventories are stated at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower.

Stock of material at Site’ includes cost of purchase, other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cest formula
used 1s average cost

Incomplete Projects’ include cost of incamplete properties for which the Company has not entered inte sale agreements and in other cases where the
revenue recognition is pastponed. ‘Incomplete Projects’ also include initial project costs that relate directly to a [prospective) project, incurred for the
purpose of securing the project. These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable
and it is probable that the respective project will be obtained.

Inventory value includes costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land / rights, value of floor space index {F51}, materials, services and
other expenses (including borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after reperting penad. For trade and ather payables maturing
within one year from the batance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due ta the short maturity of these instruments,

Trade receivable

A receivable is classified as a 'trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on acceunt of goods sald or services rendered in the normal course of
business, Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less provision for
impairment

Employee benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, lahour welfare fund are charged as an expense based on the amount af
contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. Company’s provident fund contributien is made to a government
admtnistered fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss, The abave benelfits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as
the Company has no further obligations beyond the monthly contributicns.

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company pravides for gratuity which is a defined benefit plans the liabilities of which is determined based on valuations, as at the balance sheet date,
made by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of gratuity
are recognised in the OCI, in the period in which they occur, Re-measurement recognised in OCH are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods.

The classification of the Company’s obligatien into current and non-current is as per the actuariai valuation report

c} Leave Entitlement

Leave entitlement are provided based on an acwarial valuation, similar to that af gratuity benefit. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, in respect of leave entitlement are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur,

d) Short-term Benefits

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, performance incentives etc. are recognised as expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the period in which the related service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in
which the absences occur,
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XV.

XVl

XVIL

XVHE

Borrowings and Borrowing costs

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR methed. Gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as weil as threugh the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance cests in the Statement of Prefitand Loss.

Interests and other borrowing tosts included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets, which takes
substantial period of time to get ready for 1ts intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction / development of such assets. Such alivcation is
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no rosts are allocated once all such activities are substaotially
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other berrowing cests are charged to the Prefit and Loss Account.

Earnings per $hare

Basic earmungs per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus
issue, if any.

For the purpose of calcutating diluted earmings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharehelders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the eftects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Mows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cperating cash receipts or payments and item of ;ncome or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash Mlows from operating, investing and financing actwvities of the company are segregated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at hanks and on hand and short-term deposits with an criginal maturity of three months or
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash Mlows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported 1n a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decisien maker, The chief operating
decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating resuit of the whole Company as one segment of "Real Estate Development”. Thus, as defined
in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the Company’s entire husiness falls under this one operational segment and hence the necessary information has
already been disclosed in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provisions, contingent liabilitles and contingent assets

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to sertle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate
required to settle each cbligation at each balance sheet date, If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Jiabilities are disclesed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or mere uncertain future events not whelly within the control of the Company, A centingent liability also arises, in rare cases,
where a liability cannot be recognmised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are neither recogmsed nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Recent accounting pronouncements
Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration. On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corperate Affairs (“"MCA™) has
notified the Companies [Indtan Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreigncurrency transactions and
advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transactien for the purpase of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.
The amendment will come into force from 1 Aprit 2018. The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial
statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 21 is expected to be insignificant”
Ind AS 115
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 {“amended rules”). As
per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind AS 18, "Revenue”
and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.
Ind AS 115 introduces a new framewerk of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The madel specifies that revenue should be
recognised when [or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled, Further the
new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018,
The standard permits two pessible metheds of transition:

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of imitially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up
approach}
The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements.
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As at As at
31™March 2018 31%March 2017
T T
3. Investments
Non Current Investments
(Trade, unless otherwise specified)
Capital Investment in Partnership Firms (Refer footnote)
M/s Rising Glary Developers 10,000 10,000
Total 10,000 10,000
Footnote:
Details of Investments made in capital of partnership firm;
Sr 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
No Name of Partners Profit Sharing Ratio | Profit Sharing Ratio
1 |Hubtown Limited 20.00% 20.00%
2 JAckruti Safeguard System Private Limited 3.34% 5.34%
3 JCitygold Education Research Limited 5.34% 5.34%
4 jCitygold Farming Private Limited 5.34% 5.34%
5 |Diviniti Projects Private Limited 5.34% 5.34%
& |Halitious Developers Limited 5.34% 5.34%
7 |Headland Farming Private Limited 5.33% 3.33%
8 |Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
9 (Heet Builders Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
10 [Subhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
11 fSunstream City Private Limited 10.66% 10.66%
12 [Upvan lake Resort Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
13 [Vega Develapers Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
14 (Whitebud Developers Limited 5.33% 5.33%
15 | Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
TOTAL 100% 100%
Toatal Share Capital in Firm (T) 1,50,000 1,50,000
4, Inventories
Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value)
incomplete projects
Work in Progress (Kalina) 6,50,44,526 11,75,44,526
Work in Progress [Santacruz) 3,76,17,135 2,96,17,135
Work in Progress (Vile Parle) 3,23,05,363 1,78,65,168
Total 13,49,67,025 16,50,26,830
S. Trade Receivables
From Related Party 4,82,22,720 -
From Others - -
Total 4,82,22,720
6. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 44,498 33,773
Cash on hand 454114 439,114
Cash and cash equivalents 4,98,612 4,712,887
7. Other financial assets
Current
Security deposits 720 720
Total 720 720
8. Other current assets
Current
Advances to Suppliers 60,750 60,750
Advances / Deposits recoverable in cash or in kind 9,00,000 2,81,50,000
Total 9,60,750 2,82,10,750
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Asat Asat
31" March 2018 31" March 2017
T T
9, Equity share capital
Equity share capital _ 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000
TOTAL 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000
Authorised Share Capital:
300,000 (As at 31st March, 2017: 300,000) Equity
Shares of ¥ 100/- each fully paid up 3,00,00,000 3.00,00,000
Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
300,000 (As at 31st March, 2017: 300,000) Equity
Shares of ¥ 100/- each fully paid up 3,00,00,000 3.00,00,000
Footnotes: Number of shares Share Capital
(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning T
and at the end of the year.
Balance at 1st April, 2016 3.00,000 3,00,00,000
Add : Issued during the year - -
Less : Bought back during the year - -
Balance at 31st March, 2017 3,00,000 3.00,00,000
Add : Issued during the year - -
Less : Bought back during the year - -
Balance at 31st March, 2018 3,00,000 3,00,00,000
{ii) Equity Shares held by its holding company or its Asat Asat
ultimate holding company. 31st March, 2018  31st March, 2017
{(No.) (No.)
Hubtown Limited with its benefeciary owners 299994 300000
Others 6 0
Total 300000 300000
(iit) Details of shares held hy each shareholders holding more than 5% shares
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
No of shares held % of holding No of shares held % of holding
Fully paid equity shares
Hubtown Limited with Beniiciaty Owners 299,994 939.998% 3,00,000 100%
Others 6 0.002% - -
Total 3,00,000 100% 3,00,000 100%

(iv} Terms / rights attached to Eguity Shares:

The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 100/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one
vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2018

Year ended Year ended
31" March 2018 31" March 2017
T T
10. Other Equity
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (10,92,391) (982,411}
Profit attributable to the owners of the company (64,648) (1,09,980)
Balance at the end of the year {11,57,039) (10,92,391)
11. Trade payables
Trade Payables(Refer footnote} 4,82,62,564 5,2549,210
Total 482,62,564 5,25,49,210

Footnote:

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the
Micro Smalt Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered
under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

12. Other financial liabilities

Current
Advances payable in cash or in kind 11,00,000 -
Business Advances for project from related party(Refer Footnote) 10,61,39,198 10,59,99,198
Current Account balance in Firms (Refer Note 03) 12,628 10,691
Other payables 68,745 61,10,900
Total 10,73,20,571 11,21,20,789
Foot note :

The Company has received interest free Advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the
Company operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call / demand as the repayment peried of such
amounts so received is not measureable precisely.

13. Other Liabilities

Current
Other payables :
- Statutory dues 2,33,731 1,43,579
Total 2,333,731 1,43,579
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14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19,

20.

Revenue from Operation
Sale from Qperation:

Revenue from Sale of TDR

Others Income

Provision no longer required written back

Costs Of Construction / Development
Construction costs incurred during the year:

Purchase of TDR

Approval/Construction expenses

Changes in Inventories of Work-in-progress

Opening Inventory :
Work-in-progress

Add/({Less): During the year
Total

Closing Inventory :
Work-in-progress

Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, bonus, etc.

Finance Costs
[nterest costs:-
interest on Fixed loans

Other Expenses
Legal and professional fees
Filing Fee

Other expenses (Refer Footnote)

Footnote :

Auditors Remuneration
- Audit Fees

- Limited Review

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Year ended Year ended
31" March 2018 31" March 2017
T T

4,82,22.720 -
4,82,22,720 -
15,000 -
15,000 -
4,82,22,720 -

- 73,640
4,82,22,720 73,640
16,50,26,830 16,47,52,190

16,50,26,830 16,47,52,190
(3,01,68,056) -
13,48,58,774 16,47,52,190
13,49,67,025 16,50,26,830
13,49,67,025 16,50,26,830
{1,08,251) {2,74,640)
1,08,251 2,01,000
1,08,251 2,01,000
- 44,971
- 4,971
20,000 .
7.979 30,152
49,732 34857
77,711 65,009
30,000 28,750
30,000 28,750
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21. EARNINGS PER SHARE {EPS) Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
T T
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (0.22) 0.37)
Basic and Diluted EPS

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are
as follows:

Prafit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company [64.648) (1,059,980}
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share (64,648) {1,09,380})
Weijghted average number of equity shares for the purposes of 3,00,000 3,00,000

basic and diluted earnings per share

22, CONTINGENT LIABILITY
The company does not have any contngent liability as on the balance sheet date, as certified by the management and relied
upon by the auditor.

23. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company. all the items of current assets, current libilities & loans and
advances continue to have a realisable value of at least the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet

24, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary cbjective of company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support
its business and maximise shareholders value, The company's board of directars reviews the capital structure on an annual
basis.

The rapital structure of the company consists of net dehy [horrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of
the company.
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25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A. List Of Related Parties:

i)  Holding Company
Hubtown limited

ii) Firm with whom Company is Partner
Rising Glory Developers

iii} Subsidiaries of the Holding Company belonging to the same Group

Joynest Premises Pvt. Ltd.

Footnote:

(i) Related partyrelationship are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors,

(if) Previous Year figures are given in brackets.

B. Transaction with Related Parties -

)
Particulars HOLDING COMPANY
Loans and advances received /recovered:
Hubtown limited 12,40,000
(3,75,500}
Loans and advances Paid:
Hubtown limited 11,00,000
()
Sale of Properties/ Rights
Joynest Premises Pvt. Ltd. 482,22,720
()
Balance outstanding Receivables/(Payables):

Nature of Transactions Amount(X)
Receivable/(Payable) 31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
1|Hubtown limited (10,61,39,198) (10.59,99,198)

2|Rising Glory Developers
In Capital Account 10,000 10,000
In Current Account [12,628) {10,691)
3|Joynest Premises Pvt. Ltd. 4,82,22,720




Vega Developers Pvt. Ltd,

WIP as on 31st Mar

Addition/ Deletion

WIP as on 31st Mar

Particulars 2017 During the year 2018
Work-In-Progress (Kalina)
Convaeyance (Kalina) 19,473 19,473
CO-CRDINATION FEE (KALINA) 25,00,000 25,00,000
GENERAL EXP.(KALINA) 1,50,43,533 1,50.,43.533
Kalina {(Kunchikurve) Project 36,49,099 36,49,099
Kunchikorve Compiex Ca-Cp Society 6,12,000 6,12,000
Legal Charges 5902 5,902
Mohd. Farid Ali { SRA- KALINA PROJECT) 10,01,155 10,01,155
Office Exp. (Kunchikurve) 120 120
Professional Fees-Kalina 1,02,500 1,02,500
PROFESSIONAL FEES ON SITE 1,99,270 1,99,270
Sayyed Shaizadi Begum(Kalina Project) 90,000,000 90,00,000
Sheikh M.K {Kalina Project) 2,50,000 2,50,000
Soma S. Jadhav 7,17,000 717,000
Stamp Duty Charges(SRA - KALINA)} 9,72,272 972,272
Stationery (Kalina) 853 853
Wadia Land Kalina 8,34,63,888 (5,25,00,000) 3,09,63,888
Zerox {Kalina} 7,461 7,461
Total Rs. 11,75,44526 (5,25,00,000) 6,50,44,526
Work-In-Progress (Santacruz)
Conveyance (K.B.Lal Ind.) 14,504 14,504
K.B .Lal .Industries (Santacruz Project} 2,95,67,996 80,00,000 3,75,67,996
Legal Exp. -KB Lal 25,000 25,000
Mobile Expenses-K.B.Lal 400 400
Mobile Exp. (K.B. LAL IND) 4,719 4,719
STATIONERY (K B.LAL IND) 640 640
ZERQOX (K.B.LAL INDUSTRIES) 3,876 3,876
Total Rs. 2,96,17,135 80,00,000 3,76,17,135
Work-In-Progress (Vile Parle)
Bipin Vora (Ashok Niwas WiP} - (44,00,000) (44,00,000)
CFGC Charges 1,64,000 1,64,000
Conveyance (Parle Ashok Niwas) 22,615 22,615
ELECTRICITY EXPS.-ASHOK NIVAS 3,520 3,520
interest on Loan - WP 29,673 29,673
Maintainence Charges 58,146 15,506 73,652
Mobile Exps (Ashok Nivas) 7816 7816
Farle Ashok Niwas Co Op Hsg Soc Lid 65,632 1,92,52,650 1,93,18,282
Parle Ashok Niwas Co-Op. Soc. 6,18,174 6,18,174
Pravin Nanji Shah (Ashok Niwas WIP) (16,00,000) (16,00,000)
Professional Fees-Ashok Nivas 14,47,420 10,63,788 25,11,208
Rajeshree N. Joshi 95,00,000 95,00,000
Registration Charges (Ashok Niwas) 5,35,590 5,35,590
SALARY (ASHOK NIVAS) 533,000 1,08,251 6,41,251
Scrutiny Expenses 56,640 56,640
Stamp Duty Charges (Ashok Niwas} 48,19,896 - 48,19,896
STATIONERY (PARLE ASHOK NIWAS) 640 640
TDR (Parle Ashok Niwas} - - -
ZEROX (PARLE ASHOK NIVAS) 2,406 2,406
Total Rs. 1,78,65,168 1,44,40,195 3,23,05,363
Total WIP 16,50,26,830 (R NN RY RO 1349 ﬁ?.ﬂﬁ
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26 ; Fair Value measurement of Financial Instruments

31stMarch 2018(3) 31st March 2017(®)
FVPL| FVOCl Amortised Cost | FVPL | FYOC1| Amortised Cost

f al A

Cash and cash equivalent - - 498,612 | - - 4,72,887
Other financial assets - - 720 - - 720
Total of Financial Assets - - 499,332 | - - 4,73,607
H ial Liabiliti

Trade payables - - 482,62,564 | - - 5,25,49.210
Other Financial liabilities - - 10,73.20,571 - - 11,21,20,789
Total of Financial Liabilities - - 15,55,83,135 | - - 16,46,69,999

27. Financial Risk Management Objectives

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The company’'s management oversees the
management of these risks. The company's board of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
summarized below:

1) Market Risk

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to company’s long term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
There is no cash outflow on account of interest on Loans and Business Advance from shareholders are to be repaid only on
realisation of sale componentL
2) Credit Risk
The Company is not exposed to credit risk form its operating activities. Credit risk from balances with banks and inter
corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's policy.

3) Liquidity risk
The Company's cashflow requiremnet are met by funds received from its helding company.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf c“*=- "---+ -*™ -~ g
FOR P.M. PANDE AND CO

H

wikcuiuR

DIRECTOR
DIN: 03134932



Anand A. Yadav & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Vishal Techno Commerce Limited

1) Report on the Standalone Financial Statements:
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Vishal Techno Commerce
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2018, the statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2) Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements:

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and the statement of changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 as amended, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3) Auditor's Responsibility:
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our
audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matter which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under section 143(11)
of the Act.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditer's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments.
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the
standalone fina a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures

Add : 415, Shopzone Premises, Near Bank of India, M G Road, Ghatkopar (W), Mumbai 400 086
E-mail: anand@anandyadav.in | Mobile : +91-98700 65175



4)

5)

6)

that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2018 and its financial
performance including other comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter:

1. Aftention is invited to Note No. 26 of the financial statements with regard to reliance placed by
the auditors on certification received from the management with regard to the disclosure of
contingent liabilities given by the Company.

2. Attention is invited to Note No. 29 of the financial statements with regards to balances that are
subject to confirmations, reconciliation and adjustments if any.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11} of the Act, we give in the Annexure A,
a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the arder.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3} of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) in our opimion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued
thereunder,

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

fy with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure B; and

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its standalene
financial statements;

ii. the Company has made provision, as frequired under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses. if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;



iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

For Anand A. Yadav & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Okl 4 ‘)TE'!TW

Anand Yadav
Proprietor
M. No.: 156864

FPlace: Mumbai
Date: 25" June, 2018



Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the members of Vishal Techno Commerce Limited of even date)

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that.

(i)

(it}
(iii)

The company does not have any Fixed Assets during the financial year and as at the balance
sheet date, except investment of property and charged depreciation as per Companies Act,
2013 on investment of property:

The Company does not have any Inventories during the year and as at the balance sheet date

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has granted any secured or unsecured loans to Companies, firms or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans,
making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed
deposits as at 31% March, 2018 and therefore. the provisions of the Clause 3(v) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescnbed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
income-tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities. However, there were outstanding interest dues of statutory liability and
the details of outstanding as follows:

Sr. No. Particulars AmountinINR
1. Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) Liability 7.02.5721-

2. Goods and Service Tax (GST) Liability 7,200/-

3. Interest on above Statutory Liability 2,98.937/-

o | Total Statutory Liability 10,08,709/-

b. On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and explanation
provided to us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax,
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess:
c. Details of dues of Income Tax which have not been deposited as at 31 March, 2018 on
account of dispute are given below

(Amount in INR)

Statute Section | Financial Disputed Amount } Balance 7| Forum
and Nature Year | Dues Paid Disputed where
of Dues ‘ Dues . dispute is
| Payable | pending
income Tax 221 2010-11 3,50.00,000/- | 2,50.99.630/- 99.00.370/- | Income Tax
Appellate
‘ Tribunal
B - (ITAT)




{1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company: and

{3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

4) Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Because of the
inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fre ud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
cc trols over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
cc atrol over financial reporting may become inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that
th : degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

5) O iinion:
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
sy stem over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
of erating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contro! stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financia! Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Anand A. Yadav & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 137527W

Anand Yadav
Proprietor
M. No.: 156864

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25" June, 2018
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Particulars Note As at As at
No 31+t March, 2018 31st March, 2017
(7) ke
ASSETS
Non-Current Asset:
{ay  Property, plant and equipment 3 2,185
(b} Imvestment property 4 33,02,831 33,69,197
{c) Financial assets
(1) Investments 5 1,049,243 109,347
¢} Other investments
(i) Loans 6 2,49,82,6%.586 2,14,51,31,594
(dy  Deferred tax assets (Nek) 7 - 36,716
(&)  Current tax assets 9 2,56,68,422 2,61,50,852
Total Non-Current assets 2,52,73,44,182 2,17,47,99,897
Current assets
{a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10A 67,11,747 1,82,190
(il Bank balances other than (i) above 10B - 29,98,771
(1) Other financial assets 1 24,12.22.017 24,3042 082
Total Current Assets 24,79,33,764 24,62,23,043
IOTAL ASSETS 2,77,52,77,946 2,42,10,22,940
FQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a} Equity share capital 12 5,005,000 5,00,000
(by  Other equity 13 19.80.02,953 20,8%.64,827
Total Equity 19,85,02,953 20,88,69,827
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities 0
(a) Fmanacial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 14 2,54,93,00,000 2,19,13.00,000
I'otal Non-Current Liabilities 2,54,93,00,000 2,19,13,00,000
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilitses
(i) Borrowings 14 1,26,74,282 1.16,99,282
(i1} Trade pavables 16 87,31.999 34,4007
(i) Other financial habalitics 15 30,1983 34,9,786
Other current habilities 17 10,08.709 3.69,222
() Provisions 18 3,26.750 3,26,730
Current tax Liabilities 9 1713419 15,2090
2,74,74,993 2,08,53,113
Total liabilities 2,57,67,74,993 2,21,21,53,113
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,77,52,77,946 2,42,10,22,940
As per our report of even dat For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
FOR ANAND AYADAV &
Chartered Accountants
Firr ™ 7 4=t - No 137327 o
>nrenik vienta
DIRECTOR
AN L .. DI
PROITIETOR
Membersbog N, 156864
F e
D
Sumbay DIRFCTOR




VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS__fOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

Particulars _ Note  Year ended Year ended
No. 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
{7 {7
I INCOME
Revenue from Operations 19 6,27,720 9,518
Other Income 20 1,87,072 15,65,309
Total [ncome 8,14,792 15,74,857

11 EXPENSES
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Wor - -

Finance Costs 21 96,29,294 15,37,331
Depreciation Expenses 22 68,561 93,951
Other Expenses 23 739,276 4,60,973
Total Expenses 1,04,37,132 20,92,255
Profit before exceptional items and Tax (I - II) (96,22,339) (5.17,398)
Earlier Year Adjustment (8,618) -
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (96,30,957) (5,17,398)
Tax Expense
(1} Current Tax - -
(2) Deferred tax (charge) / credit (36,716) 740
(3) Deferred tax {charge) / credit (IND AS) - -
{(3) Excess /(Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years (6,99,200) (12,07,110}
(7.35,916) (12,06,370)
Profit for the Period from Continuing Operations (1,03,66,873) {17,23,768)
Profit from Discontinued Operations before Tax - -
Tax Expense of Discontinued Operations - -
Profit from Discontinued Operations {after tax) . -
Profit / (Loss} for the Year {1,03,66,873) (17,23,768)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income (1,03,66,873) (17,23,768)
Earning per equity share of nominal value of “10/each
Basic and Diluted 24 (20.73) (34.48)
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
FOR ANAND A YADAV & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants P4
Firm Revictration No. 1375 e wachta
DIRECTOR
Dt mmeamnne
ANANL 1aDAV
PROPRIETOR
Membership No. 156864 -
D
DIRECTOR
Mumban DIN: 03142610

Date: 2500 fune 2018




VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENIJED 31st MARCH, 2018

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2018

As at
31st March, 2017

(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposits having maturities more than three months
Net cash flow from investing activities

HI. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inflow / {Quiflow) on account of :

Proceeds from Long term borrowings

Finance costs paid

Net cash flow from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (I + 11 + IIT')
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 11)

Balances with Banks
- in Current accounts

Footnote:

(Cash Flows

FOR ANAND A YADAV & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Fir~ 7 ~~i-+~~+~n No. 1375

AMNnive sneaV
FROPRIETOR
Membership No. 156864

Mumbai
Date: 25Th June 2018

() {9
1. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit / (loss) before taxation and prior period items as per
Statement of Profit and Loss {96,20,957) (3.17,298)
Add / (Luss) -
Finance costs 96, 249,29 15,37,331
Depreciation and amortisation 68558.45 93,951
Excess/ (Short) provision for expense 8,618 (9.548)
Interest income (1,78,454) (15.63.309)
95,28, 016 36,425
Operating profit before working capital changes {1,02,941) (+.60,973)
Add / (Less):
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventorics -
{Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables - -
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivebles 18,20,065 33,94,90,871
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables 56,46,880 (1,12,22,815)
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions 326,750 -
Direct taxes paid - 1,57,319
77.93,694 32,84.25,375
Net cash tlow from operating activities 76,90,753 32,79,04,402
II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Intlow / (Outflow) on account of -
Interest income recerved 1,99,145 20,30,140
{Increase) / Decrease Loans and Advances (35.31,31,592) (84,51,31,594)
Inrease in Investment (1.00,000)

(29,983,771

(35,2932, 847}

(84,36,00,225)

35,89,75,(XK) W,64,81,004
(72,03,349) (18.05,851)
15,17,71,651 39,46,75,153
65,29,557 (12,29,60,670)
1,82,190 12,31,42,860
67,11,747 1,82,190
1,863 1927
67,09,884 1,77.263
67,11,747 1,82,190

‘The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (End AS- 7) statement of

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors

Shrenik Mehta
DIRECTOR
DIN

l} V LR EITRESNL Y
DIRECTOR
PN 0412040




VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

1.
2
2.2
23
24
2.4

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Vishal Techno Commerce Limited is an unlisted Public Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act,
1956, The Company is engaged into real estate business specializing in construction and development of Infotech Parks, Cyber Parks,
Business Parks, SEZ, lease of commercial, industrial and residential properties, solar power energy generation and distribution and
financing activities.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on .

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREFARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of]
Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) (to the extent notified) read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,
The Company has adopted all the IndAS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with IndAS 101 First time adoption of]
Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAPD.
Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in Note 32.
Accounting policies have been consistently apphied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
a) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the followmg;
i certain nancial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value
ii. assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.
ili. defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.
b) Current and Non-Current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilitics in the balance sheet based on current/non current classification.
An asset is classified as current when:
i Itis expected to be realised or intended to scld or consumed in normal operaling cycle
ii. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
A.  Revenue from Construction Activity
i.  Revenue from sale of ‘finished properties/buildings/ rights’ is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership of
such properties/building/ rights, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyer/{s), which generally coincides with the firming
of the sales contracts/agreements, except for contracts where the Company shll has obligations to perform substantial acts even after the
transfer of all significant risks and rewards.
B. Interest and Dividend Income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
tinancial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payinent is established.
Others
Revenues / Income and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are eamed or incurred.

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEFRECIATICN / AMMORTISATION

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisiion or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful hife of the asset in the manner specified m Schedule 11
to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/ disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such
addition, or upto the menth of such sale/ disposal, as the case may be.

Asset Category Estimated usefut life {in Years)

Furniture and Fixture 10

Office equipments 3

INVESTMENTS

Investments are classificd into Current and Non Current / Long Term Inveshnents. Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair
value. Long term investments are stated at cost. A provision fur diminution is made to recognize decline, other than temporary, in the value of
long term investments.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Initial recogration

The Company recoy ~ 7 : : " tinancial liabilities when it becomes 4 party te the contractual provisions of the instrument. AR
financial assets and at farr value on nitial recognition except for trade receivables which are initally measured at
transaction price. T rectly attributable to the ~=-rieitiom weioes ~fEeniot oo - financial liabilities, that are
not at fair value thr ed to the fair vatue on and sale of financial assets are

accountted for at tra




VISHAIL TFCHNO COMMERCE LIMTTED

NOTES 1O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

(11)

[
1

Subsequent measuremaent

Non-denivative financial instruments

Financial assets carried af amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose ebjective is te hold the asset in erder to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financiel asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A hnancial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive inceme it it is held with in a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cases,
where the Company has made an irrevocable elechion based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity
instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A tmancial asset which is not classified in anv of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial habilibies

Financial liabilities are subsequently carned at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration
recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables
maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market
conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available
quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may
never actually be realized.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial assct when the contractual rights to the cash flows trom the financial asset expire or it transfers the
finacial asset and the transfer yualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109. A financial Hability (or a part of a financial Hability) 1s derecognized
from the Company's balance sheet when the ebligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through
profit or loss. Loss allowance for rade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life ime ECL.
For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit nsk from ininal recogninon in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recogmsed is recognized as an
mmpairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are evaluated lor recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e, the higher of the fair value less cost to sell]
and the value-in-use} is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of
those tron other assets. [n such cases, the recoverable amount is determined tor the CGU to which the asset belongs.

TAXATION

i.  Current Tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax’ as reported in the financial|
statement of profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductihle. The Company's current lax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted hy the end of
the reporting period.
in case the Company is liable to pav income tax u/s 115]B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of nurmal
mcome tax 1s recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for reabization of such asset during the
specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
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1. Deterred Tax
Deferred tax is recogmecd on temporary diterenwes between the carrying ameunts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and

the corresponding k2x bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deterred tax Habilibes are generally recognized tor all taxable
temporary differences. Deterred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable

that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Thue carrving amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset tn be revovered.

Deterred tax liabilities and assets are 1neasured at the tax rates that are expected to apply m the period in which the hability is settled or the

asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting penod.
The measurement of deferred tax labilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recogmzed in probit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive,
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly 1n
equity respectively.

BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

Borrowings are initially recognised at the net transaction costs incurred and measured at ammortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the
borrowings usung the effective interest method.

Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effechive interest rate attnibutable to quahifying assets are allocated as part of the cost of
construction / development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted
and, no costs are allocated once all such achvities are substantially complete. Investinent income earned on the temporary investment off
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisahon, Other
torrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows are reported using the indireet method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, inveshing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of
obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the ime value of money is material.
Contingent liabihtv is disclosed for:
+  Possible obiigations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the oblipation or
* areliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

LSE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of the financial statemwents in conformity with IndAS reguires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions.

These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contimgent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
perivdd. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use ot
assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note 2.10. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates, Changes tn estimates are reflicled in the financial statements in the period in which changes are

made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Critreal accounting judgements and estimates
a.  Property, plant and cquipment and deprectation
The charge in respect of peniodic depreciation 1s denved atter determining an estimate ot an asset's expected useful life and the expected

restdual value at the end of its life. The usetul Iives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by inanagement al the time the

asset is acquired and reviewed peiodically, including at each financial year end  he lives are based on historical vxperience with similar

assets as w revents, which may impact therr lite, such as changes in technology.

b, Fair value LN PIOCUSSLS
Seme of th 1sured at {air value tor tinancial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value ot an asset or habilitv.
the Comp *data 10 the extent 1t 1s available, Where Level 1 mputs are nd
party yua the valuation, The Company works closels with the gu w

Appropria I inputs to the model.




VISHAI TFCHNO COMMERCE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YFAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2013

Notes Amount
1
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at 1st April, 2017 12 300,000
[Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2016 5,00,000
amount in {T)
Particulars Equity Share Capital | Retained Earnings Total
Balance at April 1, 2015 5,00,000.00 21,13,81,156 21,18,81,156
Changes in accounting Policy or prier period errors - - -
l'otal Comprehensive Income for the year - (12,87,562) (12,87,562)
Dividends - - -
Transter te Retained Eamings - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2016 5,00.000.00 21,00,93,554 21,05,93,594
Changes in accounting Policy or prior period errors - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period - - -
[Total Comprehensive income for the year - (17,23,768) (17,23,768)
Dividends - - -
[Transter to Retained Farmings - - -
Any other changes (to be specified) - -
Balance at April 1, 2017 5.00,061).00 20.,83,69,826 20,88,69,826
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 5,00.000.00 20,83,69,826 2(),88,69,826

As pur our report of even date

FOR ANAND A YADAV & AGCNWTTATER
JChartered Accountants
Fi-— ™ -~~i-*--tjon No. 13752

2 JAY
PROPRIETOR
IMembership No. 156864

Mumbai
Date: 25Th June 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

e

Shrenik Mehta
DIRECTOR

TATR An A rAna

DIN: 03142640 |




VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED
NOTES TCO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

3. Property, plant and equipment

Amountin [ T}

Furniture and Fixtures Office Equipment Total
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 31st March, 2016 2,88,238 17,250 3,05,488
Additions - . .
Disposals - . -
Balance at 31st March, 2017 2,88,238 17,250 3,05,488
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 31st March, 2016 2,58,458 17,250 2,75,708
Depreciation expense 27,585 - 27,585
Balance at 31st March, 2017 2,86,043 17,250 3,03,293
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2017 2,195 - 2,195
Amountin (T)
Furniture and Fixtures Office Equipment Total

Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 31st March, 2018 2,88,238 17,250 3,05,488
Balance at 31st March, 2018 2,88,238 17,250 3,05,488
Accumulated depreciation

2,86,043 17,250 3,03,293
Elimmated on disposal of assets - - -
Depreciation expense 2,195 - 2,195
Balance at 31st March, 2018 2,88,238 17,250 3,05,488

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2018 -




VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
(%) (0
4. Investment property
Cost or deemed cost
Balance al the beginning of the year 39,27,638 59,27,h38
Addibons -
Transferred rrom property, plant and equipment - -
Balance at the end of the year 59,27,638 59,27,638
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at the beginmng of the vear 25,538,441 24,92,075
Addibons - -
Disposals - -
Depreciation expense 66,366 66,30
Transferred from property, plant and equipment
Effect ot Foreign currency exchange differences
Balance at the end of the year 26,24,807 25,58,441
Carrying amount 33,02,831 33,69,197
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
{7 (7

5. Investment
Non Current Investments
(Trade, unless otherwise specified)

Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
Iy Subsidiary Company (Fully paid up equity shares) (At cost)
a} 10.000 (As at 31st March, 2016 :Nil, 1st Apnil, 2013:Nil) Equity shares of 10/ - each 1,00,000 1,00,000
A B Renewable Energy Private Limited

11} Others (At Fair Value)

b) 25 {As at 21st March, 2016 :25 .1st April, 2015 :25) Equity shares of 29/ - vach 9,343 9,313
Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited (Refer Foommote)
Total 1,09,343 1,09,343
Footnote
Equity shares of Shamrao Vithal Co-operabive Bank Limited are fair valued based on audited financial statement for the year ended FY. 2016~
17
6. Loans
Non-current
Loans to related parties
- Unsecured, considered good (Refer Note No: 26} 249,82,63,586 2,14,51,31,594
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful Joans - -
Total 2,49,82,63,586 2,14,51,31,594
7. Deferred Tax balances
Deferred Tax Asset - 36,716
Deferred Tax Liability -
Total - 36,716
2n7-2018 Cpening Balance Recognised in profito Closing Balance
Deterred tax (liabilities) / assets in relation tor
Property, plant and equipment 36,716 (36,716)
36,716 (36,716) -
Opening Balance Recognised i profit o Closing Balance
Defe sinrelation to:
Prop 35970 740.00 30,716

35,976 740 36,716




VISHAL TECHNQO COMMERCE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

9, Current Tax Assets / (liabilities)

(i} Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax paid
Less: Provision for Tax
Current Tax Assets Total
(ii} Current Tax Liability
Provision tor Tax
Less: Advance Tax Paid
Current Tax Liability Total

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiphed by [ndia's tax rate

Since the taxable income is negative, there is no current tax pavable; hence reconciliation has not been provided.

10. Cash and Bank Balances
A. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- In current accounts
- in deposit with maturity of less than three months
Cash on hand
Total
B. Bank balances other than above
Margin money depuosits (Refer Footnote)
Total

Foomote:
Balances with bank tn margin money are kept as security for guarantees / other facilities.

11. Other financial assets

Current

Security deposits

Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Other receivables (Other than Trade Receivables)
Total

As ai As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017

(7 &4}
2,56,68,422 2,61,50.832
2,56,68,422 2,61,50,852
17,13,419 1,61,06,181
- 1,48.85,215
17,13,419 15,20,966
67,09,884 1,77,263
1,863 4,927
67,11,747 1,82,190
- 29.98,771
- 29,998,771
1,50,000 1,550,000
- 20,601
24,10,72,017 24,28,71,3491
24,12,22,017 24,30,42,082




VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED
NOTES IO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR T'HE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

As at As at
31" March, 2018 31 March, 2017
{7 {0
12. Equity share capital
Authorised Share Capital:
1,000,000 (As at 31st March, 2018: 10,00,000, As at 1st April, 2017 10,00,000) Equity Shares of  10/-
each 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
50,000 (As at 31st March, 2018: 50,000; As at Ist April, 2017: 50,000) Equity Shares of * 10/ each fully
paid up 5,00,000 5,00,000
5,00,000 3,00,000
12.1 Number of shares Share Capital
Reconcifiation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end
Balance at 1st Aprii, 2016 50,000 5,00,000
Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 300000 100% 50000 100%

12.4 Terms/Right attached to Ordinary Equity Shares

The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of * 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share . The
company declares and pays dividend in indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the
ensutng annual gennra'l mesting




VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
(%) (%)
13. Other Equity
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 20,83,69,827 21,00,93,594
Profit attributable to the owners of the company (1,03,66,873) (17,23,768)
Balance at the end of the year 19,80,02,953 20,83,69,827
14. Borrowings
Non-current
Secured
- From financial institutions (Refer Footnote) 2,54,93,00,000 2,19,13,00,000
Total 2,54,93,00,000 2,19,13,00,000
Footnote:
(i)
Repayable in quarterly installment starting from 30th September 2019. Mortgage of land and structures
on project located in Andheri (East), Matunga, Kelavali, Ghodivali, Raigad, Mulund, Khalapur and
Majiwade; first charge by way of over the receivable and escrow account collection from above project.
Irrevocable and unconditional Personal Guarantee(s) of Mr. Hemant Shah and Vyomesh Shah.
Corporate guarantee of Heet Builder Private Limited and Citygold Education Research Limited Pledge
of shares of Heet Builder Private Limited, Citygold Education Research Limited held by Hubtown
Limited. Pledge of 70,00,000 shares of Hubtown Limited.
() The Company has borrowed funds from ECL Finance Limited for the project under execution in a fellow
pany pTo}
subsidiary, Heet Builders Private Limited. All the cost of borrowings, upfront fees and interest cost are
borne by Heet Builders Private Limited to the extent of loans advanced to Heet Builders Private Limited
out of total amount of borrowed from ECL Finance Limited.
Currrent
Unsecured
(i}  Loans repayable on demand:

From Related Party (Refer Fooinote) 1,26,74,282 1,16,99,282
From Companies - -

Total 1,26,74,282 1,16,99,282




VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

Feotnote

The Company has received interest free loan from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of
business in which the Company operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call
/ demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received is not measureable precisely.

15. Other financial liabilities

Current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 29,38,192 5,08,192
Refundable deposits - 29,60,000
Other payables 31,642 28,594

Total 30,19,834 34,96,786

16. Trade payables

Dues to MSME (Refer Footnote) - -
Dues to others 87,31,999 34,40,107

Total 87,31,999 34,40,107

Footnote

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 {MSMED
Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been

17. Other Current liabilities

Other payables :
- Statutory dues 10,08,709.00 3,69,222.00

Total 10,08,709 3,69,222

18. Provisions

Current
Provision for Rates and Taxes 3,26,750.00 3,26,750.00

al 3,26,750 3,26,750




VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

Year ended Year ended
F1st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
(T (7
19. Revenue from operations
Other operating revenue :
Income on investments in subsidiarics, Joint ventures, etc, deve - -
Gain on fair valuaton of investments 8,618
B6I8 -
Total {a+b) 1,87,072 15,65,309
21. Finance Costs
Other interest expense 94,50,001 11,30,167
Other Interest Charges {Delayed and penal Interest) 1,79,293 4,07,164
Total 96,29,294 15,37,331

Footnote: Interest expense for loan taken from ECL Finance Limited is recoverable from Heet Builders Private Limited and
therefore finance cost for the loan is not recognized for the year to the extent of loan advanced to Heet Builders Private Limited.

22, Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation on Furniture and Fixtures 2,195 27,585
Depreciation on Buildings 66,360 66,366
Total 68,561 93,951

23. Other Expenses

Rates and laxes 2,501 -

Repairs and society maintenance charges 2,17,040 2,82,285

Legal and professional fees 41,031 50,211

Other expenses 4,78,705 1,28477
Total 7,39,276 4,60,973

Footnote:

Audit Fees 20,000 20.000

- RRGLY

20,000 23,000




VISHAL TECHNO COMMFRCE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATFMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

As at As at
31" March, 2018 31" March, 2017
24. Farnings Per Share (EPS} (T [T}
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share {20.73} (3.45)
Basic EI™S
The vamings and weighted average number of equity shares used 1n the
calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share are as tollows:
Year Ended Year Ended
31"March, 208 31" March, 2017
&3] {7
Profit tor the vear attributable to the owners of the Company (1.03,66,873) (17.23,768)
Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted eamings per share 5,00,000 3,00,000
25 Related Party Disclosures (As per IND AS - 24)
A. Name of the related parties and related parties relationship
1 Holding Company : Hubtown [ .imited
Il Fellow Subsidiary ¢ Heet Bwlders Private Limited
Il Others Significant Influence : Citvgold Management Services Private Limited
Footnote:
Related party relabonship are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors
B. Transaction with Related Parties -
Sr. Holdin Others Significant
No Nature of Transaction . 5 Fellow Subsidiary Influence
Company
i Loans and advances received frecovered
Hubtown Limited 12,25,000 - -
(6,62.50,000) ) )
Heet Builders Private Limited - 52,48,73,769 -
{-) (10,29,42,535) )
ii Interest expense bome on our behalf
Heet Builders Private Limited (Refer note 21) - 94,50,001 -
) (11,30,167) ¢
iii  Loan Repaid fgiven / Adjusted
Hubtown Limited 2,350,000 - -
{36, 001,00,000) ) (7
Heet Builders Private Lamited - 17,17 ,41,777 -
{-) (78,35,33,163) ()
iv. Payment made on our Behalf
Heet Builders Private Linited - 60,75,001 -
(-) (52,45,401) {-
Citvgold Management Services Pyt Limited 46,079
)
v On Behalf Payment made
Citvgold Management Services Pet Limited - - 421
Q! (-) (19,050}
vi Corp T 77 'ngthe year for loan taken
Huby ¢ Private Limited and Citvgold 2,87,03,90,797

Educ W IR ) ) )




VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

iii

Balances outstanding

Balance Payables

Holding Company

tHubtown Limited

Others - Fellow Subsidiaries

Heet Builders Private Limited

Other Significant Influence

Citygold Management Services Pyt Limited
Balance Receivables

Others - Fellow Subsidiaries

Heet Builders Private Limiked

Other Significant Influence

Citvgold Management Services Pyt Limited
Balance of corporate gurantee for loan taken
Helding Company and Fellow Subsidiary

Hubtown Limited, Heel Builders Private Limited, Citvgold Education

Private Limited

As at
31st March, 2018
(2

As at
31st March, 2017
(%)

1,26,74,282

11,760,022

2,19,82,63,580

2,87,63,90,797

1,16,99,282

11,241,864

2,14,51,31,594

3,000

2,38,18,11,491

Note:-

The loan of Rs. 28,763.90 lakhs taken by Vishal Techno Commerce Limited has been jointly and severally guranteed by Heet Builders
Private Limited and Hubtown Limited. There is ne contract determining the rabio of individual gurantees by each party, in such cases the
amount shall be divided equally between each party.




VISHAT TECHNO CONMERCF LINITIE LY
NOTES 'O THF FINANCLAL STATEMENIS FOR i HE YEAR ENDFID st MARCH, 2018

26. Contingent Liabiliry

Asat Asat
A, Contmgent iability with cegards disputed dues with statutory authoritws 31* March, 2008 31 March, 2017
R3] k)
A Claims against company not acknowledge as debt on acvount of:-
Income 1ax matter under apprats with the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal) :
Finarwial vear 2010 2017 Under Section 221 ot Income Tax Act, 1961 4,00,370 ©9,00,370
Financal year 2013-2012 Under Section 14%3) of Ik ome Tax, 1961 - 84,95,590
['otal 99,00,370 1,83,95,960

Further interest / penalty that mav accrue vn origimal demands are not ascertainable, at present. The Company has taken necessany steps to protect
its position with respect o the above reterred laims, w hich in its gpinion, based on protessional / legal ady we, are not sustainabie

The Company does not have any contingent liability as a1 balance sheet date, other then stated above, as certified by management & relied upen by
the auditors.

B. On account of Corporate guarantees issued by the Company to ECL Finarce
Limited on behalt ot Heet Bulders Private Limited . Cusstanding Loan amuount
- 10,00,80,000
- 10,00,00,000

27 Capital Management
The entity manages its capital to ensure that the entity will be abie to continue as a going concern while maximising the retwrn to stakeholders
through optimisation of debt equity ratio.

The capital striscture of the entity consists ot net debt ( Borrowings olfset by cash and bank balances} and total equity ot the cempany.

Cearing Ratio

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as tollows Asat Asat
W' March, 2008 31 March, 27
4] 7

Secured Lean 2,54,91,00,000 2,19,13,00,000
Unsecured Loan 1,26,74,282 1,16,99,282
Interest accured and due/and but net due 29,38,192 5,08,192
Total Debt 2,56,49,12,474 2,20,35,07 474
Cash and Cash Equir alents 67,111,747 182,190
Net Debt (A) 2,55,82,00,727 2,20.33,25,284
Equity Shase Capital 5.00,000 3,00,000
Gther equity 19,80,02,953 20.83,69,827
Total Equity (B) 19,85,02,953 20,58,69,827
Debt Equity Ratie A/ B 1289 10,53

28 Financial Risk Management Objectives

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The company’s management oversees the management of these risks.
The company’s board of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below:

1} Market Risk
Interest rate rish
Interest rate rish is the risk that the fair value or tuture cash tlows of a financial instrument wil} fAuctuate because of changes ip market interest
rates. The Company has borrowed tunds for excvution of project by a fellew subsidiary Heet Builders Private Limvited. Interest and other
Borrowings cnst are born by Heet Builders Private Limted refer Note No. 14

i) Credit Risk

The compans is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Credit risk trom balances with banks and inter corporate loans 1s
managed by the company’s treasury depariment m accordance with the company’s poliey.

i} Liguidity risk
The companies cashflow requirement are met b tunds recen ed trom its holding company.

in the opinion of the Board of Directors of the L ompaay, all items ot Current Assets, Non Current Assets, Non current Habitites, Current
Liabilities and Loans and Advanceeconhined o hava a reotizakla cales of ai least the amnunts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet,

FORANAND A YAaD, I alt of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountanh
F 0. -’
H
[]]P!:f—h A
A nr
PRUOMRIETOR
Nembership Noo 1568 <
Mumbay m
Trate: 25Th Jum: 208 211 ORI

| YR B







An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial Statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Tnd AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018,
and its losses (financial performance including other comprehensive Income), its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l.  As required by ‘the Companies [Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016’, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred
to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as
we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Il. Asrequired by Section143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and statement of
changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of H-le
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

“Annexure B”.



{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any material pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeabie losses.

ili. ~There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUI™ ">~
FRN: 103256W

MUKESH K. GOHEL
PROPRIETOR
M. No.: 038823

Piace : Mumbai
Date : 25/06/2018



“ANNEXURE-A" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF OUR REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OUR AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31+ MARCH, 2018 OF YANTTI BUILDCON
PRIVATE LIMITED

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets;

b) The company has physically verified its fixed assets at reasonable interval;

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no material discrepancies were noticed on
verification of such assets.

(ii)  The company has physically verified its inventories at reasonable intervals of time and no
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification of inventories.

(ili)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has during the year, not granted any unsecured loans to Companies covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv)  As per the information received there are no loan, investment, guarantees and security to director
by the company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India under the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(vi)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records
and hence such the provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the company;

(vii) a. According to the records of the Company, it has been generally regular in
depositing, wherever applicable Custom Duty, Cess and other statutory dues
with the appropriate authorities. There have been delays during certain
months in depositing Income Tax Deducted at Source and Service Tax. There
were Tax Deducted at Source ¥ 14,23,417/-, TDS on Interest ¥ 45,81,701/- and
WCT % 87,765 /-outstanding at the last day of the firancial year for a period
exceeding six months from the date they became payable. There were no dues
during the year towards Employees State Insurance;



(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

b. On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and
explanation provided to us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess other than
mentioned below:

Statute and Financial Disputed Forum where
nature of Section p dispute is
Year Dues , .
dues pending
Commissioner of
Income Tax 143(3) 2011-12 40,08,522 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Amount not Income Tax
Income Tax 271(1)(C) 2011-12 ascertainable Officer

The company has not defauited in repayment of loans and borrowing to a financial
institution, banks, government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and has not obtained any term
loans during the year

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of the
material fraud on or by the Company, has been noticed or reported by the Company during
the year, nor have we been informed any such case by the Company;

No Managerial remuneration has been paid or provided during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by
Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act, read with the relevant rules.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.



(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him/ her. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicabie

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi]) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

FOR M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUN™ "~
FRN: 103256W

MUKESH K. GOHEL
PROPRIETOR
M. No. 038823

Place : Mumbai
Date :25/06/2018



“ANNEXURE-B” REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 11 OF OUR REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 (“THE ACT”) OUR AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31= MARCH, 2018 OF YANTTI BUILDCON PRIVATE
LIMITED.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of YANTTI BUILDCON
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAF'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, ~~~*»ntnler and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) pro
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of [
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and th:
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preve



detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal contro} over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
ICAIL

FOR M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 103256W

MUKESH K. GOHEL
PROPRIETOR
M. No.: 038823

Place : Mumbai
Date : 25/06/2018



YANTTI BUILDCCON PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3157 MARCH 2018

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 292,000 292,000
(b) Financial assets
investments 5 10,000 10,000

{c) Current tax assets {Net) [ 110,901 110,901
Total Non-Current assets 412,901 412,901
Current assets
{a) Inventories 7 573,870,227 570,456,237
(b} Financial assets

(i)  Cash and cash equivalents 8 259,303 237,963

(n) Loans g 15,000 15,000
(c} Cther current assets 10 185,488 189,488
Total Current Assets 574,334,018 570,898,688
Total assets 574,746,919 571,311,589
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 11 500,000 500,000
(b) Other equity 12 (7,107,688) {5,382,726)
Total Equity (6,607,688} (4,882,726}
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabihties 13 34,235

Total Non-Current Liabilities - 34,235
Current Liabilities
(a) Financ.al Liahilities

() Borrawings 14 8,892,587 8,892,587

(i} Trade payables 15 173,443,315 172,065,314

(i) Other financial liabilities 13 392,947,803 383,957,920
{b) DOther current lizbilities 16 6,070,902 11,244,255
Total Current Liabilities 581,354,607 576,160,080
Total Liabilities 581,354,607 576,194,315
Total Equity and Liabilities 574,746,919 571,311,589

As per attached report cf even date

For M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ck
FR
3
1
LMI
PR
M.
DIRECTCR

Place: Mumbai
Date; 25th June 2018 DIN; 07115516




YANTTI BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T <

INCOME
Revenue from Operations 17 38,624 1,147
Share of profit / (loss) from parternship firm - -
Share of Profit / (Loss) of Joint Ventures (365) -

Total Income 38,259 1,147
EXPENSES
Costs Of Construction / Development 18 24,47,500 13,65,104
Changes in Inventories of Incomplete Projects 19 (34,13,990) (35,00,368)
Employee Benefits Expense 20 37,652 23,547
Finance Costs 21 16,08,860 29,58,561
Other Expenses 22 10,83,199 7,27,093

Total Expenses 17,63,221 15,73,937
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (17,24,962) (15,72,790)
Tax Expense
(1) Current Tax - -
(2) Excess /(Short) provision for taxation in respect of - (34,091)

earlier years

Total - (34,091)
Profit for the Year (17,24,962) (16,06,880)
Earning per equity share of nominal value of ¥ 10/- 25
each (in Rupees)
Basic and Diluted {34.50) (32.14)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per attached report of even date

For M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN- 1N395AW

MUKESH K. GOHEL
PROPRIETOR
M.No.: 038823

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SAMIEEKRUMAK SALUI
DIRECTOR
DIN: 07115916

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th June 2018




YANTTI BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

Particulars

2017 - 2018 2016 - 2017
T T

Cash Flow arising from Operating Activities:

I Net Profit before taxes as per profit and loss account
Add / (Deduct) :
Interest Expenses
Depreciation
Share of Profit

Operating Profit / {Loss) before Working Capital Changes
Add / (Deduct) :

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Advances

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables and other liabilities
Income tax paid

Net Cash Flow in the course of operating activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Il Inflow / {Outflow) on account of:
Share of Profit
Proceeds from Long Term Investments

Net Cash Flow in the course of investing activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

M Inflow / (Outflow) on account of:
Unsecured Loans Borrowed (net)
Interest Paid

Net Cash Flow in the course of Financing activities
Net increase / {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (I + Il + 111}

Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year

(1,724,962) (1,572,790)

1,608,860 2,958,561

1,608,860 2,958,561

{116,102) 1,385,771

(3,413,990) (3,500,368)
- (11,576)
9,176,816 3,655,951
- (15,717)

5,762,827 128,290

5,646,725 1,514,061

- 2,325,296
(5,625,385) (4,016,525)

(5,625,385) (1,691,229)

21,340 (177,168)
237,962 415,130

259,302 237,962

Reconcilition of cash and cash equilvalent (Refer note 8)
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
in current account

2,743 2,743

256,560 259,303 235,220 237,963

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per attached report ot even date

For M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOU™ ™ """~

Frte smmmm o

MUKESH K. GOHEL
PROPRIETOR
M.No.: 038823

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th June 2018

For and on behalt ot the Board ot Directors

HEMANT GULATI
DIRECTOR
DIN: 00408734

SAMEEKKUMAK SALU |
DIRECTOR
DIN: 07115916




YANTTI BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

X)
Equity Share Capital Reserves and Surplus
Equity Share Capital Retained Earnings Total
rBalance at March 31, 2017 500,000 (5,382,726) (4,882,726)
Total Comprehensive Income - (1,724,962) {1,724,962)
for the year
Balance at March 31, 2018 500,000 (7,107,687) (6,607,687}
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 103256W
HEMANT GULATI
DIRECTOR

DIN: 00408734
MUKESH K. GOHEL

PROPRIETOR
Place: Mumbai SAMEERKUMAR SALOT
Date: 25th June 2018 DIRECTOR

DIN: 07115516




YANTTI BJILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

Company Overview and Significant Accounting Pdlicies

COMPANY OVERYIEW

Yantti Buildcon Private Limited is an Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The
Company 15 engaged inte real estate business specializing in construction and development of Infotech Parks, Cyber Parks, Business
Parks, SEZ as well as sale and lease of commercial, industrial properties and other similar works

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on June 25, 2018

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with indian Acccunting Standards (IndAS) under the histarical cost conventicon on
the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act , 2013
{'Act’) {to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescnibed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Cempanies {Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2016,

The Ccmpany has adepted ali the IndAS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with IndAS 101 First time adeption of
Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out fram Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Ruie 7 of the Companies [Accounts) Rutes, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.
Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in Note 36

Accounting pohcies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

a) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following:
i. certain finantial assets and habilities that have been measured at fair value
ii. assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value kess cost to sell.
iii. defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

b}  Current versus nen- current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based cn current/non current classification. An asset is classified as
current when it is:

*  Expected to be realised or interrded to sold or consumed in normal aperating cycle

* Held primarily fcr the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:
* tis expecied to be settled in normal operating cycle
* )tis held primarily for the purpose of trading
* tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
*  There is no uncondtional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at feast twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilites are classified as non-current.
Operating cycle for the business activ ties of the company covers the duration of the specific project / contract / service and extends|
upto the reabsation of receivables within the agreed credit period normally applicable to the respective project.

A, Revenue from Construction Activity

a. The company has adopted the principles of revenue recognition on the basis of “ Guidance note on Accounting for Real Estate
Transactions * issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, for the entities to whom IndAS is applicable.

b. Revenue from sale of "finished properties / buildings / rights’ is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of
ownership of such properties / building / nights. as per the terms cf the contracts entered into with buyer/{s), which generally
coincides with the firming of the sales centracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company stifl has obligations to
perform substantial acts even after the transfer of all significant risks and rewards

c. Losses expected to be incurred on projects under construction, are charged in the statement of profit and loss in the peried in
which the losses are known.




YANTTI BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

2.2

2.3

2.4
24.1

2.4.2

(i)

{ii)

(iii}

B. Interest and Dividend income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

c. Others
Revenues / income and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred.

D. Profit / loss from partnership firms / association of persons:
Share of profit / loss from partnership firms / association of persons (AOP) is accounted n respect of the financial year of the firm /
AOP, during the reporting period, on the basis of their audited/ management reviewed accounts, which is considered as a part off
other operating activity.

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION / AMMORTISATION

A. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

B. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in the manner specified in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from
the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be.

Asset Category Estimated useful life {in Years)
Computer 3
INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified into Current and Non Current / Long Term Investments. Current investments are stated at lower of cost and
fair value. Long term investments are stated at cost. A provision for diminution is made to recognize decline, other than temporary, in
the value of long term investments.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition except for trade receivables which are initially,
measured at transaction price.Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss,are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale
of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

Subsequent measurement
Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further,
in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as
equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.




YANTTI BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

(iv)

v)

243

2.4.4

2.5

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration
recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables
maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on
market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow
analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value,
and such value may never actually be realized.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers|
the finacial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109. A financial liability {or a part of a financial liability) is|
derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued
through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to|
life time ECL. For ail other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of]
expected credit losses {or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to
be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

i.  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their|
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

TAXATION

i.  Current Tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the
statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

in case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115JB of Income Tax Act, 1961 {i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess off
normal income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such
asset during the specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

ii. Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Standalone
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.




YANTTI BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

2.6

27

28

29

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

INVENTORIES

All inventories are stated at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower.

‘Incomplete Projects’ include cost of incomplete properties for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other
cases where the revenue recognition is postponed. ‘Incomplete Projects’ also include initial project costs that relate to a (prospective)
project, incurred for the purpose of securing the project. These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are|
incurred unless they are separately identifiable and it is probable that the respective project will be obtained.

Inventory values includes costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land / rights, value of FSI, materials, services and
other expenses (including borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost.

BORROWING COSTS

Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of the
cost of construction / development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is
interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complete. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount

of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current

best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.
Contingent liability is disclosed for:
* Ppossible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
*  Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex
and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note 2.10. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are
made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

a. Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the company's assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or
liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Company works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

b. Preperty, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of

eciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value at
life. The useful lives and residual vatues of Company’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is
reviewed peiodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar

| as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.
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4. Property, plant and equipment
Cost or deemed cost

Balance at March 31, 2016
Additions
Disposals
Balance at March 31, 2017

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at March 31, 2016
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Depreciation expense

Balance at March 31, 2017

Carrying amount as at 31st March 2017

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at March 31, 2017
Additions
Disposals
Balance at March 31, 2018

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at March 31, 2017
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Depreciation expense

Balance at March 31, 2018

Carrying amount as at 31st March 2018

T T T
Freehold Land Computers Total
292,000 97,882 389,882
292,000 97,882 389,882
- 97,882 97,882
- 97,882 97,882
252,000 - 292,000
Freehold Land Computers Total
292,000 97,882 380,882
252,000 97,882 389,882
- 97,882 97,882
- 97,882 97,882
292,000 - 292,000
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As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T
5 Investments
Non Current Investments
{Trade, unless otherwise specified)
A}  Capital Investment in Partnership Firms and Joint Ventures
M/s Rising Glory Developers 10,000 10,000
Less: Provision for Biminution in the value of investments - -
Total 10,000 10,000
| 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
SrNo Name of Partners Profit Sharing Ratio Profit Sharing Ratio
1 |Hubtown Limited 20.00% 20.00%
2 |Ackruti Safeguard System Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
3 |Citygold Education Research Limited 5.33% 5.33%
4 |Citygald Farming Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
5  |Diviniti Projects Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
& [|Halitious Developers Limited 5.33% 5.33%
7 |Headland Farming Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
8 |Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
9 |Heet Builders Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
10 |Subhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
11 |Sunstream City Private Limited 10.66% 10.66%
12 |Upvan lake Resort Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
13  |Vega Developers Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
14 |Whitebud Developers Limited 5.33% 5.33%
15 [Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 5.33% 5.33%
Total Capital of the firm in ¥ 150,000 150,000
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T
6  Current Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Tax paid 159,901 159,901
Less: Provision for Tax {49,000) {49,000)
Total 110,901 110,901
(a) Significant Estimates
In calculating the tax expense for the current period, the group has treated certain expenditures as being deductible for tax p
(b}  Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate
Since the taxable income is negative, there is no current tax payable; hence reconciliation has not been provided.
7 Inventories

nventories [lower
- Incomplete proje

573,870,227

570,456,237

573,870,227

570,456,237




YANTTI BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

8 Cash and cash equivalents

- in current accounts 256,560 235,220
Cash on hand 2,743 2,743
Total 259,303 237,963
9 Loans
Current
Loans to Employees 15,000 15,000
Total 15,000 15,000
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T
10  Other Current assets
Current
Advances Recoverable 189,488 189,488
Prepaid Expense - -
Total 189,488 185,488

Balances with banks:
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11 Equity share capital

Authorised Share Capital:
50,000 (P.¥. 50,000) Equity Shares of T 10/- each

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
50,000 (As at March 31, 2017: 50,000} Equity Shares of ¥
10/- each fully paid up

11.1 Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning
and at the end of reporting year

Balance at April 1, 2016

Add - Issued during the year

Less: Bought back during the year
Balance at March 31, 2017

Add:  Issued during the year

Less: Bought back during the year
Balance at March 31, 2018 P

11.2 Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares
As at 31 March, 2018

As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T
5,00,000 5,600,000
5,00,000 5,00,000
5,00,000 5,00,000
50,000 5,00,000
50,000 5,00,000
50,000 5,00,000

As at 31 March, 2017

No of shares held % No of shares held % holding
holding
Fully paid equity shares
Hubtown Limited with beneficiary holders 50000 100% 50000 100%
Total S0000  100% 50000 100%

The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of ¥10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
11.3 share. The company declares and pays dividend in indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of

shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

12 Other Equity
Equity Component of Financial Instruments
Retained Earning
Total

Retained Earnings

Balarice at the beginning of the year

Profit attributable to the owners of the company
Balance at the end of the year

As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
4 T
(71,07,688) (53,82,726)
(71,07,688) (53,82,726)
(53,82,726) (37,75,846}
(17,24,962) {16,06,880)
171,07,688} {53,82,726)
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13

14

()

15

16

Other financial fiabilities
Non-current

Retention money payable - 34,235
Total - 34,235

Current

Interest accrued and due on barrowings - ,

Business advances from related party (Refer Footnote) 392,907,829 383,922,167

Other payables 39,974 35,753
Total 392,547,803 383,957,920

Footnote:

The Company has received interest free advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the Ccmpany operate,
the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call / demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received is not
measureable precisely.

As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T

Borrowings
Current
Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand:
From Related Party (Refer Footnote A) - ;
From Company (Refer Footnote B) 8,892,587 8,892,587

Total 8,892,587 8,892,587
Footnote :
A} Loan from director are interest free and are repayable on demand
B} Unsecured loan from company are received at the rate of C.Y. 19.10%- {P.y. 19,10%) and are repayable on demand.
Trade payables
Trade Payables 173,443,315 172,065,314

Total 173,443,315 172,065,314
Footnote :
As per information available with the Comapny regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small
Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Comapny are registered under MSMED Act, and the
same has been relied upan by the auditors.
Other Liabilities

Current

Other payables :

Overdrawn bank balances as per books of accounts : - . -

- Provision for Audit Fees 55,422 37,722
- Statutory dues 6,015,480 11,206,537

Total 6,070,502 11,244,259
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17

18

19

20

21

22

Revenue from operations

Other operating revenue :

- Sundry credit balances appropriated
Total

Costs Of Construction / Development
Construction costs incurred during the year:
Land / rights acquired
Other Direct Civil Cost

Total

Changes In Inventories Of Incomplete Projects
Opening Inventory :
Incomplete projects

Closing Inventory :
Incomplete projects

Total
Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, bonus, etc,
Staff welfare expenses

Total

Finance Costs

Interest on Fixed loans

Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues
Total

Other Expenses
Rates and taxes
Bank Charges
Directors' fees and travelfing expenses
Legal and professional fees
Sundry Balances Written off
Other Expenses
Total

Footnote:
Audit Fees
Service Tax /GST on above
Total

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T L4

38,624 1,147
38,624 1,147
2,447,500 1,365,104
2,447,500 1,365,104
570,456,237 566,955,869
570,456,237 566,955,869
573,870,227 570,456,237
573,870,227 570,456,237
{3,413,590) (3,500,368}
37,652 23,547
37,652 23,547

- 1,430,270
1,608,860 1,528,291
1,608,860 2,958,561
53,016 70,226

2,704 5,248

27,646 107,951
108,140 10,130

286 -

891,408 533,538
1,083,199 727,093
15,000 15,000

2,700 2,250

17,700 17,250
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23 Earnings per share {EPS)
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic and Diluted EPS

follows

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company

Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted
earnings per share

Weighted average number of equity shares for the
purposes of basic earnings per share
Ordinary

Total

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
4 4
(34.50) (32.14)

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T
{1,724,962) (1,606,380}
(1,724,962} [1,606,380)|
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
50,000 50,000
50,000 50,000
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24

A.

Related Party Disclosures {As per IND AS - 24)

Name of the related parties and related parties relationship
HOLDING COMPANY

Firm in which Company is a partner
Key Managerial Personnel
Others Significant Influence

Footnote:

Hubtown Limited

M/s Rising Glory Developers

Hemant Gulati

Citygold Management Services Private Limited

Related party relationship are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors

Transaction with Related Parties -

Sr.

No.

Nature of Transaction

Holding
Company

Others Significant
influence

Key Management
Personnel of the Entity

Firm in which Company
is a partner

vi

Business advances taken/ recovered / adjusted
Hubtown Limited

Business Advance given/repaid/adjusted
Hubtown Limited

InterCompany payables
Citygold Management services Pvt Limited

Loan taken/ recovered/ adjusted
Hemant Gulati

Loans given/ repaid/ adjusted
Hemant Gulati

Share of loss from Partnerships / Joint Ventures
M/s Rising Glory Developers {Joint Venturer}

Footnote:
Previous Year figures are given in brackets

Balance outstanding

8alance Payables
Hubtown Limited {Holding Company)

Citygold Management services Pvt Limited {Others Significant influence)

Hemant Gulati {(Key Management Personnel)

M/s Rising Glory Developers (Firm in which the Company is a Partner)

Balance Receivables
M/s Rising Glory Developers

1,35,94,662
(43,10,000)

33,098,000
(21,80,000)

)

2,67,117
(2,03,588)

2,60,600
(1,93,088)

365
(691)

As at
31st March, 2018

As at
31st March, 2017

As at
31st March, 2016

42,05,08,018

2,000

17,017

1,056

10,000

41,02,22,356

2,000

10,500

691

10,000

40,80,92,356

1,600

691

10,000
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25 Contingent Liability

otherwise mentioned below:

The company does not have any contingent liability as at the balance sheet date as certified by the management and relied upon by the auditors, as

P . ial ) .
Statute and nature o Section Financia Disputed Dues Armount Paid Balance disputed Forum where. dispute
dues Year dues payable is pending
c o
Income Tax 143(3) | 2011-12 4,069,952 61,430 4008 522| Commissioner of
Income Tax (appeals)
Income Tax 2713 c)| 2011-12 Amount not Ascertainable - - Income Tax Cfficer
Total 4,069,952 61,430 4,008,522

26 Capital Management

Further interest / penalty that may accrue on original demands are not ascertainable, at present. The Company has taken necessary steps to
protect its position with respect to the above referred claims, which in its opinion, based on professional / legal advice, are not sustainable.

The entity manages its capital to ensure that the entity will be able to continue as a going concern white maximising the return to stakeholders

through optimisation of debt equity ratio.

The capitai structure of the entity consists of net debt | Borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the company.
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27

i}

i)

28

29

30

31

Financial Risk Management Objectives
The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s management oversees the management of these risks.
The company’s board of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below:

Market Risk

Interest rate risk

Company has received intrest free advances and it receives interest free funds for its operating cash flow from its holding company as and
when required (Refer note 10}, hence the Company is not exposed to interest risk.

Credit Risk
The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is
managed by the company’s treasury department in accordance with the company’s policy.

Liquidity risk
The companies cashflow requirement are met by funds received from its holding company.

Trade payable & other current liability are subject to confirmation, reconciliation and adjustment if any.

The accumulated losses of the company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the company. The Company’s management
is however of the view that the same erasion is temporary in nature as the company has made certain investments in certain assets /|
projects, the proceeds of which would, when fructified, result in recovery of the eroded worth of the company. The company to that

extend does not see the stated erosion of the net worth as an impediment to its status as a going concern,

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Inventaries and Loans and Advances continues to have
a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / recast wherever necessary.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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